

SOCIAL WEALTH **ECONOMIC INDICATORS**

A New System for Evaluating Economic Prosperity

A Report from the Center for Partnership Studies by Indradeep Ghosh

Assistant Professor, Haverford College and Social Wealth Economic Indicators Project Director at the Center for Partnership Studies with Riane Eisler President, Center for Partnership Studies

& The Center for Partnership Studies Team: Natalie Cox, CPS Caring Economy Campaign Coordinator Brandon P. Smith, Informatics Coordinator

Copyright Center for Partnership Studies November 2014





Social Wealth ECONOMIC INDICATORS



Partnership Studies

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

CORE INDICATORS

NAVIGATION INSTRUCTIONS FOR READERS

1. INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 New Indicators for New Times
- 1.2 Social Wealth & Social Wealth Econor
- 1.3 SWEI Economic Benefits
- 1.4 SWEI Business Benefits
- 1.5 SWEI Social Benefits
- 1.6 Two Social Wealth Indicator Domains
- 1.7 Implications for Policy: Interactions &
- 1.8 Selected Social Wealth Indicators
- 1.9 Why SWEIs are Different and Essentia

2. HUMAN CAPACITY INDICATORS

- Where the U.S. Stands
- 2.1 Caregiving Measures
- 2.1.1 Paid and Unpaid Care Work
- 2.1.2 The Value of Unpaid Care Work
- 2.1.3 Time Spent on Unpaid Care Wor
- 2.1.4 Availability of Childcare and Early
- 2.1.5 Pay for Childcare Work in the US
- 2.1.6 Direct-Care Workers in the US
- 2.1.7 Social Care Workforce in the Unit
- 2.1.8 Long-Term Care in OECD Countr
- 2.2 Education Measures
 - 2.2.1 Levels of Educational Attainment
 - 2.2.2 Rates of Pre-School Enrolment in
 - 2.2.3 Enrolment in and Funding for US
- 2.2.4 Tertiary Educational Attainment
- 2.3 Health Measures
- 2.3.1 Infant Mortality Rates in OECD C
- 2.3.2 Maternal Mortality Rates
- 2.3.3 Infant and Child Vaccination Rate
- 2.3.4 Life Expectancy and Health-Adju Rates in OECD Countries
- 2.3.5 Teen Births in Industrialized Cour
- 2.3.6 Environmental Factors that Affect
- 2.4 Social Cohesion Measures
 - 2.4.1 Percentage of Young People Act
 - 2.4.2 Community Acceptance of Minority Groups in OECD Countries

	6
	8
	15
5	18
mic Indicators (SWEIs) Correlations	19 20 21 23 24 24 25 26 27 27
	29 31 32 33
k y Education in OECD Countries	33 35 37 39
ted Kingdom ries	40 41 41
t for OECD Countries OECD Countries S State Pre-K Programs 2011/2012 in OECD Countries	43 43 45 46 47
Countries	48 48 49
es Isted Life Expectancy (HALE)	50
ntries t Health	50 51 51
tive in Groups in OECD Countries rity Groups in OECD Countries	54 54

2.4.3 Incarceration and Recidivism Rates in Select Countries	55
2.5 Environmental Measures	57
2.5.1 Key Environmental Indicators for OECD Countries	57
2.5.2 Consumption Measures for a Larger Cross-Section of Countries	58
2.5.3 Greenhouse Gas Emissions in 150+ Countries	59
2.5.4 Resource Depletion Measures	59
2.6 Social Equity Measures	60
2.6.1 Income and Wealth	60
2.6.2 Gender	62
2.6.3 Race/Ethnicity	69
2.6.4 Other Social/Demographic Stratifications	73
2.7 Entrepreneurship & Innovation Measures	75
2.7.1 New Business Density in 120+ Countries	75
2.7.2 Patents Filed By Residents in 80+ Countries	76
2.7.3 Researchers in R&D in 60+ Countries	76
2.7.4 High-Tech Exports in 110+ Countries	76
2.7.5 Legatum Prosperity Index of Entrepreneurship & Opportunity	
in 140+ Countries	77
2.7.6 Global Innovation Index for 140+ Countries	77
3. CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS	78
Where the US Stands	80
3.1 Government Investment in Care Work	81
3.1.1 Government Investment in Families in OECD Countries	82
3.1.2 Government Investment in Childcare and Early Education in	
OECD Countries	86
3.1.3 Government Investment in Education	88
3.1.4 Government Investment in Family Leave	89
3.1.5 Government Investment in Long-Term Care in OECD Countries	91
3.1.6 Government Investment in Care Leave in OECD Countries	91
3.2 Business Investment in Care Work	93
3.2.1 Employment-Protected Parental Leave in OECD Countries	93
3.2.2 Percentage of Employers Providing Childcare or Other Care Support	
in OECD Countries	94
3.2.3 Percentage of Employers Providing Flex-time in OECD Countries	95
3.2.4 Extent of Employee Control over their Working Hours in	
OECD Countries	95
3.2.5 Care Leave vs. Parental Leave in OECD Countries	96
3.3 Public and Private Investment in Protecting the Environment	97
3.3.1 Public Investment in Environmental Protection as a Percentage of	
GDP in European Countries	97
3.3.2 Investment in Environmental Protection by Specialized Producers	
as a Percentage of GDP in European Countries	98
3.3.3 Federal Spending on the Environment as a Percentage of GDP in	
the US	98
3.4 Comparative Investment Data	99
3.4.1 Education vs. Prison Costs in the US	99
3.4.2 US Military Budget vs. Other Priorities	99
3.4.3 Share of World Military Expenditures	100

4. IMPLICATIONS FOR POLICY: INTERACTIO
4.1 Early Childhood Care
4.1.2 UK
4.1.3 Denmark
4.1.4 France
4.1.5 Norway 4.1.6 Germany
4.1.7 Sweden
4.1.8 Canada
4.1.9 Argentina
4.1.10 Uruguay
4.1.1 1 India 4.1.12 OECD's Education Survey
4.2 Parental Leave
4.2.1 Benefits for Businesses
4.2.2 Benefits for the Economy
4.2.3 Benefits for the Family
4.4 Status of Women
4.4.1 Global Gender Gap report
4.4.2 Gender Equity and Quality of Li
4.4.3 Gender Equity and Democracy
4.4.4 Molence against Women
5. MOVING FORWARD: THE FUTURE OF SV
5.1 SWEIs as a Public Sector Tool on the
5.2 SWEIS as a Tool for Highlighting the
the Public and Private Sectors
5.4 SWEIs as a Composite Index
5.5 Recommendations
5.5.1 Government Investment in Care 5.5.2 Business Investment in Care Wo
5.5.3 Public and Private Investment in
5.5.4 Comparative Investment
APPENDIX A: DATA SOURCES USED IN THIS
APPENDIX B: OTHER INDICES, DATA & INFO
APPENDIX C: FIGURES & TABLES

re	101 102 104 105 105 105 105 106 106 106 106 106 106 107 107 107 107 107 107 107 111 113 113 114 115 115
/Els & RECOMMENDATIONS State and Local Levels	117 117 118
Dynamic Interactions between Work rk Protecting the Environment	118 118 119 119 120 120 121
S REPORT	122
DRMATION SOURCES	125
	128

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We would like to thank Marco Mira d'Ercole, Head of Division, Household Statistics and *Progress Measurement of the OECD Statistics Directorate*, for his important work on OECD data, and owe a special debt of gratitude to Willem Adema and Nabil Ali at the OECD for their assistance, and for answering questions about the OECD Family Database.

We are also deeply grateful to the following people for reading an earlier version of this report and giving us their valuable feedback in the form of comments/suggestions, which have greatly improved the quality of this report: Randy Albelda, *Professor of Economics at University of Massachusetts, Boston*; W. Steven Barnett, *Director of the National Institute on Early Education Research*; Rayen Quiroga of the *UN Statistics Division*; and Elaine Zuckerman, *President and Founder of Gender Action.* In addition, we want to thank Elizabeth Boris and Erwin de Leon of the Urban Institute for their work with CPS on earlier reports and meetings that paved the way for the development of SWEIs.

We also want to express our gratitude to the foundations without whose support this report would not be possible, including:

The W.K. Kellogg Foundation The NoVo Foundation The Kalliopeia Foundation

and,

The New Visions Foundation The Loeb-Meginnes Foundation The Harvey Miller Foundation The Ms. Foundation for Women The Cochrane Foundation

In addition, we want to thank the following panelists who joined us (Eisler and Ghosh) in the online launch of this report:

Carol Evans, President of Working Mother Media; W. Steven Barnett, Director of the National Institute for Early Education Research; Gail Christopher, Vice President for Policy and Senior Advisor at the W.K. Kellogg Foundation; Eric Norman, Vice President of Human Resources, Cardinal Health; Ai-jen Poo, Director of the National Domestic Workers Alliance and Co-Director of Caring Across Generations.

And our organizational partners:

The National Women's Law Center, the Social Venture Network, the National Domestic Workers Alliance, Mom-mentum, the National Partnership for Women and Families, Hager Sharp, 9to5, the Institute for Women's Leadership, Great Work Cultures, NextKids, MomsRising, the New Economy Coalition, Ethical Markets, New Moon Media, the National Organization for Women, Promundo, Gender Action, Future First, the Akosei Village Organization, and the International Beliefs and Values Institute. We also want to thank the rest of our CPS team for their unflagging efforts on behalf of the Caring Economy Campaign.

Finally, we would like to thank the scholars and others who met at the workshop organized by the Center for Partnership Studies and the Urban Institute in 2012 in Washington DC to pave the way for the Center for Partnership Studies' development of Social Wealth Indicators, including:

Randy Albelda

Graduate Program Director Professor of Economics, College of Liberal An Senior Research Fellow, Center for Social Pol University of Massachusetts Boston

Rania Antonopoulos Senior Scholar and Program Director Levy Economics Institute of Bard College

W. Steven Barnett Director, National Institute for Early Education Rese Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey

Elizabeth T. Boris Director, Center on Nonprofits and Philanthro Urban Institute

Joseph J. Cordes

Professor of Economics, Public Policy, Public Administration and International Affair Associate Director, Trachtenberg School of Public Policy and Public Administration The Elliot School of International Affairs The George Washington University

Lewis C. Daly Director or Policy and Research Demos

Erwin de Leon Research Associate Urban Institute

Nancy Folbre Professor, Department of Economics University of Massachusetts Amherst

Olivia Golden Institute Fellow Urban Institute

Jeffrey Hayes Study Director Institute for Women's Policy Research

rts icy	G. Thomas Kingley Senior Fellow, Metropolitan Housing and Communities Policy Center Urban Institute
	Steve Landefeld Director U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis
earch	Sara Meléndez Partner Savage/Meléndez & Associates, LLC
ру	Matthew J. Osborne Research Economist U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis
	Kimberly Otis Senior Advisor, Center for Partnership Studies Director, Caring Economy Campaign
irs	Carlos, E. Santiago Chief Executive Officer Hispanic College Fund
	Ana Djapovic Scholl Monitoring & Evaluation Advisor, Office of HIV/AIDS U.s. Agency for International Development
	Ajit Zacharias Senior Scholar Levy Economics Institute of Bard College
	All errors remain our own. Indradeep Ghosh, Riane Eisler, Natalie Cox, Brandon Smith

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Urgent Need for New Measures

This report introduces a new set of measures called *Social Wealth Economic Indicators*, or SWEIs. These measures inform us that care work, which is the work of caring for others, such as children or the sick and disabled or the elderly, yields significant economic value. Yet, this work is consistently not valued or undervalued in contemporary economic measurements such as Gross Domestic Product, or GDP. This is a significant problem because we are no longer living in an economy based on manufacturing, which is the kind of economy that measurements such as GDP were constructed for. Rather, the present economic scenario is one where knowledge and services yield the greatest value, and the essential element for thriving in the new knowledge-service era is high quality human capital.

The failure to recognize the value of care work is also at the root of major social problems. It is a major factor in the disproportionate poverty of women (who do most of the care work) and of children. Not investing in care and education prevents capacity development, especially for disadvantaged children, and perpetuates cycles of poverty.

The shortcomings of GDP have resulted in a host of new economic indicators being proposed in recent years, but these primarily focus on national comparisons of *outputs*, such as rates of poverty, infant mortality, educational attainment, or environmental conditions. That is, these new indicators ignore the critical matter of *inputs*, or what is needed for better outputs.

SWEIs fill these gaps. They are largely motivated by findings from neuroscience that the most effective approach to developing human capacity is supporting care and education in early childhood and throughout the life span. Accordingly, SWEIs shine a spotlight on the extent to which a country provides support for the care work performed not only in the market but also in homes.

SWEIs reveal that there is a close link between the persistence of poverty and the undervaluation of care work, because the latter is usually considered "women's work" and women are the mass of the poor all over the world. SWEIs also capture the present condition of the environment because economic prosperity depends on the ability of human beings to work in alliance with nature.

In these and other ways, SWEIs widen our lens of analysis to provide a more accurate perspective on the government and business policies required at this time of massive social, economic, and environmental change. They provide the missing information policy makers need to promote optimal human, economic, business, and social development in our new knowledge-service era.

SWEIs use Existing Data in a New Framework

Data for SWEIs have been drawn from existing sources such as the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), the World Health Organization (WHO), and the United Nations (UN). The value of SWEIs is that they collect data that are already in the public domain and embed them within a new conceptual framework that shows that care work is a key driver of economic and business success.

SWEIs are collected into two broad categories: *Human Capacity Indicators* (HCIs) and *Care Investment Indicators* (CIIs). HCIs measure the output dimension, i.e., the degree of human capacity development, where human capacity is understood to refer to the capacities that people learn to utilize not only in service of their own advancement but also in collaboration with others for the advancement of the society and economy in which they live. CIIs, on the other hand, measure the input dimension, i.e., the extent of government and business support for care work, in the form of budgetary allocations, family-friendly laws and workplace practices, and so on.

In their current version, SWEIs represent country-level measures and allow for comparisons between the US and other countries. One conclusion that clearly emerges from the country-level data is that the US significantly lags behind other developed countries in both the SWEIs categories.

HUMAN CAPACITY INDICATORS

HCIs are divided into seven subcategories: (1) Caregiving Measures, (2) Education Measures, (3) Health Measures, (4) Social Cohesion Measures, (5) Environmental Measures, (6) Social Equity Measures, and (7) Entrepreneurship and Innovation Measures.

Caregiving Measures capture the extent and value of care work, whether paid or unpaid, that takes place in OECD countries. When paid, care work is remunerated in countries such as the US and the UK at much lower wages rates relative to the average wage rate. When unpaid, care work may still be valued, and its imputed value is found to account for very large proportions of country GDP (e.g. 26% in the US, and 50% in Australia, the difference between the two being due to a more comprehensive method of valuation used in the latter case). Caregiving measures also include enrollment of children in preschool and pre-K programs, and statistics relating to long-term care (or direct-care), which involves caring for older persons, and the sick and/or disabled.

Education Measures capture enrollment in OECD countries at all levels of education – preschool, primary, secondary, and tertiary. In most countries, men spend more time in formal education than women, but the US is one of a handful of countries where the converse is now true.

Health Measures include life expectancy rates, infant and child vaccination rates, infant and maternal mortality rates, teen birth rates, and also environmental factors (such as air pollution and climate change) that affect health. Relative to other developed countries, the US is found to perform poorly in such domains as infant and maternal mortality rates, and also has the highest teen birth rate at 40 per 1000 women aged 15-19 years.

Social Cohesion Measures reflect the potential for collaboration and constructive dialogue across cultural, religious, and ideological boundaries in a country. Measures include the extent to which young people participate in groups, the extent to which minority groups are able to find acceptance in civil society, and incarceration and recidivism rates. In this last domain, the US is once again found to have one of the poorest records among developed countries.

Environmental Measures capture the quality of the natural environment, in terms of pollution levels sourced to carbon dioxide and greenhouse gas emissions, and the depletion of renewable resources such as fresh water. Also included is a measure of the ecological footprint of consumption, and the US is found to be one of 12 countries around the world where consumption is running down ecological resources on net.

Social Equity Measures report the degree of social inequity along a variety of different dimensions. Income and wealth inequalities are found to have increased over the last three decades in both developed and developing countries. Child poverty is alarmingly high in the US (more than 20%) relative to other OECD countries.

Gender inequity remains a pervasive problem around the world. In OECD countries, women are less likely to be employed than men and when they do find employment, women earn less, are concentrated in fewer occupations, are less likely to find themselves in managerial positions, and often have fewer opportunities to change working hours than men. Of the 136 countries studied in the World Economic Forum's 2013 Global Gender Gap report, the Nordic countries are shown to have the smallest gender gaps while the US ranks twenty-third overall. Violence against women remains a worldwide problem. Finally, the devaluing of care work means that women are disproportionately among the poor in both poor and affluent nations.

Race and ethnicity are two other important categories for studying persistent social inequities. While these inequities are a disturbing issue in all countries, the report focuses on the US where racial and ethnic categories are clearly delineated. Data show that relative to White Americans, Black Americans are performing very poorly in the contemporary US economy. Blacks are much poorer than Whites, are two times less likely to find a job, ten times more likely to be incarcerated, and have lower public high-school graduation rates, higher child poverty rates, and higher teen birth rates.

Finally, Entrepreneurship and Innovation Measures track the human capital available in a country to start new businesses and innovate creative solutions to some of the most pressing problems of our time. New business density, patent applications filed by residents, researchers in R&D (Research & Development), and high-tech exports are the measures in this subcategory. Again, except for patent applications, the US is not among the top performers in this subcategory.

CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS

CIIs, which measure inputs into the creation of human capacity, are divided into four subcategories: (1) Government Investment in Care Work, (2) Business Investment in Care Work, (3) Public and Private Investment in Protecting the Environment, and (4) Comparative Investment Data.

Government Investment in Care Work refers to a number of different components. The most important of these is investment in caring for children through investment in childcare and early education, family benefits (both cash and in kind), and mandated paid leave for caregiving and family time. Governments can also support human capacity development through public funding of primary, secondary, and tertiary education.

OECD countries spent on average 2.6% of their GDP on families in 2009, but there were large variations across countries, with the share for the US being lower than the OECD average at a little over 1%. The US is one of the highest spenders in middle childhood (6-11 years) and late childhood, but one of the lowest in early childhood (0-5 years). Overall, with respect to public spending on education, the US share in 2009 was slightly higher than the OECD average of 4.6% for that year.

In the domain of parental and family leave, data from the International Labor Organization (ILO) indicate that there has been a gradual shift towards maternity leave periods that meet or exceed the ILO standard of 14 weeks, with the longest durations in Eastern Europe and Central Asia (almost 27 weeks) and in developed countries (21 weeks). The US offers statutory leave of 12 weeks, and it is unpaid leave. In fact, the US is one of only two countries among the 185 studied by the ILO (the other being Papua New Guinea) that does not provide paid leave. The US also does not mandate paid care leave, which is leave from work specifically designated for taking care of sick children or relatives. This form of paid leave is available in three quarters of OECD countries.

Business Investment in Care Work takes the form of family-friendly workplace practices, which include leave-from-work arrangements, employer-provided childcare, out-of-school-hours-care, elderly care supports, and flexible working time arrangements. In most OECD countries, businesses are seen to support care work by offering or funding childcare services, and also by offering some form of paid parental leave. The US does not mandate paid parental leave, and in 2012, only 7% of employers in the US offered childcare at or near the worksite.

Public and Private Investment in Protecting the Environment refers to expenditures by governments and businesses towards the prevention, reduction, and elimination of pollution or other degradation of the environment. Data for European countries indicate that in 2011, the public sector in the EU-27 spent approximately 0.67% of GDP on environmental protection. By contrast, federal spending in the US on natural resources and the environment amounted to 0.22% of GDP in 2008.

Comparative Investment Data is the final subcategory in CIIs and it captures the importance that the public sector accords to expenditure items that create social wealth, relative to expenditure items that do not contribute to, and perhaps even destroy, social wealth. At present, the report only includes data for the US, and the picture that emerges clearly indicates a disproportionate emphasis on the second kind of expenditure.

Core Indicators

Together, HCIs and CIIs include a very wide variety of measures, the total number exceeding 50. In order to focus the reader's attention on the most important ones, we have identified a set of "core indicators" in each category, 16 for HCIs and 8 for CIIs. These are presented in two tables immediately following the Executive Summary. The relevant sections of the report in which they appear are also indicated to assist the reader who may want to become quickly acquainted with SWEIs.

Implications for Policy: Analysis and Correlations

In addition to describing SWEIs, the report also digs deeper by highlighting critical correlations that show how care work matters for *both equity and economic efficiency*.

The first of these is the importance of *caring for children and early childhood education*. In the new knowledge-service era, our children should be able to think in new and creative ways and work collaboratively with others from all over the world when they reach working age. These skills are to be deliberately cultivated, and the only way to achieve this is through extensive investment in early childhood development.

The report presents research from a wide cross-section of countries (including the US, the UK, Denmark, France, Germany, Argentina, and India), that shows that investment in high-quality early childhood education and care (ECEC) delivers significant benefits in the long- and short-terms. Preschool and pre-K programs are shown to not only have a positive impact on primary schooling performance, but also on socio-emotional development, and on adult outcomes such as employment and earnings. Furthermore, society also benefits through reduced deviancy, reduced crime rates, and reduced reliance on public benefits. Moreover, these effects are found to be particularly important for children from disadvantaged backgrounds.

The report also highlights the importance of designing family-friendly policies that will allow parents to balance their paid work and family lives. For only then will high-quality parenting become a reality, as more mothers and fathers are able to spend time with their children and help them grow into strong, mature, creative, and caring individuals. Moreover, research indicates that *paid parental leave* delivers benefits not only for families and children, but also for businesses and the economy.

Families benefit in terms of lasting health and well-being improvements for children. Research shows that women are more likely to breastfeed when they take maternity leave, and longer leave increases both the likelihood and duration of breastfeeding. In turn, breastfeeding increases bonding between the child and the nursing mother, stimulates positive neurological and psycho-social development, and strengthens a child's immune system. Furthermore, women who take maternity leave report fewer depressive symptoms, a reduction in severe depression, and, when leave is paid, an improvement in overall and mental health.

Businesses benefit through greater worker retention since women and men are more likely to stay in the workforce when they take paid parental leave. Also, research shows that firms do not suffer a loss of productivity when employees take leave, and often benefit in terms of improved worker morale and cost-savings.

The economy benefits since paid parental leave increases women's labor force participation. Estimates show that allowing women's labor force participation rates to equal that of their male counterparts would increase GDP substantially in most countries (in the US, 5%; in some other countries, more than 30%). Furthermore, paid parental leave is shown to reduce unemployment, boost overall productivity, and reduce the burden on government, since women and men that take such leave are less likely to depend on public assistance.

SWEIs also point to a correlation generally overlooked by both policymakers and the public: that the status of *women* is an especially important factor for long-term economic prosperity. Therefore, closing gender gaps is not only a matter of human rights and equity – it is also a matter of efficiency, productivity, and economic growth.

The 2013 Global Gender Gap report demonstrates that countries with a smaller gender gap are also more competitive economically, have greater GDP per capita, and score higher on the Human Development Index. Investment in girls' education has significant multiplier effects – it reduces high fertility rates, lowers infant and child mortality, lowers maternal mortality, increases women's labor force participation rates and earnings, and fosters educational investment in children.

Gender equity matters as well for the quality of life. Research shows that measures of the status of women can be an even better predictor of quality of life than conventional indicators such as GDP. For example, gender equity variables correlated more highly with overall literacy than GDP.

The ideals of democracy are also served by enhancing gender equity, and the relationship between support for gender equity in politics and the society's level of political rights and civil liberties is shown to be remarkably strong.

Finally, violence against women is shown to impose significant direct and indirect economic costs.

The Future of SWEIs

It is of the utmost importance that countries invest in high quality human capital and build networks of provision and care and cultures of trust, collaboration, and generosity if they are to ensure social progress and economic prosperity for their citizens. The information presented in this report clearly attests to this.

The challenge that lies ahead is ensuring SWEIs – as the first metrics that adequately reflect an economic system in which care, care work, and social equity in all forms count and are counted – are used by our national policy makers. At the same time, further development of SWEIs will focus on adapting these metrics for pilot projects at the state and local levels in the public sector as well as for specific business uses in the private sector. In such development work, critical attention will have to be accorded to the dynamic interaction between policy changes in the public sector and policy changes in the private sector. Thus, for example, governments mandating paid parental leave help businesses reduce turnover and save costs, and conversely, businesses instituting family-friendly workplace practices help reduce the need for public assistance and help curtail public spending on health and law and order.

The next phase of development of SWEIs also involves the construction of a single, composite Social Wealth Index from all of the various measures presented in this report. This will be accomplished in steps. First we will create sub-indices for each subcategory of HCIs and CIIs. Once seven subcategory indices are available for HCIs, and four for CIIs, we will create two category indices, one for HCIs and one for CIIs. Finally, the two indices, one each for HCIs and CIIs, will be aggregated "up" to a single composite country-level Social Wealth Index.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Once a set of indices is available, not only will comparisons with other social wealth measures become simpler and more efficient, but the indices can also be used for crosscountry regression analysis in order to verify and illustrate the central conclusion from our new conceptual framework: that care work matters for economic competitiveness, growth, and prosperity.

In their current iteration, SWEIs provide a stark and telling account of the US' at-best mediocre performance relative to other developed countries in both the input and output domains of care work. Therefore, our report concludes with a set of recommendations for US government and business leaders on how to close this "care gap." US government leaders are called to (1) increase public investment in family benefits, (2) increase public spending on early childhood education and care, and (3) invest in programs that support work/life balance. US business leaders are called to also invest in programs that support work/life balance. The public and private sectors are called to invest more in protecting the environment, with the public sector leading the way.

The overarching thrust of the recommendations is the importance of effective investments that reflect the economic and social concerns of US citizens and benefit our economy and society. US government and business leaders are called to tip the balance of public and private investments towards supporting the work of care, which this report shows very clearly is critical both for a good general quality of life and a successful and sustainable economy.

CORE INDICATORS

Together, HCIs and CIIs include a very wide variety of measures, the total number exceeding 50. In order to focus the reader's attention on the most important ones, we have identified a set of "core indicators" in each category, 16 for HCIs and 8 for CIIs. The relevant sections of the report in which they appear are also indicated to assist the reader who may want to become quickly acquainted with SWEIs.

HUMAN CAPACITY INDICATORS (Outputs)

Measure the degree of human capacity development – both for economic success and for healthy and meaningful lives, including development of our capacities for caring and creativity individually, in families, and in groups and organizations. Human capacity measures pay special attention to social equity, keeping in mind studies showing that addressing inequity makes for a more productive, harmonious, and healthy society. These measures show where the United States stands in comparison to other nations, especially other developed nations.

CII SUBCATEGORIES

3.1 GOVERNMENT	3.2 BUSINESS
INVESTMENT IN	INVESTMENT IN
CARE WORK	CARE WORK
3.3 PUBLIC AND PRIVATE INVESTMENT IN PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT	3.4 COMPARATIVE INVESTMENT DATA

HCI SUBCATEGORIES



CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS (Inputs)

Measure our national investment (government at all levels, business, and nonprofit sectors) in caring for people so as to promote their optimal development and meet their human needs and our nation's need for success in the post-industrial knowledge/service age.

HUMAN CAPACITY INDICATORS (Outputs)

Indicator Name Section in report	Subcategory	Country Coverage
1. Time spent on Unpaid Care Work 2.1.3.a	Caregiving	OECD
 Enrollment rates in Childcare Centers, 3-5 years 2.1.4.a 	Caregiving	OECD
3. Long-Term Care wages 2.1.8.b	Caregiving	OECD
4. Educational Attainment 2.2.1	Education	OECD
5. Infant Mortality rates 2.3.1	Health	OECD
6. Maternal Mortality rates (Risk of Maternal Death) 2.3.2.a	Health	Various (180+ Countries)
7. Teen Births 2.3.5	Health	21 Developed Countries
8. Incarceration and Recidivism rates 2.4.3	Social Cohesion Measures	19 Countries
9. Ecological Deficit/Reserve 2.5.2.a	Environment	Various (150+ Countries)
10. Carbon Dioxide Emissions <i>2.5.2.c</i>	Environment	Various (200+ countries)
11. Child Poverty 2.6.1.d	Social Equity	OECD
12. Gender Gap in Earnings 2.6.2.a	Social Equity	OECD
13. Global Gender Gap Index 2.6.2 f	Social Equity	Various (130+ Countries)
14. American Human Development Index 2.6.3.1	Social Equity	US
15. NUL Equality Index 2.6.3.m	Social Equity	US
16. Researchers in R&D 2.7.3	Entrepreneurship and Innovation	Various (60+ Countries)

CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS (Inputs)

Indicator Name Section in report
1. Public Spending on Family Benefits <i>3.1.1.a</i>
2. Percentage of GDP for Public Funding for Childcare and Early Education <i>3.1.2.a</i>
3. Paid Family Work Leave 3.1.4.b
4. Government investment in Long-Term Care <i>3.1.5</i>
5. Employer Support for Childcare <i>3.2.2</i>
6. Extent of Employee Control over Working Times <i>3.2.4</i>
7. Public investment in environmental protection as % of GDP 3.3.1 & 3.3.3
8. Education versus prison costs in the US <i>3.4.1</i>

Subcategory	Country Coverage
Gov't Investment in Care work	OECD
Business Investment in Care work	OECD
Business Investment in Care work	OECD
Investment in the Environment	US, Europe
Comparative Investment Data	US

NAVIGATION INSTRUCTIONS FOR READERS

The document has 5 sections. It is possible for a section to drill down 4 levels so as to be divided into sub-sections, sub-sub-sections, and sub-sub-sub-sections. To aid the reader in distinguishing the levels, headers are printed in different fonts and indented as described below.

HUMAN CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT INDICTAORS CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS OTHER SECTIONS IN ORANGE

SUBCATEGORIES OF INDICATORS APPEAR IN 13 POINT AVENIR SMALL-CAPS FONT AND ARE INDENTED BY 1/4TH OF AN INCH. HUMAN CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT SUBCATEGORIES CARE INVESTMENT SUBCATEGORIES

Individual data points are listed in Avenir Bold 11pt font, and underlined in each section, and indented by 3/8th of an inch.

Data issues are explained in grey, italic Avenir 8pt font

All charts, figures, maps and tables are presented in an Appendix. There are links that appear in grey boxes (which say "<u>See Chart</u>" or "<u>See Table</u>" and so on) from the main text to these charts figures, maps and tables, and links (which say "<u>Go Back</u>" and appear usually at the bottom of the chart or figure etc.) back from them to the main text.

Supplementary information marked *More* on a particular data point or topic appears in an outlined box, like this one, in Avenir Book 10pt font.

Abbreviations: Finally, "the United States of America" and "the United Kingdom" are abbreviated to "the US" and "the UK" respectively in the main text, except where these country names appear in quotations from reports, which are rendered verbatim.

1. INTRODUCTION

The rapid shift from a manufacturing to a knowledge-service era is bringing unprecedented economic, social, and environmental challenges. Social Wealth Economic Indicators (SWEIs) provide the missing information leaders in government, business, and civil society need to meet these challenges. They show where the US stands in comparison with other developed countries (and some other countries) in critical determinants of both economic competitiveness and quality of life.

SWEIs recognize that both economic health and quality of life are prerequisites for robust businesses, economic competitiveness, and fulfilling lives. They show how quality of life and economic health and competitiveness interrelate to ensure human capacity development or "high quality human capital": the main ingredient for personal, business, and national success in our new knowledge-service technological era. They demonstrate how seemingly intractable problems, including the suffering caused by chronic poverty, lack of support of care for the elderly, and racial and gender inequities, can be solved by taking into account data missing from other measures of progress.

SWEIs provide the empirical grounding for a new conceptual framework – and the data that supports it – demonstrating that social equity and economic success are *not* at odds as is often claimed but are in fact mutually supportive, indeed inextricably interconnected.

SWEIs further show that counting in the work of care in economic metrics is essential to: understand the hidden economic value of care, break through patterns of poverty, empower women and girls, make the case for investing in childcare and education (especially for disadvantaged children), and ensure success in the new knowledge/service age. They demonstrate the high return on investment from supporting this work for both a nation's economy and a higher quality of life for all.

SWEIs provide building blocks for a more sustainable and caring economy. They demonstrate the substantial financial return from caring for people and nature – and the enormous costs of not doing so. They point the way to more effective government, business, and civil society investments.

1.1 NEW INDICATORS FOR NEW TIMES

New times require new measures. Today, the measure of a nation's economic health used by policy makers is Gross Domestic Product (GDP). GDP was developed in the early 20th century when the main driver of economic productivity was manufacturing, which accounted for the largest percentage of GDP. Today the largest sectors of the market are in the more intangible knowledge and service sectors. For instance in 2011 in the US, manufacturing only accounted for 14 percent of GDP and service accounted for 79 percent. Not only has employment in the manufacturing sector shrunk radically; good jobs in the service sector today require what economists call "high quality human capital." In other words, today the key to market-based production, economic growth, and global competitiveness, as well as to a high quality of life for a nation's people, is human capacity development.

While GDP still provides important data, it fails to measure this essential component of personal, business, and national success in our new knowledge-service age. Neither does it provide data on what kinds of investments and policies are required for human capacity development.

Moreover, GDP does not factor in activities outside the market such as the care for household members primarily performed by women that directly fuels and impacts the economy -- even though this care is essential for humans to survive and thrive, and hence for personal, business, and national economic success. Neither does GDP address how people on the ground are actually doing, or economic disparities based on racial and gender discrimination.

In recognition of the shortcomings of GDP, new economic indicators are beginning to surface. While these are important contributions, as documented in the report <u>The State of</u> <u>Society: Measuring Economic Success and Human Well Being</u>, they primarily focus on national comparisons of outputs, such as rates of poverty, infant mortality, educational attainment, or environmental conditions. Unlike SWEIs, they ignore the critical matter of inputs, or what is needed for better outputs. A particular shortcoming of these newer indicators is that they fail to include the economic impact of inputs such as care work and high quality early childhood education on human capacity development. Most of these new indicators also fail to provide adequate data by gender and race, and information on the state of a nation's human capital and what is needed to ensure it is developed.

SWEIs fill these gaps. These new measures are based on the latest scientific data. For example, they take into account findings from neuroscience that the most effective approach to developing human capacity is supporting care and education starting in early childhood and throughout the lifespan. They also take into account studies showing that the status of women can be a more accurate determinant of a nation's prosperity than GDP; for example, the pioneering study by the Center for Partnership Studies entitled <u>Women, Men and the Global</u> <u>Quality of Life</u>, and the World Economic Forum's <u>Global Gender Gap Reports</u>.

See Figure: The Economy And The Care Sector Source: United Nations

New times require not only new measures but also new language. Otherwise we remain prisoners of the old worldviews. In this report, key words and phrases such as social wealth and caring economy are used to underline the inextricable link between quality of life and economic competitiveness, between gender equity, human rights, and economic prosperity, and between caring and human capacity development.

1.2 SOCIAL WEALTH & SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS (SWEIs)

The old view of wealth includes strictly material or financial wealth, such as land, stocks, and earnings. As we shift into the knowledge-service era, there is growing recognition that a prosperous economy and a vibrant society largely hinge on the contributions of people. Social wealth is a new term that describes the collective contributions of members of a society to economic success and quality of life.

The extent of peoples' collective contributions depends on human capacity development, especially the great human capacities for innovativeness and creativity, problem solving and perseverance, empathy, resilience, civility, caring, and working in teams. And human capacity development in turn largely depends on the quality of care and education people receive, starting in early childhood.

Accordingly, SWEIs shine a spotlight on the extent to which a country provides support for the caregiving work performed not only in the market but also in homes. They include data from national surveys on the economic contribution of this work, showing for example that if the value of care work in homes were included in a nation's GDP, it would constitute between 30 to 50 percent of reported GDP (depending on what method of calculation is used).

SWEIs also reveal the availability of, and extent of investments in, high quality early childhood education, as well as the results of studies showing the enormous return on this investment. In addition, Social Wealth Economic Indicators show the costs of failing to shift to environmentally sustainable practices, as well as the long-term economic benefits from investing in a healthy natural environment.

As well as providing a new perspective on what is needed for personal, national, and business success in today's rapidly changing world, SWEIs also provide tools for more effectively addressing seemingly intractable social and environmental problems. For instance, most indicators ignore the fact that worldwide women are the mass of the poor, and that a major reason for their disproportionate poverty is that the work of care is still primarily done by women for little or no pay (see *Unpaid and Undervalued Care Work Keeps Women on the Brink* in the 2014 Shriver report). By viewing this work as "reproductive" rather than "productive" work, existing indicators are of no use in cutting through cycles of poverty through support for this essential work, whether in workplaces or homes.

In these and other ways, SWEIs widen our lens of analysis to provide a more accurate perspective on the government and business policies required at this time of massive social, economic, and environmental change. They provide the missing information policy makers need to promote optimal human, economic, business, and social development in our new knowledge-service era, and compare the US with other developed nations, showing what is needed if US businesses are to be competitive.

Accordingly, SWEIs include data not only measuring activities in the market economic sector, but also in the three life-sustaining and capacity-building sectors: the household, natural, and community volunteer economic sectors which make essential contributions to both economic prosperity and quality of life. A "full spectrum economics" should include these three sectors in a new economic map that more accurately reflects the economic system that we live in.

See Figure: Old vs. New Economic Maps Source: Center for Partnership Studies

In short, SWEIs measure both the state of our nation's human capacity development, such as levels of education and health (outputs), and the factors that ensure human capacity development (inputs), such as support for care work, early childhood education, gender and racial equity, and other investments in the development of every individual's full capacities throughout the whole lifespan.

Together, these indicators present a clear picture of a nation's social wealth, including both the contributions of its people and the impact these contributions have on human capacity development, human health, environmental health, and social cohesion and equity.

1.3 SWEI ECONOMIC BENEFITS

Economists tell us that the most important capital for our knowledge-service age is "high quality human capital." SWEIs measure both the state of this "human capital" and the factors required to develop and maintain it.

This information is of paramount importance for government policy makers who recognize that old ways of thinking and old prescriptions for funding allocations are not adequate. For instance, as we shift from a time when manufacturing plants employed many thousands of people to one when the same plant is run through automation with just a handful of people, when even service jobs such as receptionists, telephone customer service personnel, and increasingly also middle management positions are being replaced by automation, it is time to rethink the definition of "productive work."

Of particular interest to policy makers will be the correlations shown by SWEIs. To illustrate, countries that provide more support for care -- countries that the World Economic Forum's Global Gender Gap reports show also have the lowest gender gaps – not only have far lower poverty rates but also are regularly in the highest ranks of the World Economic Forum's Global Competitiveness reports. SWEIs are the first indicators to reveal the systematic link between gender equity and economic competitiveness.

SWEIs document that the US lags behind other OECD countries in both the condition of our present human capital and the amount of investment in ensuring high quality future human capital. The economic implications of this lag are dire, yet current indicators do not give this information to policy makers so they can ensure we change our current course.

SWEIs also show the economic implications on the ground for individuals and families, documenting how countries that invest more adequately in supporting caring and education have far less poverty, crime, and fare better on international tests of educational achievement. Again this has enormous implications for national, state, and local policies both to avoid the huge back-end public costs of such neglect and to enable the investment in human capacity development that fuels and drives personal, economic and business success.

The current set of Social Wealth Economic Indicators primarily draws on national data from OECD countries. However, with further development, these indicators will provide useful and revealing data at the state and local levels.

Local indicators will present policy makers with new performance measures that reflect the long-term return on investment (ROI) of policies that support care and care work, such as tax credits for care givers and paid parental leave. Performance measures in local government are currently limited in their ability to track long-term outcomes and impact of policies, making it difficult to make the economic case for social programs and policies. SWEIs provide a starting block for translating social benefits of these policies into economic benefits, speaking the language of decision makers at all levels.

For one example of how SWEIs can be applied at the local level, please see *Social Wealth: Implementing a Caring Economy in Monterey County.*

1.4 SWEI BUSINESS BENEFITS

Since businesses do not function in a vacuum but as part of the larger economy and society, SWEIs provide essential information to businesses. They document that business success today largely hinges on human capacity, and also demonstrate the high price companies pay when this is neglected by government policy makers.

SWEIs also provide businesses with an understanding of both the short-term and long- term benefits of family-friendly policies. Studies show that firms that invest in caring for their people through paid parental leave, childcare support, and flexible time for families have a higher return to investors. For example, companies that regularly are in the Fortune 500 and Working Mother lists of best companies to work for have a substantially higher return to investors, as described in Sandra Burud and Marie Tumolo's Leveraging the New Human Capital.

Studies also show the ROI for our national and regional economies from businesses that support caring for people and their families. This understanding should lead to national, state, and local policies that reward such companies through tax breaks and other forms of government support.

SWEIs provide a new language for articulating the economic benefits of social policies, and are a tool for business leaders making the economic or financial case for investing in care. Currently, many social policies are expressed in terms of their social benefits. SWEIs provide the evidence that these benefits also can, and should, be expressed in economic terms to bring these policies out from the fringes into mainstream business evaluation.

The extension of SWEIs to the state and local levels of government will enable businesses to more effectively work with state and local officials towards instituting worker- and family-friendly policies.

In addition, SWEIs provide caring companies with perception and marketing benefits. Moreover, as care work is given more value and support, purchasing capacity increases, which is good for businesses across the board.

SWEIs can help caring companies in marketing and promotion by gaining them good will and a larger customer base. Women are the main purchasers of consumer goods in developed nations such as the United States. By highlighting the economic contribution of the "women's work" of care – whether done by women or men – SWEIs will bring positive attention to companies that give value to this work through family-friendly policies.

1.5 SWEI SOCIAL BENEFITS

The government and business policies that flow from attention to SWEIs will greatly benefit our general quality of life. With more attention to the economic return from investing in people's physical and mental health, education, and good care for children and the sick, disabled, and elderly, many social problems and costs (for instance, from crime and prison rates) are avoided. SWEIs further show the ROI from investing in a healthy natural environment for both quality of life and economic sustainability. SWEIs pay special attention to gender and race, which are ignored or marginalized in most socioeconomic indicators. For example, they include empirical measures of the economic value of care work, thus promoting better pay for the women of color and immigrants who do such work for poverty level wages in the US, as well as recognition of its economic contribution when performed in homes.

SWEIs show the impact of a *gendered system of values* that marginalizes so-called women's issues and at the same time devalues anything stereotypically associated with women or the "feminine" such as care work – whether performed by women or men. They show how this devaluation negatively impacts equality of rights and opportunities for women and men. They further highlight how this system of gendered values has been reflected in and perpetuated by both economic measures and social and economic policies. SWEIs shine a much-needed spotlight on economic inequality. They highlight the fact that worldwide women are the poorest of the poor and the mass of the poor, and show that women's disproportionate poverty rates – and with these, child poverty rates – can be massively reduced through policies that support the work of care still primarily done by women. They further show the enormous human benefits and public cost savings from investing in caring and educating children, especially disadvantaged children.

SWEIs shine a much-needed spotlight on economic inequality. They highlight the fact that worldwide women are the poorest of the poor and the mass of the poor, and show that women's disproportionate poverty rates -- and with these, child poverty rates -- can be massively reduced through policies that support the work of care still primarily done by women.

SWEIs show how family friendly policies lead to lower poverty rates and a better quality of life for families (as in the "balancing of family and employment") as well as business and national economic success. They show that caring and caregiving can no longer be dismissed as ineffective because they are "soft" or "feminine" – and hence devalued – but that in reality caring economic policies and practices are more effective and beneficial for people, businesses, and the larger economy.

In short, SWEIs show connections that are otherwise not visible. They provide a more complete economic, business, and social picture that makes sense of where we really are as a nation. This picture, in turn, provides the data for policy makers to effectively deal with our unprecedented challenges at this time of massive technological, economic, and social transition.

1.6 TWO SOCIAL WEALTH INDICATOR DOMAINS

The conceptual framework for the development of SWEIs is described in the report *National Indicators and Social Wealth*, and is based on meetings of economists and other experts convened by the Center for Partnership Studies and the Urban Institute in 2012 in Washington DC.

These new indicators draw from both earlier and new scientific findings, including findings from neuroscience showing that whether or not people grow up to develop their capacities both for economic success and for healthy and meaningful lives – that is, whether they can be counted as "high quality human capital – heavily hinges on the quality of care and education children receive early on.

While SWEIs pay particular attention to the importance of caring and caregiving, they measure a wide range of factors, from those affecting the health and education of a nation's people to those impacting the state of its natural resources and environment. They show how these factors interact, and point to what is needed to move forward.

SWEIs are divided into two main areas:

Human Capacity Indicators

Measures the **degree of human capacity development** – both for economic success and for healthy and meaningful lives, including development of our capacities for caring and creativity individually, in families, and in groups and organizations. Human capacity indicators pay special attention to social (including gender) equity, keeping in mind studies showing that addressing inequity makes for a more productive, harmonious, and healthy society.

Care Investment Indicators

Measure **our national investment** (government at all levels, business, and nonprofit sectors) **in caring for people** so as to promote their optimal development and meet their human needs and our nation's need for success in the post-industrial knowledge/service age.

1.7 IMPLICATIONS FOR POLICY: INTERACTIONS AND CORRELATIONS

While individual indicators or clusters of related indicators provide important information on the various dimensions of social wealth, they do not give us an overall sense of how these different indicators interrelate. Nor do they tell us how the accumulation of social wealth matters for human, economic, and societal development.

Therefore, after presenting the SWEIs, we devote a section to the correlations between different indicators, and explore the strength of the relationship between measures of social wealth and measures of economic growth, productivity, and competitiveness.

For example, we look at US studies that show that greater investment in high quality early childhood care and education is associated with fewer behavioral problems such as delinquency, as well as lower child poverty and lower crime rates. We explore other key matters not generally addressed in economic analyses, such as how the status of women correlates with measures of human, economic, and social development.

To illustrate, one measure of the status of women is the gender gap in a particular country, or the gap between men and women along various dimensions of economic, social, and political participation. We present evidence drawn from the Global Gender Gap report (2013) and earlier studies that demonstrates that countries with a smaller gender gap are also countries that are more prosperous, more competitive, and more developed in terms of human capacity. We also present data, drawn from the World Values Survey (2000) that demonstrate a positive correlation between the status of women in a country, and that country's record in fostering democracy and promoting human rights. In addition, we present the results of studies showing that violence against women imposes substantial economic as well as human costs for a nation.

1.8 SELECTED SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS

In compiling data on the various dimension of social wealth, we have focused primarily on comparisons of the US to other developed nations. We have therefore drawn heavily from metrics for the 34 countries belonging to the OECD (the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development) because of their rigor and relative comparability.

While global data is less comparable, we have, for a number of indicators, also used these data, for example, information from WHO (the World Health Organization) and other UN metrics from both developed and developing countries.

Wherever possible, the data have included breakdowns by gender, given the fact that this information is lacking in most other indexes and indicators. The SWEIs described below may in the future provide a partial basis for one aggregate SWEI figure (a la GDP). However, at this point such a figure has not yet been developed, although this is a projected next step.

1.9 WHY SWEIS ARE DIFFERENT AND ESSENTIAL

What is new and different about Social Wealth Economic Indicators is that while we have drawn data from a wide variety of existing sources, they embed these scattered measures within a new conceptual framework that shows connections that are otherwise not visible. In other words, SWEIs provide a cross cutting integrative set of indicators that connects dots, or existing, isolated indicators, into a coherent new whole.

The dots are isolated statistical data that are scattered in a number of existing and proposed economic indicators. They do not tell us what we need in order to move forward unless they are put into a new pattern or conceptual framework that shows the importance of matters that are still generally ignored or at best marginalized.

The provision of a new conceptual framework or perspective underlies all progress, be it in economics, society, or science. For example, the conceptual framework of evolution brought together scattered data from many earlier observations to form a new coherent paradigm or theoretical framework that made visible what otherwise was not visible because it did not fit into the old explanatory frame.

The conceptual framework provide by SWEIs is an important step toward a new paradigm for understanding economics that translates social benefit into economic benefits in ways that have not been done before. It shows that the current concept of a conflict between improving people's quality of life and economic success is erroneous.

Specifically, SWEIs bring together existing data from sources like the OECD, the World Health Organization, and the United Nations. Using existing indicators, but in new combinations, allows SWEIs to connect these data to illuminate hitherto hidden interactions between supporting care work through business and government policy and human capacity development, and hence economic prosperity. SWEIs are the only set of indicators that show the social and economic impact of policies such as paid parental leave, support for child and elder care givers, and investment in early childhood education. By using existing data within the new conceptual framework of social wealth, these indicators reveal previously invisible interactions between human capacity development and economic prosperity.

To illustrate, SWEIs are unique because:

1. SWEIs provide a new language that translates social wellbeing into economic impact, in ways that other alternative economic indicators do not. Many alternative sets of economic indicators draw on wellbeing or quality of life data, and report on health, educational attainment, etc. SWEIs also do this, but they are different in that they connect this information with economic data, offering empirical evidence of the long-term economic and business impact of caring policies, i.e. policies that support wellbeing and quality of life.

For instance, we know from time use surveys how much people in a community or nation spend on unpaid care work in the home per week. But SWEIs go an essential step further. They couple this information with data on the value of that care work as a percentage of GDP, showing its enormous economic impact (with numbers varying depending on whether the methodology use is replacement cost, opportunity cost, or a combination of both as shown in what follows).

2. Unlike mainstream and most alternative indicators, SWEIs give special attention to gender as critical for human capacity development. The gender piece is increasingly recognized as a major factor in social equity and inequity, and SWEIs also show this. But again, SWEIs take this an essential step further by showing the impact of gender equity or inequity on economic and business success.

To illustrate, as noted earlier, a number of studies (which will be detailed below) show that the status of women is one of the best predictors of general quality of life as well as economic competitiveness. Other studies show that women are disproportionately poorer worldwide, including in the US as documented in the 2014 Shriver Report. SWEIs include these types of data, but again go an important step further by showing that this disproportionate poverty of women (and with them, also children) is a major obstacle to both a society's general quality of life and its economic competitiveness, and has its roots in the devaluation of the care work still primarily considered "women's work."

3. SWEIs create a conceptual framework that tracks both inputs and outputs of the system. Some sets of indicators track inputs, while others track outputs. Rather than segregating this information by reporting it separately, SWEIs bring together data on outputs and inputs to reveal the interaction between the two.

To illustrate, a number of new indicators focus on outputs such as health, educational attainment, and economic productivity. Others measure inputs such as budget allocations and spending on education, parental leave, or defense. SWEIs bring together data on outputs and inputs in ways that show the economic value of caring policies and investment in care.

In short, SWEIs provide essential new information for realistic long term thinking and planning, by showing patterns or connections and configurations that point to work that needs to be done for both a good general quality of life and economic success in our new knowledge-service era.

2. HUMAN CAPACITY **INDICATORS**

Human Capacity Indicators offer essential information for sound policy, as society cannot hope to flourish if its members are not empowered to take responsibility for their individual and collective futures. Since social science and neuroscience show that this empowerment must be cultivated from the earliest stages of life, Human Capacity Indicators include measures of the care and education children can access, both in homes and through high quality childcare. Since children must continue to receive loving care that will fully awaken their creative potential, social wealth measures also look at factors such as primary and secondary education, health, and environmental conditions, and situate the US in all these kinds of measures in comparison with other developed countries.

HUMAN CAPACITY SUB-CATEGORIES



INTRODUCTION TO HUMAN CAPACITY INDICATORS

We define human capacity as capacities that people learn to utilize not only in service of their own advancement but also in collaboration with others for the advancement of the society and economy in which they live. Human capacity resides in all members of the society – as much in children and youth as in the middle-aged and old, as much in the able as in the disabled. Therefore, Human Capacity Indicators also reflect the efforts of long-term care (or direct-care) workers who tend to the elderly and disabled, as well as those of family members and others who do this work for free.

Human Capacity Indicators also measure the capacity of human beings to live in harmony with one another. Disharmony may manifest in the form of disconnection and hostility that individuals may feel towards others because of differences in identity and beliefs. Although there is nothing wrong with individuals identifying with groups on the basis of certain differentiating factors, such as ethnicity or religious beliefs, the accumulation of social wealth suffers when certain groups deny other groups rights and/or resources on the basis of such differences. Similarly, the sense of interconnectedness that human beings have a natural tendency to feel towards one another is ruptured by the presence of social inequities. Therefore, Human Capacity Indicators reflect the degree of social cohesion and connectivity and the degree of social equity that exist in a society.

Finally, high quality human capital often manifests in the form of entrepreneurial talent and the capacity to innovate, and so these aspects of human capacity are also included among Human Capacity Indicators.

Ultimately, the flourishing of human capacity makes for a more cohesive and connected society, a more productive economy, and a culture of care, trust, collaboration, and generosity that enhances a society's ability to create, adapt, and transform.



•

٠

٠

٠

- The US has a child poverty rate that is nearly twice the OECD average.
- The US ranks 30th in maternal mortality rates
- Infant mortality in the US is higher than all major developed nations.
- The US has lower enrollment rates for young children in early childhood education programs than other developed nations
- The US has a higher gender gap in earnings than the OECD average (at 22%, compared to the 17.3% OECD avg.)
- In the US, according to time use surveys, men spend more time on care work than men in other developed nations.
- Women spend less time on household work than women in other developed nations.
- In the US, childcare work is one of the lowest paid occupations.
- The teen birth rate in the US is higher than all other developed nations, at approximately 44 births per 1,000 women aged 15-19. Switzerland has the lowest teen birth rate, at 4 births per 1,000 teens. The Nordic nations have 5-10 births per 1,000 teens.
- The US is one of only 12 countries running an ecological deficit larger than 4 global hectares per capita, while many other developed nations (and developing nations in Latin American and elsewhere) are running ecological reserves.

HUMAN CAPACITY WHERE THE US STANDS

2.1	2.1	2.2	2.3
	CAREGIVING	EDUCATION	HEALTH
	MEASURES	MEASURES	MEASURES
MEASURES	2.4 SOCIAL	2.5	2.6 SOCIAL
	COHESION	ENVIRONMENTAL	EQUITY
	MEASURES	MEASURES	MEASURES
	2.7 ENTREPRENEURSHIP & INNOVATION		

Caring and caregiving produce real tangible value that augments social wealth in terms of nurturing the human capacity of a society's members to become active co-creators in the social process.

The work of caring and caregiving may take many forms. It may involve a mother caring for her children, or an adult caring for his/her aged parents or other relatives. Caregivers may be community members who go unpaid for their contributions in households or as volunteers, or they may be workers in the labor force who are paid for their activities.

Neuroscience demonstrates that the neural architecture in our brains is shaped by our interactions with the environment of our early childhood years, especially by the quality of care we receive. Children who receive high-quality care in their early years tend to grow up to be strong individuals - physically, mentally, psychologically, and emotionally. Kindness and caring are integral to our humanity. There is a natural human yearning for mutuality and caring, and studies show that levels of happiness are closely related to whether this yearning is fulfilled.

An indispensable component of social wealth is the wisdom of a society's elders. Not only adults and children, but also policymakers and thought-leaders benefit from such wisdom. Caring for the elderly is therefore a special input into building strong and resilient societies.

Yet not a single country in the contemporary world values the work of caring and caregiving adequately in monetary terms at a national level. A major reason is that this work is largely undertaken by women, and "women's work" has been devalued in both economic theory and measures of economic health. So even when this work is paid, it is at rates far lower than the value of what it contributes. A related reason is that much of the work of caring and caregiving takes place in the informal, household sector, whose production is still not counted among measures of national output or income.

2.1.1 PAID AND UNPAID CARE WORK

Care work can be paid or unpaid. Paid work can be performed inside the home (usually by paid non-family members) and in outside locations (care centers, workplaces, etc.). Unpaid care work may be performed in a household by one or more members of that household or by volunteers who do not belong to that household.

There are data on market pay for care work in conventional sources, and these show that the rates of pay are extremely low in general. However, the study of the value of unpaid care work is only now gaining traction. Hence, barring a few national surveys (such as those from Switzerland, the US, and Australia described below), as well as a handful of localized reports (such as the Wellington region of New Zealand report below), we are at this time only able to construct indirect measures of the value a society places on caring and caregiving.

2.1.2 THE VALUE OF UNPAID CARE WORK

Where data are available on the value of unpaid care work, we must consider the methodology of valuation that was used, since estimated valuations are quite sensitive to the methodology.

The replacement cost methodology uses the average wage (per unit of time) in the relevant paid care industry.

The opportunity cost methodology considers what income opportunities were lost by unpaid caregivers. The rationale for the opportunity cost methodology is that, in the absence of caring responsibilities, the equivalent time/effort would be spent in the paid workforce. In other words, this method is based on the proposition that unpaid care work entails income losses. It sometimes uses the average wage for all industries to determine this figure.

To illustrate, the charts below represent the findings from a US study which calculated the value of unpaid care work using replacement value. The valuation of care work using this method was low because wages in the care work industries and occupations are substantially lower than average earnings in the labor market as a whole.

See Chart Differential Between Average Wages of All Workers and Average Wages of Household Workers, US Source: US Bureau of Economic Analysis

See Chart Average Wages of Household Workers As A Percentage Of Average Wages of All Workers, US Source: US Bureau of Economic Analysis

By contrast, a recent Australian study used an averaging of replacement and opportunity cost methodologies, with dramatically different results. It found that if the unpaid work of care in homes (mostly performed by women) were included it would constitute 50 percent of the reported Australian GDP.

See Chart Total Unpaid Care Sector Hours, Australia Source: Security4Women

2.1.2.a US Survey of the Value of Unpaid Care Work Using Replacement Value, 2010

Incorporating the value of nonmarket household production in the US raises the level of nominal GDP 26% in 2010.

More: For the full report, see: http://www.bea.gov/scb/pdf/2012/05%20May/0512_household.pdf

2.1.2.b Australian Survey of the Value of Unpaid Care Work Averaging Replacement and Opportunity Cost, 2012

.....

The table below provides a high order overview of the key data findings from this study.

See Table Findings from Australia study Source: Security4Women

More: See page iv of the full report for the key implications of the research conducted throughout the project, and also its limitations.

2.1.2.c Value of Household and Community Work, Wellington region, New Zealand, 2001-2011

The value of household and community work in the Wellington region of New Zealand has been estimated by the government of New Zealand at NZD (New Zealand Dollars) 5.48 billion in 2011, an increase of 33.1% since 2001. This value is calculated by multiplying hours spent on unpaid work (including household work, caregiving for household members, purchasing goods and services for own household, and unpaid work outside the home) by the national minimum wage and adjusting by CPI.

More: A Massachusetts study estimated that unpaid care work is worth \$151.6 billion per year in the state, and if it were counted as part of gross domestic product in 2007, it would account for 30.1% of the state's output. Source: M. Duffy, R. Albelda, and C. Hammonds, Counting Care Work: The Empirical and Policy Applications of Care Theory, Social Problems 60 (2) (2013): 145–167.

A Swiss government survey showed that if unpaid work performed in households – primarily caring for people – were counted, it would constitute 40% of Swiss GDP. Source: U. Schiess and J. Schön-Buhlmann, Satellitenkonto Haushaltsproduktion: Pilotversuch für die Schweiz. (Satellite Account of Household Production for Switzerland). Neuchâtel, CH: Statistik der Schweiz, 2004.

An AARP Public Policy Institute Report found that in 2009, about 42.1 million family caregivers in the United States provided care to an adult with limitations in daily activities at any given point in time, and about 61.6 million provided care at some time during the year. The estimated economic value of their unpaid contributions was approximately \$450 billion in 2009, up from an estimated \$375 billion in 2007.

A Chinese Survey on the Value of Unpaid Care reports: "Depending on the method used, the value assigned to unpaid work varies from 25 to 32 per cent of China's official GDP, from 52 to 66 per cent of final consumption and from 63 to 80 per cent of the gross products of the tertiary industry. These estimates show that unpaid work represents a huge contribution to national economic wellbeing."

The United Nations Research Institute for Social Development (UNRISD) has published some research work on unpaid care work in seven, mostly developing, countries (Argentina, India, Japan, Korea, Nicaragua, South Africa, and Tanzania). See here and here. In these countries, the value of unpaid care work is many times the public sector expenditures in social services. These data clearly show that the provision of care services in these countries is overwhelmingly supported by the unpaid work carried out within households and families, and provide arguments for the need to increase social expenditures to reduce the burden on households and the women in them.

2.1.3 TIME SPENT ON UNPAID CARE WORK

The importance of the work of caring and caregiving for those who receive it as well as those perform it may be inferred from the time spent on such work. Here we have two kinds of data.

2.1.3.a Data from Time Use Surveys

The first kind comes from Time Use Surveys, which record information on how people allocate their time across different day-to-day activities. The surveys involve respondents keeping a diary of their activities over one or several representative days for a given period. This information on daily activities is then re-coded into a set of descriptive categories, so that a 24-hour period (or 1440 minutes) can be "split" into a sequence of "primary" activities in which respondents are involved during a day.

At this time, many surveys classify activities into "main" or "primary" activities or as "parallel" or "secondary" activities. However, as economists such as Nancy Folbre note, this distinction has led to a failure to give adequate value to what have been classified as "secondary" activities. This is especially important for the identification of the total time dedicated to childcare, where both primary activities (such as the provision of personal care, the supervision and the education of a child, including reading and talking with children, as well as transporting children) and secondary activities (such as being within earshot when a baby is sleeping to ensure she or he is ok, watching TV or going to the cinema with the child to monitor and explain where needed, etc) should be counted under the definition of care work for children.

The data reported in the table below provides a view of primary and secondary care activities by men and women (age 25-44) with children below school age in OECD countries. Not surprisingly, women spend substantially more time with children. Somewhat surprisingly, the amount of time spent on care work as reported across countries (and surveys) varies most significantly for women. For example, mothers in Mexico with two or more children spent about twice as much time on care work as mothers in France.

In the case of men, the time spent on care work in the US was among the highest for OECD countries, but in the case of women, the US ranked at the lower end of the scale. For instance, women with two or more children in the US spent about 12.5% of their time on care work, ahead of only Latvia (11.3%) and Canada (8.8%), compared to 22.6% in Mexico, 22.2% in the UK and 21.2% in Germany.

See Table Time Dedicated To Care Work, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Time spent on care work increases with the number of children for both mothers and fathers, but the increase is most significant for women. However, the increase in time spent on caring when a second child arrives in a household is considerably smaller than when the first child was born.

Data issues

Several factors affect data comparability across countries, including differences in: sample composition, the categorization of activities; and, the sampling of diary days even when data collection complies with standardized guidelines. Large differences are also related to how simultaneous activities are recorded - and if they are recorded at all, as in general, data is coded so as to categorize people engaged in one activity at a time. In some cases, surveys include separate questions designed to learn about simultaneous activities (i.e. watching television while cooking, or caring for children while performing other activities), which allows distinction of activities in "primary" and "secondary" activities. However, the reality is that while "primary" activities are comprehensively tracked, the recording of "secondary" is more prone to error because they are often omitted by respondents. The comparability of estimates on secondary activities also suffers because some activities only take a few minutes of one's time (for example, moving laundry from the washer to the dryer) so that they are not reported consistently enough to produce reliable estimates. Because of the omission of secondary activities, the amount of time devoted to specific tasks that may be performed simultaneously with other tasks is typically under-reported among primary activities.

2.1.3.b Data from Other Surveys

The second kind of data on time allocations comes from the Second European Survey on the Quality of Life, which asked the question: "on average, how many hours in a week do you spend on these activities? (a) Caring for and educating children; (b) Cooking and housework; (c) Caring for elderly/disabled relatives; (d) Voluntary and charitable activities."

The data reported in the chart below show the responses for (a) and (c) for men and women aged 18 and over in a broad group of European countries. We see that once again, women spend substantially more time on unpaid care work than men (except in Denmark, where men spend substantially more time on caring for elderly/disabled relatives). With the exception of Norway, the difference is small for Nordic countries (being negative for Denmark, meaning men spend more time on unpaid care work than women), and the difference is greatest in Germany and the Netherlands.

In addition, the cross-country variation appears to be larger for women than for men. To illustrate, among OECD countries, women in Estonia, the Netherlands, Germany, Poland, Ireland and the UK spend around 50 hours per week on caring, almost three times as much as women in Finland. Time spent on caring for and educating children is highest in the Netherlands (48 hours per week) and Estonia (44 hours per week) while time spent on caring for elderly/disabled relatives is highest in Spain (17 hours per week) and Ireland (16 hours per week).

See Table Time Allocated to Unpaid Care Work, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Data collected in this format is not based on regular recording of activities in a diary and may therefore be of lesser quality than the data collected from Time Use Surveys.

2.1.4 AVAILABILITY OF CHILDCARE AND EARLY EDUCATION IN OECD COUNTRIES

A society's ability to develop human capacity is also crucially dependent on the quality of care and education it provides to its youngest members. The first five years of childhood are a time of tremendous learning and development, so the quality of care and education that children receive in these years is a significant determinant of the capacities that they will be able to develop in later years.

Pre-school and pre-K programs provide children their first opportunity to come together and socialize with others from a diversity of backgrounds. Accordingly, these programs represent one of the most far-reaching investments in the accumulation of social wealth.

2.1.4.a Enrolment Rates in Childcare Centers in OECD Countries

Another important childcare measure is the availability and/or enrollment of children in childcare centers. This too differs greatly from country to country.

While average enrolment is 30% for 0-2 year olds, there is wide variation in enrolment rates across countries. Denmark, the Netherlands, and Iceland report the highest enrolment rates of above 50%, while the US reports 31.4%, just above the OECD average of 30.1%.

For 3-5 year olds, enrolment rates are close to 100% for Belgium, France, Italy, and Spain, indicating that children are expected to spend close to 3 years in pre-school. By contrast, the time is 1.7 years for the US (which is below the OECD average of 2.3 years) and less than 1.5 years in Greece, Poland, Switzerland, and Turkey.

See Table Early Childcare Enrolment, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Data on the participation of very young children (under 3 years) in formal day-care services have been taken from different sources: the ABS Childcare service 2005 in Australia; the National Longitudinal Survey of Children and Youth 2008 in Canada; the Early Childhood Program Participation Survey 2005 in the US; EU-SIC 2008; Germany: administrative data, Early Childhood and Education in Europe; Tackling Social and Cultural Inequalities (2009); Korea: Ministry of Health and Welfare; the NOSOSCO reviews of social protection in Nordic Countries and various publications by National Statistical Offices and national sources.

For estimates of childcare enrolment rates for children <3 years old using EU-SILC information, these include the following types of services: childcare at a day-care center, childcare by a professional childminder at child's home or at a child-minder's office, education at pre-school or equivalent (kindergarten, nursery school). According to EU-SILC's definitions the child-minder category may include a relative, friend, neighbor or baby sitter if the carer received a payment for this activity.

Where children are enrolled in more than one part-time program the issue of double counting arises. For example, in some countries, kindergartens are only open for half a day. It is therefore possible that the child could attend kindergarten in the morning and then family day care in the afternoon, which could overestimate participation rates. Estimates using EU-SILC data do not present this problem. When children are reported to attend more than one childcare service, the child only counted once in overall enrolment rates.

In some countries (including Canada, Switzerland and the US) where early care and education supports are delivered and/or partially or entirely financed by local government, central recording of enrolment data is often less than perfect, which means that reported data may underestimate "true" participation rates. In the case of Mexico, data does not include services provided by the private sector, which account for a substantial part of the participation rate.

Canadian data are from the National Longitudinal Survey of Children and Youth (2008). The survey does not include children living in the territories, children living on First Nation reserves and children living in institutions. Availability of kindergarten programs varies by province since the Canadian educational system is provincially regulated.

Enrolment rates of three to five year olds are mainly sourced from the UOE Education data collection (an inter-organizational data collection undertaken jointly by UNESCO, OECD and EUROSTAT) based upon head counts. Pre-school programs are classified as ISCED 0 (ISCED refers to education levels as described by the International Standard Classification of Education) where education programs must be center- or school-based and designed to meet the educational and developmental needs of children. In some countries, however, a significant number of 4 and 5 year olds are enrolled in primary school programs (ISCED 1), as for example, in Australia, Ireland, New Zealand and the UK. Enrolment rates presented here include all children aged three to five inclusive, irrespective of the ISCED-level under which they are classified.

Different sources use different methods of data collection which may further hamper international comparisons. Enrolment in pre-school facilities presented in the OECD Education database is based upon actual numbers of students participating in these programs and a percentage is calculated by using population data as a denominator. The same rule applies to some countries who collect actual enrolments in childcare facilities for the under threes. In other countries, however, data on childcare facilities has been

More: The enrolment rates in the table above for 0-2 year olds concern formal childcare arrangements such as group care in childcare centers, registered childminders based in their own homes looking after one or more children, and care provided by a carer (a professional child-minder, usually a relative, friend, neighbor or baby-sitter who is registered and receives a payment for the activity) at the home of the child. The enrolment rates for 3-5 year olds concern those enrolled in formal pre-school services, and in some countries 4 and 5 year olds in primary schools.

For the 0-2 year olds, only aggregate age group data is provided since for some countries, this is all that is available. For 3-5 year olds, enrolment rates can be calculated for each age year.

2.1.5 PAY FOR CHILDCARE WORK IN THE US

Another measure of how the organization of childcare differs from country to country is how much childcare workers are paid.

In the US, childcare work is one of the lowest paid occupations: \$19,510 per year, or \$9.38 per hour. As W. Steven Barnett, Director of the National Institute for Early Education Research at Rutgers University, has noted, this is less than what dog walkers earn.

The two charts that follow are from the Occupational Outlook Handbook prepared by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. They show pay levels for two occupations that require a high school diploma: one that entails care work and another that does not.

2.1.5.a Median Pay for Childcare Workers in the US

See Table Quick Facts: Childcare Workers, US Source: US Bureau of Labor Statistics

2.1.5.b Median Pay for Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters in the US

See Table Quick Facts: Plumbers, Piperfitters, and Stemfitters, US Source: US Bureau of Labor Statistics More: Video of W. Steven Barnett at Congressional Briefing Presented by the Center for Partnership Studies' Caring Economy Campaign in Washington DC in 2013. http://www.caringeconomy.org/multimedia/dr-steve-barnett-value-care-congressionalbriefing-march-20-2013

collected through the medium of household surveys (EU-SILC, for example) and its quality may be affected by sample size and sample selection issues. Enrolment rates as in EU-SILC are broadly in line with the administrative data for countries for which both sources are available. There are sample selection issues with the German EU-SILC survey, which suggest that EU-SILC is likely to overestimate childcare enrolment rates.

2.1.6 DIRECT-CARE WORKERS IN THE US

Not only is childcare poorly paid in the US, so also is caring for disabled or chronically ill people as well as for the nation's growing elderly population. The latter is especially problematic, given that according to AARP projections, the population aged 65 or older in the US is projected to grow between 2007 and 2030 by 89%, more than four times as fast as the population as a whole.

According to a PHI (Paraprofessional Healthcare Institute) factsheet: "Direct-care workers provide an estimated 70 to 80 percent of the paid hands-on long-term care and personal assistance received by Americans who are elderly or living with disabilities or other chronic conditions. These workers help their clients bathe, dress, and negotiate a host of other daily tasks. They are a lifeline for those they serve, as well as for families and friends struggling to provide quality care."

Furthermore: "Direct-care workers account for 30 percent of the U.S. health care workforce, far outnumbering other health care practitioner occupations such as physicians, nurses, and therapists. Direct-care workers also outnumber by more than two to one all allied health occupations, such as medical and dental assistants, and therapy assistants and aides."

The following info-graphic provides an overview of direct-care workers in the US.

See Table Direct-Care Workforce, US Source: PHI

Despite their critical role in the health care workforce, direct-care workers earned a median hourly wage of \$10.63 in 2012 (compared to \$16.71 for the average US worker), and have actually experienced declining real wages in the last 10 years.

See Table Wages of Direct-Care Workers, US Source: PHI

As the info-graphic suggests, more than half of the direct-care workforce do not have health coverage and almost half of them are below the federal poverty level income and therefore dependent on various forms of public assistance benefits. Given such working conditions, it is not surprising that organizations such as Elder Care Workforce project a critical shortage of the geriatric workforce in the coming years.

.....

More: See http://www.eldercareworkforce.org/files/QA_Issue_Brief_-_FINAL.pdf and http://www.rosalynncarter.org/UserFiles/File/RCI_Position_Paper100310_Final.pdf

2.1.7 SOCIAL CARE WORKFORCE IN THE UK

The US is not the only nation where care work is poorly paid. According to the Social Care Workforce Research Unit at King's College, London, the care sector in the UK is one of the low paying sectors and has been for several years, even after the introduction of a National Minimum Wage. In a report published by the SCWRU, it is estimated that between 9.2 and 12.9% of direct-care workers in the UK earn below the National Minimum Wage.

2.1.8 LONG-TERM CARE IN OECD COUNTRIES

With the rapid growth of the elderly population, especially in developed nations where life spans have greatly expanded, the need for long-term care is also expanding exponentially.

According to a 2011 OECD report Help Wanted? Providing and Paying for Long-Term Care:

"Long-term is the care for people needing support in many facets of living over a prolonged period of time. Typically, this refers to help with so-called activities of daily living (ADL), such as bathing, dressing, and getting in and out of bed, which are often performed by family, friends and lower-skilled caregivers or nurses."

2.1.8.a Long-Term Care Users in OECD Countries

As the following chart indicates, most LTC users in OECD countries receive care at home rather than in institutions. The proportion of LTC users is highest in Austria, Sweden, Switzerland and Norway, and lowest in Poland, Korea, Ireland and the US.

See Chart LTC Users, OECD Countries Source: OFCD Health Policies and Data

The majority of LTC users in OECD countries are women over 80. Women also do most of the care work, as shown in the metrics that follow.

See Chart LTC Users By Age/Gender, OECD Countries Source: OECD Health Policies and Data

More: See Ch. 1 of the report for more details on users.

2.1.8.b Long-Term Care Workers in OECD Countries

LTC workers are either family carers or paid care workers. In countries like Denmark, family carers outnumber paid care workers 2 to 1, and in countries like the US, Canada, New Zealand and the Netherlands, the ratio is as high as 10 to 1.

In all cases, family carers are mostly women and go unpaid but render substantial economic value, estimated in Europe at between 20.1 and 36.8% of GDP, depending on the method used, and in the US, \$375 billion in 2007, relative to a value of \$230 billion for paid LTC services in the same year (see p. 44 in Ch. 1 of the report for citations).

The following chart indicates that there may be a significant unmet demand for LTC workers, with this demand being highest in Eastern Europe, and lowest in Sweden, Norway and the US.

See Chart LTC Workforce, OECD Countries Source: OECD Health Policies and Data

Existing discrepancies between demand and supply are likely to be exacerbated as the numbers of the elderly are projected to increase significantly in the next few decades.

See Chart Aging Quickly, OECD Countries Source: OECD Health Policies and Data

Finally, despite the fact that LTC work is burdensome, leading often to early retirement due to stress or burnout, wages for such work are generally low, as the following table documents. This may be one of the principal reasons for potential shortfalls in the supply of such workers.

.....

See Chart LTC Wages, OECD Countries Source: OECD Health Policies and Data

More: See Ch. 5 of the report for more details on LTC workers.

2.2 EDUCATION MEASURES

In addition to care, education is vital. It is especially critical if children are to develop the unique gifts and talents that each individual is born with. Education is not only a major factor in a nation's standard of living; it is also one of the most important inputs to building a society's capacity to cultivate the values of caring, trust, collaboration, and generosity in its members.

Members of a highly educated society are more actively engaged politically and socially in the work of improving and transforming social conditions for the betterment of all concerned. This is especially true when all the members of a society, irrespective of gender, race, ethnicity, age, or ability, receive the benefits of education. Such an equitable distribution of education enables diversity to manifest its true creative potential in a multifaceted citizenry equipped to confront the unique challenges and opportunities presented by our knowledge-service-based economy.

The first table in this section reports the general state of education at all levels in OECD nations. Since neuroscience shows that the years from 0-5 are critical for human capacity development, we then revisit this matter in the later parts of this section, which supplement the materials in Care Investment Indicators (see Section 3). The section ends with an international comparison of higher education attainment that is also crucial for human capacity development.

2.2.1 LEVELS OF EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT FOR OECD COUNTRIES

Education is a key factor in human capacity development. In measuring educational attainment, the norm is to classify attainment levels according to the International Standard Classification of Education (ISCED), the framework used to compare statistics on the education systems of countries worldwide. The educational levels included in the ISCED range from 0 (early childhood education) to 8 (doctoral or equivalent).

The table on OECD countries below indicates that people in Norway spend the most years in formal education, at nearly 14 years on average, whereas people in Portugal spend the fewest years, at 8.5 years on average.

2. HUMAN CAPACITY INDICATORS: EDUCATION



Overall, for all age groups, men spend more time in formal education than women, except in Belgium, New Zealand, Norway, and Spain, where men and women spend equal amount of time in formal education, and Canada, Finland, Iceland, Ireland, Poland, Portugal, Sweden, and the US, where women spend more time in formal education than men. The table also shows that, relative to the older cohort (55-64 year olds), the younger cohort (25-34 year olds) spend more time in formal education, except for young men in Denmark, Germany, and the US.

See Table Educational Attainment, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Data on population and educational attainment are taken from the OECD and EUROSTAT databases.

Although the guidelines for categorizing of educational programs (ISCED) are comprehensive it is possible that a formal education program in one country is classified differently than in another. Thus, a vocational educational program may be classified as upper secondary education in one country whilst in others it might be classified as a tertiary education program. For example, in Belgium, Canada, Finland, Japan and Sweden a high proportion of university graduates have obtained what some other countries would classify as vocational type qualifications.

Average years of successfully completed formal education, however, are not a perfect indicator of crosscountry differences in educational attainment across the population. Broadly speaking this is for two reasons.

First, within an education level, there are cross- and within-country differences in the time taken to successfully complete an educational program. For example, a degree course in law or medicine may lead to a similar level of educational attainment as a degree in computer sciences but may take considerably longer to complete. Also, there are cross-country differences in years of study required for similar degrees in similar fields of study.

Second, data for Australia, Austria, Japan, New Zealand and Poland assume that all children complete compulsory education. Data for other countries suggest, however, that a significant proportion of children drop out before completing the period of mandatory schooling. In 2009, this proportion ranged from 1% in Denmark and 7% in the Netherlands to over 50% in Mexico and Turkey. Therefore, the data for Australia, Austria, Japan, New Zealand and Poland may overestimate the proportion of children who attain lower secondary education, and thus overestimate the average years of successfully completed formal education.

constantly evolving, it was revised once in 1997 and again in 2011.

While more information on the 2011 classification may be found at http://www.uis.unesco. org/Education/Pages/isced-new-classification.aspx, the table that follows presents a summary of the 2011 classification and how it compares to the 1997 classification:

ISCED Level, 2011	Program	ISCED Level, 2011	ISCED Level, 1997
0	Early childhood, Pre-primary	No duration criteria, typically covers ages 0-2 for early childhood, and 3-5 for pre-primary	0
1	Primary	4-7 years	1
2	Lower Secondary	2-5 years	2
3	Upper Secondary	2-5 years	3
4	Post-Secondary/Non-Tertiary	6 months - 2-3years	4
5	Short-cycle Tertiary	2-3 years	5
6	Bachelor's or equivalent	3-4 years	
7	Master's or equivalent	1-4 years	
8	Doctoral or equivalent	Minimum of 3 years	6

Educational attainment for adults can be expressed in average years of formal education for those who have successfully attained a given level of education (e.g. for those who do not complete lower secondary education, only the years in primary school are counted). For example, if 50% of the population receives a university degree, and the weighted typical duration of this type of program is 3 years, educational attainment (expressed in average years) is calculated as 1.5 years. These average years are summed together for different levels of education (e.g. primary school, secondary school, university) to calculate the average number of years of successfully completed formal education.

2.2.2 RATES OF PRE-SCHOOL ENROLMENT IN OECD COUNTRIES

The table that follows covers enrolment rates for 3-5 year olds in formal pre-school services and, in some countries, of 4 and 5 year olds in primary schools.

.....

The table shows that enrolment rates for children under 6 years of age are close to 100% for Belgium, France, Italy, and Spain, indicating that children are expected to spend close to 3 years in pre-school. By contrast, the time is 1.7 years for the US (which is below the OECD average of 2.3 years) and less than 1.5 years in Greece, Poland, Switzerland, and Turkey. The enrolment rate in the US for children aged 3-5 is 57%, whereas it is 98 % in Sweden, 94.5% in New Zealand, 91.5% in Denmark, and 90% in Japan.

More: ISCED levels were first developed by UNESCO in 1976, but as education systems are

While other factors, including support for childcare in homes and availability of high quality childcare from outside sources, must be considered, these numbers give some indication of the degree to which a nation ensures that the education that children receive in their earliest years is supported.

See Table Pre-School Participation, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Enrolment rates of three to five year olds are mainly sourced from the UOE Education data collection (an inter-organizational data collection undertaken jointly by UNESCO, OECD and EUROSTAT) based upon head counts. Pre-school programs are classified as ISCED 0 (ISCED refers to education levels as described by the International Standard Classification of Education) where education programs must be center- or school-based and designed to meet the educational and developmental needs of children. In some countries, however, a significant number of 4 and 5 year olds are enrolled in primary school programs (ISCED 1), as for example, in Australia, Ireland, New Zealand and the UK. Enrolment rates presented here include all children aged three to five inclusive, irrespective of the ISCED-level under which they are classified.

Different sources use different methods of data collection which may further hamper international comparisons. Enrolment in pre-school facilities presented in the OECD Education database is based upon actual numbers of students participating in these programs and a percentage is calculated by using population data as a denominator. The same rule applies to some countries who collect actual enrolments in childcare facilities for the under threes. In other countries, however, data on childcare facilities has been collected through the medium of household surveys (EU-SILC, for example) and its quality may be affected by sample size and sample selection issues. Enrolment rates as in EU-SILC are broadly in line with the administrative data for countries for which both sources are available. There are sample selection issues with the German EU-SILC survey, which suggest that EU-SILC is likely to overestimate childcare enrolment rates. For this reason the administrative data from the German Statistics Office are used.

2.2.3 ENROLLMENT IN AND FUNDING FOR US STATE PRE-K PROGRAMS, 2011/2012

The following figures from an NIEER report show that although the enrolment rates in pre-K programs in the US have been growing, funding allocations for this education has been going in the opposite direction.

2.2.3.a Enrolment in Pre-K programs

See Chart Pre-K Enrolment, US Source: National Institute for Early Education Research

2.2.3.b Funding trends for Pre-K programs

See Chart Pre-K Funding, US Source: National Institute for Early Education Research

2.2.4 TERTIARY EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT IN OECD COUNTRIES

The following chart demonstrates that in 2011, the US ranked 12th among OECD countries in terms of tertiary educational attainment, with an attainment rate of just above 40% among 25-34 year olds. The attainment rates in Korea, Japan, Canada and Russia exceeded 50% while Italy, Turkey and Brazil had the lowest rates at under 20%.

See Chart Tertiary Educational Attainment, OECD Countries Source: OECD Directorate for Education and Skills

2.3	2.1 CAREGIVING MEASURES	2.2 EDUCATION MEASURES	2.3 HEALTH MEASURES
MEASURES	2.4 SOCIAL COHESION MEASURES	2.5 ENVIRONMENTAL MEASURES	2.6 SOCIAL EQUITY MEASURES
	2.7 ENTREPRENEURSHIP & INNOVATION		

A society that invests in the physical and emotional wellbeing of its members creates the opportunity for an ongoing process of social adaptation and renewal that nurtures and grows social wealth.

Health is crucial for flourishing. Therefore measures of social wealth include health outcomes, life expectancy being the most common indicator. From the perspective of human capacity development, a special consideration is the health of mothers and infants, and of children of all ages. If these demographics are not adequately served by healthcare, a society may be deemed to have skewed its priorities away from regeneration and renewal and towards attrition and perhaps even extinction.

Maternal health is positively correlated with the efficient use of household resources and overall community health. Studies show that when mothers enjoy better health, they are better able to care for their children, and this in turn helps children become healthier, more creative, and more productive adults, which ultimately results in higher long-term economic growth.

Therefore the category of "Health Measures" pays special attention to health outcomes for mothers, infants, and children.

2.3.1 INFANT MORTALITY RATES IN OECD COUNTRIES

The infant mortality rate is presented in the table below, and refers to the number of deaths of children under 1 year of age in a given year, expressed per 1000 live births. Neonatal mortality refers to the death of children not yet 28 days. Post-neonatal mortality refers to the death of children between 28 days and 11 months of life (inclusive).

In 2010, infant mortality among OECD countries ranged from a low of under 3 deaths per 1000 live births in the Czech Republic, Japan, the Nordic countries (with the exception of Denmark), Portugal, and Slovenia, up to a high of over 10 deaths per 1000 live births in Mexico, Romania and Turkey. Infant mortality rates were also relatively high (more than 6 deaths per 1000 live births) in Chile, some Central and Eastern European countries, and the US.

Around two thirds of the deaths that occur during the first year of life are neonatal deaths. Congenital malformations, pre-maturity, and other conditions arising during pregnancy are the principal factors contributing to neonatal mortality in developed countries. For deaths beyond a month (post-neonatal mortality), there tends to be a greater range of causes – the most common being SIDS (Sudden Infant Death Syndrome, more commonly known as "cot death"), birth defects, infections, and accidents.

See Table Infant Mortality, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Some of the international variation in infant and neonatal mortality rates may be due to variations among countries in the registration of premature deaths of infants (whether they are reported as live births or fetal deaths). In several countries, such as in Canada, Japan, the Nordic countries and the US, very premature babies with relatively low odds of survival are registered as live births. This increases mortality rates compared with other countries that register them as fetal deaths instead of live births.

2.3.2 MATERNAL MORTALITY RATES

High maternal mortality rates and poor health of infants and children are generally strong predictors of poorly functioning health systems overall. This indicates that mothers are the most important bearers of social wealth, and their inputs into a society's productive capacity are also the most important determinants of a society's long-term economic prospects.

2.3.2.a Risk of Maternal Death in 180+ Countries

The table that follows shows the probability that a 15-year old female will die eventually from a maternal cause. It takes into account both the probability of becoming pregnant and the probability of dying as a result of that pregnancy, accumulated across a woman's reproductive years.

See Table Maternal Death, Many Countries Sources: Save The Children

On average, Western European countries have the lowest rates whereas Southeast Asian and African countries have the highest rates. The US rate is higher than that of most developed countries.

More: The table also indicates the status of mothers in a wide cross-section of countries. The complete report State of the World's Mothers 2014 explains the variables used to determine the best and worst places in the world to be a mother. The US receives a rank of 30 on the Mother's Index, after Singapore (15), Canada (22), and Lithuania (26), while the Nordic countries are at the top of the rank ordering.

2.3.2.b Maternal Mortality Rates in 180+ countries

2. HUMAN CAPACITY INDICATORS: HEALTH

The table that follows shows the number of women who die during pregnancy and childbirth, per 100,000 live births. The data are estimated with a regression model using information on fertility, birth attendants, and HIV prevalence. Its rankings roughly follow those in the preceding table.

See Table Maternal Mortality, Many Countries Source: World Bank

2.3.3 INFANT AND CHILD VACCINATION RATES

Immunization rates are a good predictor of the probabilities of infant and child mortality. The maps below offer a snapshot of the global situation with respect to immunizations for measles and DTP3 (diphtheria-tetanus-pertussis). These maps indicate that like most other developed countries, the US has very good measles coverage, and also that many Latin American and South Asian countries have good immunization coverage for measles but not for DTP3.

See Map Measles Coverage, Many Countries Source: United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF)

See Map DTP3 Coverage, Developing and Transition Countries Source: United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF)

See Map DTP3 Coverage, Many Countries Source: United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF)

More: For more information, see the full report published by UNICEF and WHO. http://www.childinfo.org/files/immunization_summary_2012_en.pdf

2.3.4 LIFE EXPECTANCY AND HEALTH-ADJUSTED LIFE EXPECTANCY (HALE) RATES IN OECD COUNTRIES

Life expectancy is the average number of years a newborn can expect to live, but does not provide a picture of the health status of a population, since the extra years of life are not necessarily lived in good health. Health-adjusted life expectancy (HALE) is the average number of years a newborn can expect to live in good health or free of disease and injury.

On average, in 2008, life expectancy in OECD countries for girls and boys was 82 and 76 respectively, but HALE was 74 and 70, respectively. This means that the proportion of their lifespan that could be limited by disease or injury was 10% for girls, and 8% for boys. For both boys and girls, the US rates for life expectancy and HALE were below the OECD average.

It is to be noted that the HALE gender gap is smaller than that for life expectancy. However, on the whole the ranking of countries for HALE is very similar to that for life expectancy, suggesting that countries with the longest life expectancies are also the healthiest (Japan, France, Spain, Italy, Iceland, Sweden, Australia and Switzerland).

See Table Life Expectancy, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Life expectancy is estimated using life tables constructed by WHO using Sullivan's method. HALE is calculated using the WHO Global Burden of Disease (GBD) study, WHO Multi-Country Survey Study (MCSS) and World Health Survey (WHS). Data from the WHOGBD study are used to estimate severityadjusted prevalence by age and sex for all countries. Data from the WHOMCSS and WHS are used to make independent estimates of severity-adjusted prevalence by age and sex for survey countries. Prevalence for all countries is calculated based on GBD, MCSS and WHS estimates.

2.3.5 TEEN BIRTHS IN DEVELOPED COUNTRIES

Among developed countries, the US has the highest teen birth rate at approximately 40 births per 1000 women aged 15-19 years. Switzerland has the lowest teen birth rate at 4 births per 1000 women aged 15-19 years, while the Nordic countries also have low birth rates between 5 and 10 births per 1000 women aged 15-19 years.

See Figure: Teen Birth Rates, Developed Countries Source: United States Department of Health and Human Services

2.3.6 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS THAT AFFECT HEALTH

The quality of the environment people live in is an important, though often still ignored, factor in determining health. The World Health Organization tracks the health impact of environmental factors along a variety of different dimensions. A complete list of topics is available here: http://www.who.int/phe/health topics/en/

Here we excerpt some information from two of these topics:

2.3.6.a Global Effects of Air Pollution

Outdoor air pollution can fatally affect children, as the following map illustrates.

See Map Air Pollution and Child Deaths, Many Countries Source: World Health Organization

Globally in 2012, 7 million deaths were attributable to the joint effects of household air pollution and ambient air pollution. Most of these deaths occurred in middle- and low-income countries, which represent 82% of the world's population, with the Western Pacific and South East Asian regions witnessing the most deaths, at 2.8 million and 2.3 million, respectively. The following chart provides more detail.

See Chart Deaths Attributabe to Air Pollution, Many Countries Source: World Health Organization

More: For more information, see: http://www.who.int/phe/health_topics/outdoorair/databases/FINAL_HAP_AAP_ BoD_24March2014.pdf?ua=1

2.3.6.b Global Impact of Climate Change

There are three primary exposure pathways by which climate change affects health: directly through weather variables such as heat and storms; indirectly through natural systems such as disease vectors; and pathways heavily mediated through human systems such as undernutrition. The following figure describes these pathways in a conceptual diagram.

See Figure Pathways from Climate Change to Health Source: Inter-governmental Panel on Climate Change

The following map indicates that looking ahead, increasingly frequent heat extremes will combine with rapidly growing numbers of older people living in cities.

See Map Heat Extremes, Many Countries Source: Inter-governmental Panel on Climate Change

The following table presents examples of recent research studies on the co-benefits of climate change mitigation and public health policies.

See Table Policy Approaches Source: Inter-governmental Panel on Climate Change

More: For more information, see: http://ipcc-wg2.gov/AR5/images/uploads/WGIIAR5-Chap11_FGDall.pdf

2.4 SOCIAL COHESION MEASURES

A society that is divided and fragmented, with its members isolated and alienated from one another, cannot hope to grow networks of provision and care. Only through such a coming together, whether in communities, schools, churches, or other kinds of groups, are people able to develop a sense of being, belonging, and becoming. Whether the occasion for coming together is celebratory or commiserative, the natural human tendency to think and feel in the company of others supports, widens, and deepens the values of caring, trust, collaboration, and generosity that are the hallmark of a caring economy and society.

The coming together of people in groups also holds out the potential for constructive dialogue across cultural, religious, and ideological boundaries, and out of such dialogue may emerge innovative approaches for solving social problems and for visioning a shared future. Even though the proliferation of social media appears to have occasioned a migration online of our social lives with its attendant problems, it has also increased awareness of the problems and concerns that face humanity as a whole so our coming together offline can now be infused with a more informed, and more directed intentionality than before.

One measure of social connectivity and cohesion is the extent to which a society excludes offenders through incarceration. In the data presented below, the US is seen to be one of the worst performers with regard to incarceration rates, largely because the US justice system is not focused on rehabilitation but rather on punishment. Consequently, relative to a country like Norway, the US also has a high recidivism rate.

Perhaps the most important aspect of social connectivity that is relevant to social wealth is that there are no finite limits to the variety of forms that such connectivity can take. Human beings have an extraordinary capacity to relate to one another in new and interesting ways. "Social Cohesion Measures" highlight the ways in which people come together in modes of relating that nurture and grow networks of provision and care that are a vital component of social wealth.



2.4.1 PERCENTAGE OF YOUNG PEOPLE ACTIVE IN GROUPS IN OECD COUNTRIES.

The extent to which young people participate in formal and informal organizations is an indication of their social participation. The data in the table below is from the 2005-2007 World Values Survey that asked respondents whether they belonged to groups of a particular type, and whether they considered themselves to be "active" or "inactive" members of the groups.

The table shows diversity across countries in the formal groups to which young people belong. In general, young people are most likely to be members of a "sport or cultural association" rather than any other group. However, in Finland, Mexico, Sweden, Romania, and the US, young people are most likely to belong to a church (or other religious organization). Membership in an association with a political orientation, including labor unions, is more frequent in Sweden, Finland, the US, and Norway than anywhere else.

In the US one-fifth of young people are members of a charitable or humanitarian organization. In Canada and Sweden the percentage is one third, about twice as high as for the OECD on average.

See Table Active Youth, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family

Data Issues

The World Values Survey (WVS) is a worldwide network of representative national surveys carried out in 97 societies covering almost 90 percent of the world's population. Five waves of surveys have been released from 1981 to 2007. The last wave was carried out over the 2005-2007 period. Sample sizes in OECD countries vary from approximately 1000 individuals in France, the Netherland, New Zealand, Poland or the UK to more than 2000 in Canada or Germany.

2.4.2 COMMUNITY ACCEPTANCE OF MINORITY GROUPS IN OECD COUNTRIES

Data on the tolerance of minority groups is based on binary questions created by the Gallup World Poll, which is conducted in more than 150 countries.

Questions asked take the form of: "Is the city or area where you live a good place or not a good place to live for immigrants from other countries? Is the city or area where you live a good place or not a good place to live for racial and ethnic minorities? Is the city or area where you live a good place or not a good place to live for gays and lesbians?"

We present three charts below, pertaining to the three above questions, for OECD Countries and some others (Argentina, Brazil, India, Indonesia, Russia and South Africa).

In Australia, Canada, Iceland, New Zealand and Norway at least 90% of people think that their country is a good place for immigrants to live. On the other side of the spectrum are Estonia, Greece and Poland, where less than the half of the people think that their country is a good place for immigrants to live. The US is ranked tenth in its tolerance of immigrants. On average, people in the OECD area believe that their countries have become a slightly worse place to live for immigrants between 2007 and 2012. Austria and Slovenia saw a significant increase in positive sentiment on this point, whereas a large drop was noted in Greece, Mexico and Poland. This decrease was balanced out due to the small changes seen in the majority of the OECD.

Tolerance of ethnic minorities shows similar features. Overall, there is a slight decline in the share of people who think that their area is a good place to live for racial and ethnic minorities. However, a large variation across countries can be observed, with the US in seventeenth place, registering a very slight increase in tolerance.

See Chart Tolerance of Ethnic Minorities, OECD Countries Source: OECD Ilibrary

Tolerance perceptions towards gays and lesbians showed a slightly more positive change overall from 2007 to 2012. The increase in tolerance was largest in Austria, Norway and Portugal, while the largest decline was observed in Greece, Hungary and Turkey. The US was ranked fifth, registering a large increase in tolerance of gays and lesbians between 2007 and 2012.

See Chart Tolerance of Gays and Lesbians, OECD Countries Source: OECD Ilibrary

2.4.3 INCARCERATION AND RECIDIVISM RATES IN SELECT COUNTRIES

According to a 2014 Pell Center for International Relations and Public Policy report:

"The United States has about 5% of the world's population yet it accounts for about 25% of the world's prisoners. Despite a steady decline in the crime rate over the past two decades, the United States incarcerates more of its citizens than any other country-716 people per every 100,000, according to the International Centre for Prison Studies (ICPS). This translates to about one in every 100 American adults being in prison. As a point of comparison, the next closely ranked English-speaking, industrialized country is the United Kingdom (England and Wales), at 102 in the ICPS ranking of 221 countries. As a proportion of the population, the United States has 15 times as many prisoners as Iceland, 14 times as many as Japan and 10 times as many as Norway."

See Table Prison Populations in Select Countries Source: Pell Center for International Relations and Public Policy

On recidivism, the report states that relative to other countries: "the U.S. rate does not appear exceptional. It should be noted that comparing international recidivism rates can be tricky. Countries track them differently, often using different terms (reconviction, re-arrest, relapse, re- imprisonment) and varied lengths of time for studies (1 yr, 3 yrs, 10 yrs). Difficulties with comparison aside, the recidivism rates in other countries, even on the high end, reveal an interesting truth-recidivism does not have a significant impact on their prison population rates. Unfortunately, this does not hold true for the United States, most likely because Americans are imprisoned for crimes that may not lead to prison sentences in other countries such as passing

bad checks, minor drug offenses, and other non-violent crimes. Also, prisoners in the United States are often incarcerated for a lot longer than in other countries. For instance, burglars in the United States serve an average of 16 months in prison compared with 5 months in Canada and 7 months in England.2 With an emphasis on punishment rather than rehabilitation, U.S. prisoners are often released with no better skills to cope in society and are offered little support after their release, increasing the chances of re-offending."

In contrast to the US penal system, the Norwegian system is held up as a model of successful incarceration practices, with a 20% recidivism rate, one of the lowest in the world, largely because the government actively assists released prisoners to re-integrate into society through support with housing, employment, education, health care and addiction treatment (if needed).

See Table Recidivism Rates in Select Countries Source: Pell Center for International Relations and Public Policy

2.5 ENVIRONMENTAL MEASURES

Care for our natural environment is critical, as nature not only provides the essentials to sustain human life but directly affects a society's economic prospects. Not only does the environment nourish and support human life, but its cleanliness and natural beauty contribute to the good health and psychological wellbeing of human beings.

Human beings co-create social reality in alliance with other life forms and the natural environment. Therefore, proper care for the environment is crucial for human capacity to flourish.

Social wealth consists of such flourishing and is an input for economic prosperity. Therefore, damage to the environment not only impedes the accumulation of social wealth but also adversely affects long-term economic health.

Conventional measures of economic prosperity such as GDP completely overlook the importance of environmental quality for long-term economic health. Yet current economic practices, including activities included as positives in GDP, inflict a huge cost on the environment by way of resource depletion, pollution, and climate change.

SWEIs reflect the irreversible damage that current economic assumptions and practices are inflicting on the environment. In this section, we highlight a number of measures of environmental quality and the impact that environmental degradation is having on human health and flourishing.

2.5.1 KEY ENVIRONMENTAL INDICATORS FOR OECD COUNTRIES

The 2008 OECD publication "Environmental Indicators" reports data for OECD countries on two topics: pollution issues (climate change, ozone layer, air quality, waste generation, and freshwater quality) and natural resources and assets (freshwater resources, forest resources, fish resources, energy resources, and biodiversity).

Although many OECD countries have made significant strides through the 1990s and 2000s in addressing environmental concerns, large differences remain between countries and much remains to be accomplished.



The following charts indicate that overall, OECD countries have made important progress in measuring their carbon dioxide and greenhouse gas emissions as a separate and highly significant factor in human and economic development, rather than only relying on GDP growth. However, most countries have not succeeded in meeting their own national commitments. Their emissions continued to increase throughout the 1990s, particularly in the Asia-Pacific region and North America (US and Canada), despite gains in energy efficiency. Since 1980, carbon dioxide emissions from energy use have grown more slowly in OECD countries as a group than they have worldwide. For both greenhouse gases and carbon dioxide, the US and Canada are among the highest polluters in the OECD.

See Chart Emissions, OECD vs. World Source: OECD Environment Directorate

See Chart Emissions, OECD Countries Source: OECD Environment Directorate

More: The full report is available here: http://www.oecd.org/env/indicators-modelling-outlooks/37551205.pdf

2.5.2 CONSUMPTION MEASURES FOR A LARGER CROSS-SECTION OF COUNTRIES

Patterns of consumption are an important factor in environmental conditions because current patterns are depleting ecological resources, as shown by the data below.

2.5.2.a Ecological Footprint of Consumption and Ecological Deficit/Reserve for 150+ Countries

The table below provides information for the ecological impact of consumption across the globe in 2007. In the majority of the continents, countries are running ecological deficits, meaning that their consumption is running down ecological resources on net. The US is one of 12 countries running a deficit larger than 4 global hectares per capita. In Latin America, however, a large number of countries are running ecological reserves. This is also true for Canada, Australia, New Zealand, and select European countries (Estonia, Finland, Latvia, Russia, and Sweden).

See Table Ecological Impact of Consumption, Many Countries Source: Global Footprint Network

2.5.2.b Consumption of Ozone-Depleting Substances in 150+ Countries

The map below indicates large differences among countries with respect to the consumption of ozone depleting substances in 2008. India, Brazil, China, and the United States were the worst offenders, while the EU countries were (collectively) the best performers.

See Map Ozone Depletion, Many Countries Source: United Nations Statistics Division

The data for the map is available at: http://unstats.un.org/unsd/environment/ODS Consumption.htm

2.5.2.c Carbon Dioxide Emissions in 200+ Countries

The map below indicates carbon dioxide emissions per capita for 200+ countries in 2007. Industrialized countries (especially the US, Canada, Australia, Germany, Japan and Russia) are the worst offenders, while South Asia, Africa, and Latin America have the cleanest record.

See Map Carbon Dioxide Emissions, Many Countries Source: United Nations Statistics Division

The data for the map is available at: http://unstats.un.org/unsd/environment/air_co2_emissions.htm

2.5.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IN 150+ COUNTRIES

The map below indicates greenhouse gas emissions per capita for 150+ countries during the years 1994-2008. The US, Canada, and Australia (for all of which, data is available for 2008) are the worst offenders, while South Asia, Africa, and Latin America have the cleanest record (although for many of these countries, data is only available for the 1990s).

See Map Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Many Countries Source: United Nations Statistics Division

The data for the map is available at: http://unstats.un.org/unsd/environment/air_greenhouse_emissions.htm

2.5.4 RESOURCE DEPLETION MEASURES

2.5.4.a Freshwater resources in 180+ countries

The map below indicates renewable freshwater resources per capita for 180+ countries in terms of a long-term annual average (1990-2005). Apart from the desert regions of North Africa and the Arabian Peninsula, where it is natural to expect a shortage of renewable freshwater resources, the most critical shortages appear in the two most populated countries of the world, India and China, as well as in Mexico and parts of continental Europe.

See Map Freshwater Resources, Many Countries Source: United Nations Statistics Division

The data for the map is available at: http://unstats.un.org/unsd/environment/waterresources.htm

2.6 SOCIAL EQUITY MEASURES	2.1 CAREGIVING MEASURES	2.2 EDUCATION MEASURES	2.3 HEALTH MEASURES
	2.4 SOCIAL COHESION MEASURES	2.5 ENVIRONMENTAL MEASURES	2.6 SOCIAL EQUITY MEASURES
	2.7 ENTREPRENEURSHIP & INNOVATION		

To build social wealth, a society must able to effect an equitable provision of resources to all its members. Social Equity Indicators include a variety of measures of the extent to which resources, opportunities, and rights (e.g., to safety and security) are equitably distributed across a society.

Equity requires that special consideration be given to those members of a society whose contributions have been historically undervalued. Without adequate resources, these members have an uphill struggle to grow into flexible, creative, and productive human beings.

Inequity is not only a problem in the domains of income and wealth, but also in the domains of access to education, health-care, and employment. Inequity manifests according to differing social and demographic stratifications. For example, gender is a universal category of stratification and therefore not country- or geography-specific

When we restrict our focus to the US, race (White, Black, Asian or Pacific Islander, American Indian or Alaskan Native, etc.) and ethnicity (Hispanic, non-Hispanic) also emerge as primary stratifications for the measurement of equity. In India, caste remains a major source of stratification, whereas in some areas religion is used to subordinate "out-groups."

To be sensitive to these differences, we include various subcategories of measures. We begin with broad-based measures of inequity in the domains of income and wealth, i.e., without drilling down to the level of social and demographic stratifications. We then introduce measures of inequity based on gender, followed by measures based on race/ethnicity (relevant to the US), and finally present measures based on other/miscellaneous stratifications (relevant to other regions or countries). In whatever form inequity manifests, it is a hindrance to the accumulation of social wealth.

2.6.1 INCOME AND WEALTH

Many economists take the view that some measure of income and wealth inequity may be a good thing since it creates the necessary incentives for hard work and innovation. There remains, however, little agreement on exactly how much inequity is the "right" amount, because economists have not yet devised a reasonable analytical framework to address this question. From the perspective of creating social wealth, persistent and large wealth and income inequities are harmful.

To begin with, such inequities interfere with a proper functioning of the democratic process. In countries where the rich own a growing share of income and wealth, the political process is inevitably captured by their interests, and the poor become objects of disenfranchisement and therefore discrimination. Social mistrust then grows and political and civil disorder become increasingly likely. Certainly, such has been the reality in recent times in many Western countries such as the US (the 2011-2012 Occupy Movement), the UK (the 2010 student riots), and parts of continental Europe (anti-austerity riots in Spain, Portugal, Greece).

Another critical issue with respect to income is the status of children, who are unable to support themselves and must therefore rely on adults for sustenance. Child poverty is especially pernicious. Therefore, in what follows, we report measures not only of income and wealth inequities for the population at large but also for children. For many countries reliable information on child poverty is not available, so we have included only OECD countries.

2.6.1.a Single Observations for Income Inequality in a Cross-Section of Countries

The map that follows compares income inequality for 63 countries. It reports the Gini index, where an index of 0 represents perfect equality, while an index of 100 implies perfect inequality. It indicates that income inequality is particularly high in Latin America, Asia, parts of Africa, and countries that composed the former Soviet Union.

See Map Gini Index, Many Countries Source: World Bank

2.6.1.b Time-Series for Income Inequality in Anglo-Saxon and Developing/Emerging Countries

Data compiled by Thomas Piketty for his book Capital in the 21st Century (2014) provides information on trends in income inequality for a large group of countries.

Since 1980, the share of national income going to the top 1% of the population has risen sharply for four Anglo-Saxon countries – the US, the UK, Canada, and Australia – with the US share, at around 18%, being the highest of the four.

See Chart Income Inequality, Anglo-Saxon Countries Source: New Yorker

The trend is broadly similar for six developing/emerging countries: Argentina, China, Colombia, India, Indonesia, and South Africa. That is, we see once again a U shape: during the past few decades, more and more income has been accumulating at the top. In most of these countries, however, the share taken by the one per cent is guite a bit lower than it is in the US.

See Chart Income Inequality, Developing Countries Source: New Yorker

2.6.1.c Time-Series for Wealth Inequality in the US and Europe

Also documented by Thomas Piketty is that wealth inequality has been growing in both the US and Europe since 1970 but most sharply in the US. In 2010, the American one per cent owned about a third of all the wealth while the European one per cent owned about a quarter.

See Chart Wealth Inequality, US and Europe Source: New Yorker

2.6.1.d Child Poverty in OECD Countries

Approximately 13% of children in OECD countries were poor in 2009-11. However, there is wide variation across countries. Child poverty rates were below 9% in Austria, the Nordic countries, and Slovenia. But they exceeded 20% in the US, Chile, Israel, Mexico, and Turkey.

See Table Child Poverty, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

More: The child poverty rate represents the percentage of children living in households with an equivalized disposable income of less than 50% of the median for the total population. Equivalization assigns different weightings to different members of a household, and total household income is then divided by the sum of the weightings to yield a representative income. In general, poverty rates for children are higher than those for the entire population, except in Denmark, Finland, Japan, Korea, Norway, Slovenia, Sweden, and the United Kingdom.

2.6.1.e Concentrated Child Poverty in the US

According to the Annie E. Casey Foundation, 13% of children in the US were living in areas of concentrated poverty (poverty rates of 30% or more) in 2008-2012, up from 9% in 2000. These high-poverty census tracts are much more likely than others to have high rates of crime and violence, physical and mental health issues, unemployment and other problems.

See Chart Concentrated Child Poverty, US Source: Annie E. Casey Foundation

2.6.2 GENDER

The personal, social, and economic effects of gender stratification have in recent decades become the subject of intensive scientific study. Slowly these effects are gaining public awareness as well as the attention of policy makers.

Many studies show that globally systematic social discrimination based on gender limits the opportunities of women and girls, and hence deprives society of the social and economic contributions they would make if the development of their full capacities were supported. But the damage from gender inequity has other, equally damaging, systemic effects.

The devaluation of women and the feminine has led to a gendered system of values where so-called "masculine" rather than "feminine" values drive much of the social and economic agenda-setting. One result has been that the work of caring and caregiving, mostly performed by women and stereotypically considered "soft" or "feminine," is either not valued at all or undervalued at best – with negative results all around.

These kinds of systems dynamics help explain why studies indicate that the status of women is essential for understanding social and economic outcomes in a country. To illustrate, in its study Women, Men and the Global Quality of Life, the Center for Partnership Studies found that measures of the status of women can be an even better predictor of quality of life than conventional indicators such as GNP or GDP. For example, gender equity variables correlated more highly with overall literacy than GDP. For more on such studies, please refer to Section 4.4 below.

The status of women may be gauged from measuring the so-called "gender gap" in diverse domains such as employment, health, political participation, and educational attainment.

For example, in the domain of employment, it matters not only whether women lag behind men in terms of earnings (which they do), but also whether women are able to find employment in as varied a set of occupations as men, whether there is a "glass ceiling" for women in terms of the highest position within an organization that they can aspire to, and whether "the women's work" of caring for children, the elderly, and others in families is or is not supported by business and government policies.

Women's physical security is also a key measure of the status of women, as well as of a nation's social wealth. For example, countries that tolerate a high level of violence against girls and women reduce their nation's capacity to accumulate social wealth by not only countenancing the negative physical, mental, and emotional effects on women and girls, but by ignoring the effects on mothers' capacities to care for children. Moreover, a pernicious lesson children take away from the acceptability of domestic violence is that violence is an acceptable means of imposing one's will on others.

Ultimately then, the status of women affects what is considered normal or abnormal and what is or is not valued. Specifically, the status of women emerges as a key measure of whether or not a society is able to cultivate the value of care vital to creating and growing social wealth, rather than devaluing it as "soft" or stereotypically "feminine" – be it in women or men as well as in social and economic policy.

What follows are a variety of indicators that measure the status of women both directly and indirectly, once again primarily based on the more readily available data comparing OECD nations.

2.6.2.a Gender Gap in Earnings for OECD Countries

The "gender wage gap" is measured as the difference between male and female earnings expressed as a percentage of male earnings. The chart that follows shows that men typically earn more than women. Belgium, Poland and Spain are among the countries with smaller pay gaps. Greece and Portugal also have relatively low gender pay gaps based on average earnings. Austria, Israel, Japan and Korea have high gender pay gaps based on both median and average wage measures. The gender gap in earnings in the US is 22 percent, compared to the average OECD gap of 17.3%. Hungary and Norway have high gender gaps in terms of average earnings, relative to median earnings, but these numbers are biased by a disproportionally high gender gap at the top of the distribution. For these countries the gap between median earnings of males and females is a more reliable indicator.

See Chart Earnings Gap, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Data for the OECD earnings database on full-time earners are collected annually through both labor force surveys and household surveys. Depending on the country, earnings data provided can refer to hourly, weekly, monthly or average annual earnings on a gross or net basis. This means that the data is best presented as a relative measure, such as the gender wage gap (and in percentiles over the distribution of this gap) rather than earnings' differences in absolute terms. Gender differences may be slightly overestimated where measurement is based on a gross wage because of the inclusion of taxes and social security contributions (for example, second earners who are often women, will be subject to different tax thresholds than their partners in many countries).

For OECD countries, the data refers to full-time employees working more than 30 hours per week, while for non-OECD countries, the data was collected through EU-SILC for all employees working more than 15 hours per week. This is likely to produce artificially lower wage gaps for non-OECD countries.

2.6.2.b Gender Differences in Employment in OECD Countries

The chart that follows indicates that the OECD gender gap in employment rates varies considerably across countries. In 2011, it was greatest in Mexico and Turkey (above 35%), and the smallest in Estonia and the Nordic countries (below 10%), with the US registering a gap of approximately 10%. Full time employment rates indicate that the gender gaps in employment are wide in all OECD countries. For instance, in the Netherlands, where working part-time is common the FTE employment gap is considerably larger because women tend to work parttime more (61%) than men (17%).

See Chart Employment Gap, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

The calculations of gender differences in employment outcomes measure the difference between employment rates of men and women in terms of both full and part-time employment.

The definition of part-time work varies considerably across the OECD. Essentially three main approaches can be distinguished: i) a classification based on the worker's perception of her/his employment situation; ii) a cut-off (generally 30 or 35 hours per week) based on usual working hours, with persons usually working fewer hours being considered part-timers; iii) a comparable cut-off based on actual hours worked during the reference week.

Data are taken from both the OECD Employment Database and the European Labor Force Survey for European countries outside the OECD. For OECD countries, a harmonized definition of part-time work is used: part-time employment refers to persons who usually work less than 30 hours per week in their main job (data for Japan and Korea are based on actual hours, and for Switzerland concerns hours worked in all jobs of the respondent, see OECD Employment Outlook). The data for the non-OECD countries are based on respondent self-assessment of usual hours worked vis-à-vis the 30 hours threshold.

More: The calculations of gender differences in employment outcomes measure the difference between employment rates of men and women in terms of both full and parttime employment. To get better insight into the differences between the sexes, gender gaps are also presented as differences in the full-time equivalent (FTE) rates. This is the difference between men and women if they were all working for 30 hours or more per week in their main job. The FTE rate is defined as the proportion of men (or women) in paid employment, multiplied by the proportion of men (or women) in full-time employment.

2.6.2.c Occupational Distribution by Gender in OECD Countries

The gender composition of the workforce varies across economic sectors and occupations. The chart that follows shows the typical concentration of female employment in fewer occupations than men: on average, across the OECD, 50% of employed women work in 12 occupations, while this is 23 for men.

The greatest spread of female workers across occupations is in the US and Czech Republic, but gender differences are also relatively large. By contrast, half of the male and female workers are concentrated in a relatively small number of occupations in Greece, Ireland, Spain and Portugal.

See Chart Limited Female Employment, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

The International Standard Classification of Occupations (ISCO) is the most widely used system for the classification of workers over different categories of jobs and occupations. However, national standards of job classification do not always easily fit into the ISCO-coding system and different ways of defining and categorizing otherwise similar positions across countries can affect comparability. For example, the national definition of a "manager" varies across countries, which affects the likelihood of a woman being counted as such. The comparison also depends on the number of categories of jobs and occupations, which are not exactly similar from one country to another. The more disaggregated the categorization, the higher the estimation of gender differences in occupational distribution. For European countries the 4-digit ISCO classification of occupations has been used, with a distinction between 493 types of occupations. The classification differs for the US, where the number of categories is slightly higher at 508.

More: The difference in the distribution of occupations across male and female workers is considered in view of the International Standard Classification of Occupation (ISCO). Their 4-digit nomenclature has been used to classify occupational statuses.

2.6.2.d Management Positions by Gender in OECD Countries

Women are less likely than men to be in a management position; on average, across the OECD only one third of the managers are female.

There is considerable variation across countries. While this is not the case in top management positions, where women are still a very low percentage, overall the proportion of managers that are women is high in France, Poland, and the US, where women hold more than 35% of managerial positions. In contrast, women find it particularly difficult to progress up the career ladder in Luxembourg where only around 1 in 5 managers is a woman.

See Chart Women As Managers, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

The International Standard Classification of Occupations (ISCO) is the most widely used system for the classification of workers over different categories of jobs and occupations. However, national standards of job classification do not always easily fit into the ISCO-coding system and different ways of defining and categorizing otherwise similar positions across countries can affect comparability. For example, the national definition of a "manager" varies across countries, which obviously affects the likelihood of a woman being counted as such. The comparison also depends on the number of categories of jobs and occupations, which are not exactly similar from one country to another. The more disaggregated the categorization, the higher the estimation of gender differences in occupational distribution. For European countries the 4-digit ISCO classification of occupations has been used, with a distinction between 493 types of occupations. The classification differs for the US, where the number of categories is slightly higher at 508.

2.6.2.e Gender Gaps in Opportunities to Change Working Hours in OECD Countries

The chart that follows shows the extent to which male and female employees have some sort of control over their working hours. Flexibility in working time allows, for example, parents to adjust their working schedule to map with school and/or childcare center hours. In most countries (Note: there is no data for the US), with the exceptions of the UK, Greece, Belgium, France, Luxembourg, Hungary, Austria, and Turkey, a greater proportion of men (than women) have an opportunity to change working hours.

As will be discussed in the section on Care Investment Indicators (Section 3), other familyfriendly arrangements include extra-statutory leave from work arrangements; employerprovided childcare, out-of-school-hours-care, elderly care supports, and flexible working time arrangements.

See Chart Flex-Time Gap, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Indicators on family-friendly workplace supports are taken from different national surveys with different sample sizes, categorizations and guestions for employers and employees. Comparisons are therefore difficult.

More: Examples of flex-time practices are: allowing the start and end times to vary on the same day; the accumulation of credit or debit hours; full days off to compensate for accumulated credit hours, etc.

2.6.2.f Country Rankings in 2013 Global Gender Gap report of the World Economic Forum

The Global Gender Gap Index, published by the World Economic Forum, seeks to measure the gap between men and women along four dimensions: Economic Participation and Opportunity, Educational Attainment, Health and Survival, and Political Empowerment. Details on the construction of this index may be obtained from pp. 4-6 of the 2013 report.

Of the 136 countries surveyed in this report, the Nordic countries are shown to have the smallest gender gaps. Iceland, Norway, Finland, and Sweden have an overall ranking of first, second, third, and fourth respectively, while the US ranks twenty-third. Countries such as Saudi Arabia, Iran, Syria, Qatar, Pakistan, and Yemen have the largest gender gaps.

Although the US has an overall rank of twenty three, it comes in first along the dimension of Educational Attainment, albeit alongside several other countries, as the table indicates.

See Table Gender Gaps, Many Countries Source: World Economic Forum

2.6.2.g Violence against Women

According to the WHO, the highest rates of violence against women are to be found in Asia and the Eastern Mediterranean (37.7% and 37% respectively), though violence against women is a problem in all world regions.

See Figure Violence Rates, Many Countries Source: World Health Organization

The health impact of such violence is considerable, as illustrated by the following infographic, which shows how this violence affects women's mental and physical health, including reproductive health, in addition to injuring and killing them, with 38% of murders of women globally being at the hands of an intimate partner (and this is only of reported murders).

See Figure Impact of Violence, Many Countries Source: World Health Organization

Data from Womenstats (http://womanstats.org/) further substantiates the prevalence of violence against women in its many forms:

- Rate of murder of women: Russia and Brazil are among countries with a high rate of murder of women, while the US registers a medium rate, and most of Europe registering a low rate.

See Map Murder Rates, Many Countries Source: WomenStats

2. HUMAN CAPACITY INDICATORS:SOCIAL EQUITY

- Prevalence of rape: While rape is a global problem, the highest rates are in parts of Africa and the Middle East, Asia. Alongside Canada, Mexico, the UK, and the Nordic countries, the US registers a medium rate.

See Map Rape, Many Countries Source: WomenStats

- Trafficking of women: The selling and/or kidnapping of girls and women for the sex trade and other forms of slavery is a universal scourge, with much of the Middle East and Southeast Asia as well as parts of Africa not even having adequate laws prohibiting trafficking in girls and women.

See Map Trafficking, Many Countries Source: WomenStats

- Women's physical security: Globally problems of physical security are commonplace for women, with surveys showing that in the Middle East, Southeast Asia, and parts of Africa women completely lack physical security, often due to traditions of violence in families and other intimate relations. In most of Western Europe, and Sweden, women have fairly high levels of physical security, while in the US and Canada, they have moderate levels of physical security.

See Map Physical Security, Many Countries Source: WomenStats

2.6.2.h Women's Poverty

The undervaluing of care work has a devastating effect on women worldwide, as shown by the statistics on women's disproportionate poverty in both poor and affluent nations.

According to the National Center for Law and Economic Justice, in the US,

"Poverty is a women's issue; female-headed households are more likely to be poor. In 2012, over five million more women than men were living below the poverty line; and two million more women than men were living in deep poverty. For women aged 18 to 64, the poverty rate was 15.4%, compared to 11.9% for men of the same age range."

According to a National Women's Law Center report, in the US,

"The poverty rate for women was higher in 2012 (14.5 percent) than in 2000 (11.5 percent). The extreme poverty rate for women increased to 6.3 percent in 2012 from 4.4 percent in 2000."

The following chart illustrates this trend. It also shows that children's poverty in the US is even higher than women's poverty (though they are related), and that both of these poverty rates have been consistently higher than men's poverty over the last decade or so.

See Chart Trends in Poverty, US Source: National Women's Law Center Elderly women are so likely to live in poverty that, as figure 13 on p. 26 of a US Government Accountability Office report indicates, for the age group of 65+, women are twice as likely to be poor as men.

Moreover, in every racial/ethnic group, women's poverty is higher than that of men.

2.6.3 RACE/ETHNICITY

Most developed countries are today populated by multi-racial and multi-ethnic communities, some of whom could claim to be natives, others of whom are first-generation immigrants or descended from immigrants that voluntarily settled these countries, and still others whose ancestors were transported to these countries by means of force.

These multiple demographics are mirrored in social and economic statistics such as those pertaining to the distribution of income and wealth, as well as to factors that determine such distributional outcomes as access to education, health and political representation. These statistics show that, despite ideals of solidarity and cooperation between different races and ethnicities, significant and persistent inequities prevail, creating the potential for social instability that often retard the accumulation of social wealth when it does not destroy such wealth altogether.

While these inequalities are a disturbing issue in all nations, the data that follow are from the US where racial and ethnic categories are clearly delineated and where persistent racial and ethnic inequality is a pressing problem.

2.6.3.a Income and Wealth Disparities for Different Racial Groups in the US

Among the four principal racial groups, Black households have consistently earned the lowest income over the last 4 decades.

See Chart Income Disparities, US Source: Bill Moyers/US Census Bureau

The wealth gap between Black and White households has grown significantly over the last 30 years, and in 2010, the average family wealth for White households was more than 6 times that for Black households.

See Chart Wealth Disparities, US Source: Bill Moyers/Urban Institute

2.6.3.b Poverty Rates for Black, Hispanic and White Americans

As of 2011, the poverty rate for Black Americans is higher than that for Hispanic Americans, and more than twice that for White Americans.

See Chart Poverty, US Source: Bill Moyers/US Census Bureau

2.6.3.c Unemployment Rates for Black and White Americans

For the last 50 years (1964-2012), the unemployment rate among Black Americans has been almost consistently twice as high as that among White Americans.

See Chart Unemployment, US Source: Bill Moyers/Economic Policy Institute

2.6.3.d Incarceration Rates by Race in the US

In 2010, incarceration rates among Black men were almost 2.5 times as high as that among Hispanic men and almost 10 times as high as that among White men.

See Chart Incarceration, US Source: Bill Moyers/Pew Research Center

2.6.3.e Treatment of Racial Groups by Credit Markets in the US

Even when they had good credit ratings, Black and Hispanic Americans paid higher rates on mortgage loans in 2004-2008, compared to White Americans.

See Chart Credit, US Source: Bill Moyers/Economic Policy Institute

2.6.3.f Public High-School Graduation Rates by Race/Ethnicity in the US

During 2009-2010, the public high-school graduation rate for White (non-Hispanic) Americans was above 66% in most states. The corresponding figures for Hispanic Americans, Black (non-Hispanic) Americans, and American Indian or Alaska Native (non-Hispanic) Americans were 47%, 47% and 38% respectively.

See Map High-School Graduation for Whites (Non-Hispanics), US Source: Diversity Data Kids

See Map High-School Graduation for Blacks (Non-Hispanics), US Source: Diversity Data Kids

2.6.3.g Infant Mortality by Race/Ethnicity in the US

During 2006-2008, the highest infant mortality rate recorded among states for White (non-Hispanic) Americans was 7.67. The corresponding numbers for Hispanic Americans, Black (non-Hispanic) Americans, and American Indian or Alaska Native (non-Hispanic) Americans were 7.94, 18.54 and 15.37 respectively.

See Map Infant Mortality for Blacks (Non-Hispanics), US Source: Diversity Data Kids

2.6.3.h Percent of Working Parents in a "Bad" Job (No Health Insurance, No Pension, Below Family Economic Security Wage) and Not Eligible for FMLA (Family & Medical Leave Act) Coverage by Race/Ethnicity in the US

During 2007-2011, the percent of working parents in a "bad" job was, on average (across states), 18.4% for White (non-Hispanic) Americans, 31.4% for Hispanic Americans, and 20.5% for Black (non-Hispanic) Americans. Caveat: Data on Black (non-Hispanic) Americans was available for only about half of the states.

See Map Job Quality for Whites (Non-Hispanics), US Source: Diversity Data Kids

See Map Job Quality for Blacks (Non-Hispanics), US Source: Diversity Data Kids

2.6.3.i Child Poverty Rate by Race/Ethnicity in the US

During 2008-2012, the child poverty rates was, on average (across states), 12.5% for White (non-Hispanic) Americans, 31.5% for Hispanic Americans, 37.1% for Black (non-Hispanic) Americans, and 35.3% for American Indian or Alaska Native (non-Hispanic) Americans.

See Map Child Poverty for Whites (Non-Hispanics), US Source: Diversity Data Kids

See Map Child Poverty for Blacks (Non-Hispanics), US Source: Diversity Data Kids

2.6.3.j Children Living in High Poverty by Race/Ethnicity in the US

The poverty rate for children living in high poverty (poverty rates of 30% or more) was 30% for Blacks or African Americans, and 23% for Hispanics or Latinos, in 2008-2012, compared to 4% for Non-Hispanic Whites.
See Table Child High Poverty for Whites (Non-Hispanics), US Source: Annie E. Casey Foundation

2.6.3.k Teen Births by Race/Ethnicity in the US

Teen birth rates (per 1000) were 44 for Blacks or African Americans, and 46 for Hispanics or Latinos, in 2012, compared to 20 for Non-Hispanic Whites. As the table below indicates, these disparities have been narrowing over time but they still remain very large.

See Table Teen Births, US Source: Annie E. Casey Foundation

2.6.3.1 American Human Development Index by Race/Ethnicity

The American Human Development Index is a modified version of the traditional Human Development Index that aims to better represent the US context. According to a report published by the Social Science Research Council, Native Americans are one of the two worst performers (the others being either African Americans or Latinos) in the categories of Human Development, Health, Education, and Income, as the following info-graphic indicates.

See Figure Human Development, US Source: Social Science Research Council

2.6.3.m National Urban League's 2014 Equality Index

In 2014, the National Urban League published it's Equality Index, which describes how well African Americans and Hispanics are doing relative to White Americans in the domains of economics, education, health, social justice and civic engagement. An index of 100% in any one of these domains would indicate perfect equality, and any number less than 100% would indicate a disadvantage for African Americans and Hispanics. An overall index is arrived at by computing a weighted average of the indices in the different domains. The 2014 overall index came in at 71.2%. The greatest inequality was registered in the domain of economics (55.5%), whereas social justice fared only slightly better (56.8%). Inequality was present but much lower in health (76.8%) and education (76.8%), whereas in civic engagement, a large increase in African American voter participation in the 2012 Presidential elections meant significant gains towards equality (104.7%). For details on this index, please see the full report 2014 State of Black America

More: For an overview of the 2014 Equality Index, see this video interview of Valerie Wilson, Economist and Vice President of Research at the National Urban League.

2.6.3.n American Indian-White Employment-Rate Gap by State in the US

The unemployment rate during 2009-2011 among American Indians was higher than that of Whites nationally and in every US state, with the difference being as high as 32.7 percentage points in South Dakota.

See Map Employment Gap, US Source: Economic Policy Institute

More: For more details, see http://www.ep

2.6.3.0 Living Standard for Native Americans Relative to the Total Population in the US

With respect to basic living characteristics such as availability of electricity, kitchen facilities and phone services, American Indians and Alaska Natives lag the average American, as the following graph (from November 2012) indicates. Unemployment and poverty rates are also much higher for American Indians and Alaska Natives relative to the average American.

See Chart Living Standard, US Source: National Congress of American Indians

More: For more details, see http://www.no BB_2012_November_Demographic_Profil

2.6.4 OTHER SOCIAL/DEMOGRAPHIC STRATIFICATIONS

Gender and race/ethnicity are not the only dimensions along which a society may find itself divided and fragmented. Broadly, any marker of identity can become the locus of inequity and conflict. For example, in India, it could be caste, or religion, whereas in China, it could be place of dwelling (e.g. rural vs. urban), and in Latin America, it could be nativity (indigenous vs. those of European descent). Whatever the social stratification based on identity, there is the possibility that the stratification becomes the occasion for arbitrary discrimination, adversely affecting not only the allocative efficiency of the economy as a whole but also the flourishing of human capital and therefore the quality and quantity of social wealth as we understand it.

In terms of documenting and tracking different types of social/demographic stratification, the most extensive work of data collection and reporting relates to the status of minorities, be they in the form of indigenous groups, or immigrants, or members of a particular religious group. Below are a few measures for different groups of countries.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
bi.org/publication/native-american-white-jobs-gap/

cai.org/policy-reso le.pdf	earch-center	r/research-da	ta/

2.6.4.a Level of Religious Tensions in a Broad Cross-Section of Countries

According to the International Country Risk Guide (ICRG), religious tensions stem from the domination of society and/or governance by a single religious group that seeks to replace civil law by religious law and to exclude other religions from the political and/or social process, and from the suppression of religious freedoms. A measure of religious tensions in a country ranges from 0-6 with 6 representing the least tensions, and is available for 140 countries in 2010. European and Latin American countries receive high scores, while Asian countries receive low scores.

See Chart Religious Tensions, Many Countries Source: Indices of Social Development

2.6.4.b Attitudes towards Immigrants in European Countries

The European Social Survey reports, for 20 countries in 2010, the proportion of the public that think that immigration is bad for culture. The number is around 50% for Greece, Cyprus, Czech Republic, and Russia, but only around 10% in Sweden, and 8% in Finland.

See Chart Attitudes Towards Immigrants, European Countries Source: Indices of Social Development

2.7 **ENTREPRENEURSHIP** AND INNOVATION **MEASURES**

In the new knowledge-service era, we are faced with unprecedented personal, economic, social, and environmental challenges. This report has already highlighted the pressing need for building high-quality human capital so that these challenges may be confronted and overcome successfully. The mechanisms through which such a confrontation and overcoming become possible are enterprise and innovation.

Entrepreneurship and innovation not only create jobs and increase economic productivity, but they also enable the cultivation of human virtues such as courage, honesty, and generosity, and the actualization of human values such as trust in and respect for one's self and others.

Human beings have a natural affinity to be curious and creative, and to seek control over their own lives. Therefore, successful entrepreneurs and innovators are not only exemplary leaders, but they are also an inspiration to younger generations. Their leadership and inspiration are critical components of social wealth because the ability of a society to adapt to new situations and challenges is greatly enhanced by the creativity and dynamism of such individuals.

Accordingly, this subcategory of Human Capacity Indicators attempts to measure the flourishing of entrepreneurship and innovation as vital aspects of the flourishing of human capacity in a society.

2.7.1 NEW BUSINESS DENSITY IN 120+ COUNTRIES

This measure reflects the number of newly registered firms with limited liability per 1000 working-age people (ages 15-64) per calendar year, for years ranging from 2009 to 2012 (as per data availability). Limited liability is a concept whereby the financial liability of the firm's members is limited to the value of their investment in the company. Partnerships and sole proprietorships are not covered by this concept because of the differences with respect to their definition and regulation worldwide.

As the following table indicates, countries such as Hong Kong, Cyprus, Luxembourg, and New Zealand top the rankings, while countries from Africa and Asia come in at the bottom. Among OECD countries, Australia, and the UK also demonstrate high levels of entrepreneurship (after Luxembourg and New Zealand).

2. HUMAN CAPACITY INDICATORS: ENTREPRENEURSHIP AND INNOVATION



There is no data on this measure for either the US or Canada.

See Table New Business Density, Many Countries Source: World Bank

2.7.2 PATENT APPLICATIONS FILED BY RESIDENTS IN 80+ COUNTRIES

This measure tracks the number of worldwide patent applications filed by residents of a particular country in 2012 through the Patent Cooperation Treaty procedure or with the country's patent office for exclusive rights for an invention, usually a product or process that provides a new way of doing something or offers a new technical solution to a problem.

The following table indicates that China was, by far, the highest innovating country in 2012. The US comes in third worldwide (after Japan), with a number of patents significantly larger than that of any European country. Newly "emerging" countries such as Russia, India, and Brazil are also in the top 20, but, by this measure, they innovate far less than the first three countries on the list. The only Nordic nation in the top 20 is Sweden, at 20th position.

See Table Patent Applications by Residents, Many Countries Source: World Bank

2.7.3 RESEARCHERS IN R&D IN 60+ COUNTRIES

Researchers in R&D are professionals engaged in the conception or creation of new knowledge, products, processes, methods or systems and in the management of the projects concerned. Postgraduate PhD students engaged in R&D are also included.

Data from 2011 indicate that the three Nordic countries of Finland, Iceland, and Denmark have the highest number of researchers in R&D (per million people), with Norway and Sweden also figuring in the top 10. The US ranks 17, after Singapore (rank 5), Portugal (rank 11), and Slovenia (rank 14).

See Table Researchers in R&D, Many Countries Source: World Bank

2.7.4 HIGH-TECH EXPORTS IN 110+ COUNTRIES

High-tech exports are products with high R&D intensity, such as in aerospace, computers, pharmaceuticals, scientific instruments, and electrical machinery. Data is available for 2012 on high-tech exports as a share of manufactured exports. In countries such as Philippines, Singapore, and Costa Rica, this share is above 40%, whereas in the US, it is only 18%. European countries that outperform the US include Switzerland, France, Ireland, the UK, Netherlands, and Norway.

See Table High-Tech Exports, Many Countries Source: World Bank

2.7.5 LEGATUM PROSPERITY INDEX OF ENTREPRENEURSHIP & OPPORTUNITY IN 140+ COUNTRIES

One of the sub-indices that constitute the Legatum Institute's 2014 Prosperity Index is an index of Entrepreneurship & Opportunity, which measures a country's entrepreneurial environment, its promotion of innovative activity, and the evenness of opportunity. Among 142 countries, the US ranks 11 in this sub-index, with all the Nordic countries surpassing the US (Sweden and Denmark at ranks 1 and 2 respectively, Finland at 4, Norway at 7, and Iceland at 9). The other countries that rank ahead of the US are Switzerland, Luxembourg, Hong Kong, the UK, and the Netherlands.

2.7.6 GLOBAL INNOVATION INDEX FOR 140+ COUNTRIES

The Global Innovation Index 2014 captures the state of innovation along both an input dimension (elements of a national economy that enable innovation: institutions, human capital and research, infrastructure, market sophistication, and business sophistication) and an output dimensions (innovation outputs: knowledge and technology outputs, and creative outputs). Data is available for 143 countries, and shows the US at rank 6 among them, behind Switzerland (rank 1), the UK (2), Sweden (3), Finland (4), and the Netherlands (5).

3. CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS

Social Wealth Economic Indicators reveal the drivers in a society that make possible the development and maintenance of our most important assets: our human capacities. This section looks at the extent of awareness of and investment in these drivers, again comparing the United States with other nations, especially other developed ones.

So while the previous section on Human Capacity Indicators primarily focuses on what statisticians call outputs (present conditions), this section focuses on inputs (the factors that produce different outputs or outcomes).

In other words, social wealth hinges on inputs, and just as in the case of financial wealth, these inputs must be accumulated. Understanding this process of accumulation requires measuring how the different institutions of society, such as government and businesses, invest in the creation of social wealth.

CARE INVESTMENT SUB-CATEGORIES



INTRODUCTION TO CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS

Since caring and caregiving are foundational for creating and growing social wealth, the successful accumulation of social wealth requires that government and business leaders enact policies that promote caring as a core cultural value. A first step towards this goal is to ensure that economic indicators measure the value of care work, including the unpaid work of caring and caregiving performed in the household and community economy. These economic measurements are a foundation for a caring economic system where government and business policies and practices encourage and support caring and caregiving.

Such policies and practices may take the form of adequate levels of public funding for health care, childcare, and other caring activities. They may consist of laws and business practices that grant parents paid leave for the care of children and a certain degree of autonomy to balance their time at work with their time at home. Caring for the future of society also means caring for the environment, so public and private sector investment in environmental protection matters for promoting the cultural value of caring.

The Care Investment Indicators that follow include a variety of measures that describe the degree to which the public and private sectors in a country are engaged in nurturing and supporting a culture of caring that promotes human capacity development.



CARE INVESTMENT WHERE THE US STANDS

- The US is the only developed nation with no national funding for paid parental leave.
- The US invests less than half as much in family benefits as other OECD nations, investing 1% of GDP in family spending, as compared to the OECD average of 2.6% GDP.
- The US invests one third as much in environmental protection as the EU average. •
- Among major developed nations, the US invests the least in early childhood care and education.
- In most developed nations, long-term care (LTC) work is predominately publicly funded. The Nordic countries, along with the Netherlands - where these gender norms have been replaced by more flexible gender roles where men do more of the care work - are the highest public spenders at 1.5% GDP or higher. In the US, public spending on LTC is just above 0.5% GDP.
- Although direct care is the fastest growing job sector in the country, it is also one of the lowest-paid. The population aged 65+ is projected to grow 90% by 2030, opening thousands upon thousands of jobs in the care work sector. However, currently care workers are paid about \$10 an hour. That is \$7 an hour less than the average wage earner in the US.

3.1 GOVERNMENT **INVESTMENT IN** CARE WORK

While both the public and private (for-profit and not-for-profit) sectors can influence the extent to which the act/work of caring is valued, the public sector has an especially important role because of the societal tasks that have been deemed in most countries a government's responsibility, such as education and health care. The reason for this is that the benefits resulting from a healthy and well-educated population accrue across the entire society, and thus society as a whole ought to contribute to the cost of ensuring the provision of an education and health care system. In addition, the government has the infrastructure and financial capacity to manage and provide services. This investment in human infrastructure is critical for both wellbeing and economic effectiveness, especially in the postindustrial knowledge-information era.

Today, policymakers face a multitude of choices in terms of how to distribute what are often shrinking budgets across not only healthcare and education, but a large range of public programs. In making these funding/investment choices, governments can support and encourage caring and caregiving, thereby building social wealth. Or they can chose to neglect and destroy social wealth by failing to invest in this essential component of personal, social, and economic success.

Measures of this investment include a number of components. One essential component is investment in caring for and educating children through investment in childcare and early education, education for caregiving (such as education for childcare and for parenting), pay for professions that entail caregiving (such as childcare and elementary school teaching), family benefits (both cash and in kind), and mandated paid leave for caregiving and family time.

Another important area, especially in our time when the elderly population is soaring, is investment in caring for the elderly. A society's elders are its repositories of wisdom, and so deserve a special consideration from governments. Populations all across the developed world are aging rapidly, yet the wages and working conditions for caregivers to the elderly are generally poor, inhibiting employment growth and contributing to growing excess demand in the important sector of long-term care (also sometimes called direct-care). Our measures of government investment in care work include, therefore, measures of public expenditure on long-term care and policy actions that mandate leave for caregivers to the elderly.

3. CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS: GOVERNMENT INVESTMENTS IN CARE WORK



3.1.1 GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT IN FAMILIES IN OECD COUNTRIES

In OECD countries, governments support caring and caregiving by instituting family-friendly legislation. This may take several forms and in what follows, we look at three different forms of government support: all kinds of spending on families, specifically cash assistance, and spending on children.

3.1.1.a Public Spending on Family Benefits in OECD Countries

Public spending on family benefits in OECD countries includes financial support that is exclusively for families and children. It does not include spending in other social policy areas (such as health and housing) that also assist families, though not exclusively.

The chart that follows indicates that OECD countries spent on average 2.6% of their GDP on family benefits in 2009. It also shows that there are large variations across countries. Whilst public spending on family benefits was above 4% of GDP in Luxembourg, Ireland, and the UK (in the latter two partly due to increase in income-tested benefits during the economic crisis), it was only around 1% of GDP in Korea and Mexico, and a little over 1% in the US.

See Chart GDP Share of Family Benefits, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Information on cash transfers and in-kind benefits concern budgetary allocations that can largely be derived from administrative records on which national statistical offices base their statistics. By contrast, information on the value of fiscal support for families concerns estimates by tax authorities. Nevertheless, as the chart shows, not including estimates on the value of tax support for children would distort international comparison of public spending on family benefits.

Data on cash transfers for Ireland, New Zealand, and the UK include spending on categorical income support benefits for sole parent families. Other countries also support sole parent families in need, but through general social assistance type payments (which do not allow for separate identification of public spending on sole parent families). As a result, the spending on cash transfers in the chart is relatively high for the aforementioned three countries.

Coverage of spending on family and community services in the OECD Social Expenditure database may be limited as such services are often provided, and/or co-financed, by local governments. The latter may receive general block grants to finance their activities, and reporting requirements may not be sufficiently detailed for central statistical agencies to have a detailed view of the nature of local spending. In Nordic countries (where local government is heavily involved in service delivery) this does not lead to large gaps in measurement of spending, but it does for some countries with a federal structure, for example, Canada and Switzerland.

More: Public spending on family benefits typically takes one of three forms. The first is child-related cash transfers to families with children. This includes child allowances, with payment levels that in some countries vary with the age of the child, and sometimes are income-tested; public income support payments during periods of parental leave; and income support for single parent families.

The second is public spending on services for families with children. This includes direct financing and subsidizing of providers of childcare and early education facilities; public childcare support through earmarked payments to parents; public spending on assistance for young people (and residential facilities); public spending on family services, including centre-based facilities and home-help services for families in need.

The third is financial support for families provided through the tax system. This includes tax exemptions (e.g. income from child benefits that is not included in the tax base); child tax allowances (amounts for children that are deducted from gross income and are not included in taxable income); and child tax credits (amounts deducted from the tax liability).

In many OECD countries, including Belgium, Germany, France, Ireland, Portugal, and Switzerland, support for families with children is embedded in the tax unit, so that at a given income level, the larger the family the lower the taxable income. These measures may not be tax expenditures (they do not establish a deviation from the national standard tax system), but such policies clearly establish financial support for families with children, and indicators on such support are included in the data.

The proportional total amount spent in cash, services and tax measures is variable. The majority of countries spend a higher proportion on cash benefits than on services or tax benefits. Exceptions include Chile, Denmark, France, Iceland, Israel, Italy, Korea, Mexico, Netherlands, Norway, Spain, Sweden and the US, where spending on services is same or higher. Also, the proportion spent on tax breaks towards family is of considerable size in Belgium, the Czech Republic, France, Germany, Japan, the Netherlands, Slovenia, and the US (more than 0.5% of GDP).

3.1.1.b Family Cash Benefits in OECD Countries

Family cash benefits (FCB) are monetary transfers to families, generally towards the cost of raising children. The table that follows provides an overview of family benefit schemes across countries.

In over half of the countries, FCB amounts do not depend on family income and are paid as universal benefits. Among those countries, Austria, France, and Germany pay additional incometested benefits to low-income families, families with young children, or unemployed parents.

In most countries, benefits are restricted to families with children. Universal FCB for a one-child family are most generous in Hungary, Ireland and Luxembourg, where cash transfers for such a family can exceed 5% of the average wage of the average worker. In several countries, FCB amounts depend on family income. For example, in Ireland, benefits decrease after an income limit with withdrawal rates that vary with the number of children.

In Australia, Canada, Germany, New Zealand, and the UK, cash transfers may take the form of "refundable" or "non-wasteable" tax credits, as these benefits involve cash transfers to families. In these countries, the family tax credits are income-tested, except in Germany. In the latter country, the tax credit does not phase out when earnings increase. As with most of the universal FCBs, the payment rate on the tax credit increases with the number of children but only from the fourth child onwards.

The table shows that the maximum benefit for one child aged 3-12 represents 2% of the average wage of a worker in the US, whereas the numbers for Australia, Canada, Denmark, Germany, and New Zealand are between 6 and 7%, 5%, 4%, 5% and 9% respectively.

See Table Family Cash Benefits, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Note: For the US, the table fails to report the provision (according to 26 U.S.C. Sec. 24) of a Child Tax Credit, which reduces tax liability for families making less than \$130,000. After \$110,000 it phases out at the rate of \$50 for each additional \$1,000 (or portion of \$1,000) earned above \$110,000. The child tax credit is available to taxpayers who have a "gualifying child" within a family making less than \$130K per year. The full credit is only available if the family makes less than \$110K per year. A person is a "qualifying child" if he or she has not attained the age of 17 by the end of the taxable year and meets the requirements of 26 U.S.C. Sec. 152(c). In general, a qualifying child is any individual for whom the taxpayer can claim a dependency exemption and who is the taxpayer's son or daughter (or descendent of either), stepson or stepdaughter (or descendent of either), or eligible foster child. The per-child amount was originally capped at \$1000 by The American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012.

Data Issues

Data for family benefits have been taken from a questionnaire sent to national authorities in the context of their Benefits and Wages database.

Family benefits may be unrelated to the income of the family or they can be income-tested. Where they are income-tested, benefits are usually paid only when family income is below a specified level, and child benefits are reduced as the family income increases. The nature of such benefit rules varies across countries.

More: The value of family benefits concerns child allowances for families with children aged 3-12 (in some countries payment rates vary with the age of the child).

The table also shows the maximum age of children at which families are eligible to FCB if children have income of their own, are married, or do not live with their parents. Payment rates can be uniform, but more often they vary by age and/or number of children across countries. The different age profiles of child benefit amounts are referred to in the third column of the table: a "+" and "-" indicate that benefit amounts for children increase or decrease with age, respectively.

Universal FCB may vary depending on the household's work situation. For example, in Belgium, FCB are increased from the seventh month of unemployment.

3.1.1.c Public Expenditures for Children by Age Groups in OECD Countries

The table that follows compares public expenditure per child in each of the three major stages of childhood in OECD countries in 2009. The three age groups covered are: early childhood (ages 0-5 years), middle childhood (ages 6-11 years), and late childhood (ages 12-17 years).

Most countries show an increase in spending as children get older, with most spending in late childhood. Iceland, Denmark, and Mexico have significantly higher spending in middle childhood than in late childhood. Iceland is the only country in which social expenditure decreases from early to middle to late childhood. The US is one of the highest spenders in middle and late childhood, but one of the lowest in early childhood.

The types of spending include: cash benefits and tax breaks, childcare, other benefits in kind, and education (primary and secondary).

See Table Public Spending on Children, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Social expenditure figures are taken from the OECD Social Expenditure Database (SOCX) while education spending and enrolment figures are from the OECD Education Database. Non-central government spending amounts are not readily available for certain countries and are not captured in SOCX. This limitation needs to be borne in mind for more decentralized federal member countries, for example, Canada and Switzerland, as figures in this indicator may be underreporting the total amount of public spending on children for these OECD countries.

The spending profiles reported in this indicator include cash benefit amounts adjusted for direct tax. However, spending on in-kind benefits and education is not adjusted for taxation. All spending figures are disaggregated using the rules for each benefit (for example, eligibility by age or enrolment in education, and payment amounts) into child age-cohorts. The sizes of child-age cohorts are defined by population figures by age of children and are taken from OECD official data sources.

The difference between spending directly attributed to the child and that which is attributed to the family is not distinguished. All cash transfers are provided to families of children with no enforcement by law on how this cash is spent. Typically adults in families make decisions on how money is spent, and spending may or may not be on the child. On the other hand, in-kind benefits such as education can be attributed directly to the child.

Some child-related cash transfers simply provide money with no additional requirements imposed (for example, child benefits), while other cash transfers have conditions attached (for example, social insurance contributions, for the parent to be on leave, or work conditions). Analysis undertaken for this indicator makes no distinction in value between the conditional and non-conditional forms of cash transfer.

More: Public spending on children by age group and by type of spending is calculated using data on public spending on education, social expenditure data, benefit rules, and enrolment rates.

3.1.2 GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT IN CHILDCARE AND EARLY EDUCATION IN OECD COUNTRIES

<u>3.1.2.a Percentage of GDP for Public Funding for Childcare and Early Education in</u> **OECD** Countries

The chart that follows measures all public financial support (in cash, in-kind, or through the tax system) for families with children participating in formal day-care services (e.g. crèches, day care centers, and family day care for children under 3), and pre-school institutions (including kindergartens and day-care centers which usually provide an educational content as well as traditional care for children aged from 3 to 5, inclusive).

In 2009, total public spending on these outside services was over 1.0% of GDP in France, the Nordic countries, and the UK. It was below 0.4% of GDP in the US, Portugal, Estonia, Slovak Republic, Cyprus, Poland and Switzerland.

See Chart GDP Share of Public Spending on Early Childcare, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Public expenditure on childcare and early education services is taken from the bi-annual OECD Social Expenditure data collection and the annual UOE (UNESCO/OECD/Eurostat) data collection on education respectively. Data for non-OECD countries is taken from Eurostat statistics. However, it only covers expenditure on pre-primary education (ISCED-0) not on childcare for the under 3s. All data collections used here refer to 2009. GDP data is taken from the OECD national accounts database. Public expenditure on pre-primary and childcare per child were converted into USD using OECD purchasing power parity rates.

In order to get a better comparison of childcare support, indicators were adjusted for crossnational differences in the compulsory age of entry into primary school. For example, in some (Nordic) countries children enter primary school at age 7, while attending pre-primary schooling the year beforehand. In order to improve the comparison, expenditure on these 6 year olds was excluded (using estimates derived on the basis of available data on spending on education and the number of 6 year olds). Similarly, for countries where children enter school at age 5 (and which are not included in the childcare and pre-school data), such as Australia, New Zealand and the UK, pre-school expenditure data was adjusted by adding up the expenditure corresponding to children aged 5 years who are enrolled in primary school.

Local governments often play a key role in financing, and sometimes provide childcare services. This spending is recorded in Nordic countries, but in some other (often federal) countries, it is not properly captured in the data and it is much more difficult to get a good view of public support for childcare across such countries. This is because local governments may use different funding streams to finance childcare services, for example, non-earmarked general block-grants, as in Canada (no data presented here), or because information on spending by local governments on childcare is not reported to national authorities, for example, in Switzerland (data presented here do not include all local government spending on childcare and thus underestimates public spending on day-care). These issues are not restricted to federal countries. In the Netherlands, municipalities can provide childcare support for their inhabitants, and they may finance this out of the general block-grant to municipalities. Also, they can use the central government funding stream to municipalities to support labor

market integration for income support recipients, to finance, for example, childcare support for social assistance clients.

More: Most countries spend more on pre-school care than childcare, which could partly be a reflection of coverage of a larger age group. Pre-school spending is highest at over 0.7% of GDP in Bulgaria, Denmark, Iceland, Israel, New Zealand, and Romania, while childcare spending is only over 0.7% in the Nordic countries.

3.1.2.b Public Funding for Childcare and Pre-School per Child in OECD Countries

The chart that follows shows the expenditure on childcare divided by the number of children in a country aged under three. Public spending on pre-school care and education per child is calculated by dividing public spending on educational institutions by the number of children enrolled in those programs.

As the chart indicates, there is relatively limited variation in public spending on early education of 3 to 5 year olds; the average was around USD PPP 3600 per child in 2008, and only Finland, Japan, Korea, Mexico, Poland, and the Slovak republic spent less than USD PPP 2500 per child.

There is much more variety in spending on formal childcare per child not yet three years of age. It is highest in Nordic countries at around USD PPP 5700 or more.

Lower public spending on childcare in southern European countries is typical, as informal care is predominantly used for the younger children and mainstream participation in pre-school begins earlier (often at age three). Public spending on childcare per child is typically also lower in countries where private provision of day care is predominant, as for example, in the US. In countries such as Japan and Korea, household expenditure plays a significant role in care and education services throughout the early years.

See Chart Public Spending on Early Childcare, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Public expenditure on childcare and early education services is taken from the bi-annual OECD Social Expenditure data collection and the annual UOE (UNESCO/OECD/Eurostat) data collection on education respectively. Data for non-OECD countries is taken from Eurostat statistics. However, it only covers expenditure on pre-primary education (ISCED-0) not on childcare for the under 3s. All data collections used here refer to 2009. GDP data is taken from the OECD national accounts database. Public expenditure on pre-primary and childcare per child were converted into USD using OECD purchasing power parity rates.

In order to get a better comparison of childcare support, indicators were adjusted for cross-national differences in the compulsory age of entry into primary school. For example, in some (Nordic) countries children enter primary school at age 7, while attending pre-primary schooling the year beforehand. In order to improve the comparison, expenditure on these 6 year olds was excluded (using estimates derived on the basis of available data on spending on education and the number of 6 year olds). Similarly, for countries where children enter school at age 5 (and which are not included in the childcare and pre-school data), such as Australia, New Zealand and the UK, pre-school expenditure data was adjusted by adding up the expenditure corresponding to children aged 5 years who are enrolled in primary school.

Local governments often play a key role in financing, and sometimes provide childcare services. This

spending is recorded in Nordic countries, but in some other (often federal) countries, it is not properly captured in the data and it is much more difficult to get a good view of public support for childcare across such countries. This is because local governments may use different funding streams to finance childcare services, for example, non-earmarked general block-grants, as in Canada (no data presented here), or because information on spending by local governments on childcare is not reported to national authorities, for example, in Switzerland (data presented here do not include all local government spending on childcare and thus underestimates public spending on day-care). These issues are not restricted to federal countries. In the Netherlands, municipalities can provide childcare support for their inhabitants, and they may finance this out of the general block-grant to municipalities. Also, they can use the central government funding stream to municipalities to support labor market integration for income support recipients, to finance, for example, childcare support for social assistance clients.

3.1.3 GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT IN EDUCATION

3.1.3.a Public Spending on Education as Percentage of GDP in OECD Countries

Public expenditure on education as a percentage of GDP gives an indication of how a country prioritizes education in relation to its overall allocation of resources. In the chart that follows, public expenditure on education includes spending on schools, universities, and other public and private institutions involved in delivering or supporting educational services.

All OECD countries invest a substantial proportion of national resources on education. Taking into account only public sources of funds, OECD countries, on average, spend around 4.6% of their GDP on educational institutions at primary, secondary, and tertiary levels.

However, total expenditure on education ranges from 5.5% of GDP or more in the Nordic countries to around 3% in Japan, Luxembourg, and the Slovak Republic. Public spending on education in the US is slightly above the OECD average.

See Chart GDP Share of Public Spending on Education, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

The organization of education systems varies between countries as does the length of time for a student to complete an educational level. This makes primary programs more costly in some countries than others. For example, in Iceland, the typical age group ranges from 6 to 12 years inclusive (7 years); whereas in Germany it is 6 to 10 years inclusive (5 years) and in Hungary only 6 to 9 years inclusive (4 years). The length of the program thus affects the amount of educational investment per education level and does not necessarily reflect a country's policy to place more importance on one part of the education system than another.

By the same token, although participation in primary and secondary education is very high in most OECD countries, the proportion of students enrolled in university programs varies between 10 and 50 percent, which obviously affects spending differentials across countries (see OECD Education at a Glance 2010 for more detailed information).

This indicator only shows public expenditure in education. Countries which look to private investment to fund educational programs spend less on education, particularly at university level, than others.

More: Expenditure on educational institutions is not limited to expenditure on instructional services but also includes public expenditure on ancillary services for students and families, where these services are provided through educational institutions.

At the tertiary level, spending on research and development can also be significant and is included in this indicator to the extent that the research is performed by educational institutions.

Public spending on secondary education is larger than on primary and tertiary education, except for Iceland, Israel, Luxembourg, and Mexico, where more is spent on primary education than secondary education, and Slovenia where more is spent on both primary and tertiary education than secondary education.

3.1.3.b Public Spending on Tertiary Education as Percentage of GDP in OECD Countries

The following chart demonstrates that in 2010, although the US was the world's largest spender on tertiary education, most of this spending was sourced privately and public spending on tertiary education amounted to 1% of GDP, relative to countries such as Norway, Finland, Denmark and Canada, where public spending on tertiary education amounted to more than 1.5% of GDP.

See Chart Public Spending on Tertiary Education, OECD Countries Source: OFCD Directorate for Education and Skills

3.1.4 GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT IN FAMILY LEAVE

Government investment in family leave typically takes the form of laws that enable workers to take time off from work to devote to their families, whether it be for raising children or taking care of the elderly and/or disabled. There are several different ways to group these laws into sub-headings for an organized perspective. As part of this section, we focus on the groupings of maternity leave and family leave. In Section 3.1.6, we turn to care leave, and in Section 3.2.1, which appears under "Business Investment in Care Work," we focus on parental leave.

3.1.4.a Maternity Leave in the US vs. Other Countries

According to a 2014 ILO report, there has been a gradual global shift towards maternity leave periods that meet or exceed the ILO standard of 14 weeks. The longest average statutory durations of maternity leave are in Eastern Europe and Central Asia (almost 27 weeks), and the Developed Economies (21 weeks). The shortest regional average is in the Middle East (9.2 weeks). The following map illustrates this information for 185 countries and territories.

See Map Maternity Leave, Many Countries Source: International Labor Organization

The US offers statutory leave of 12 weeks (which does not meet the ILO standard and is significantly less than other Developed Economies), but it is unpaid leave. In fact, it is one of only two countries among the 185 studied (the other being Papua New Guinea) that does not

provide paid leave; that is, it does not provide statutory cash benefits during maternity leave. A few U.S. states are now offering paid leave following the lead of California.

See Map Paid Maternity Leave, Many Countries Source: International Labor Organization

As the report also states: "More than 100 countries now finance benefits through social security, reducing employers' liability. However, analysis showed that benefits in more than half were neither financially adequate nor sufficiently long-lasting."

Caveat: These are laws and regulations on the books, but often do not reflect realities on the ground, as they are frequently not enforced or very selectively enforced.

More: See also this report which covers 188 countries (information on maternity leave begins on p. 60): http://www.ilo.org/wcmsp5/groups/public/---dgreports/---dcomm/ documents/publication/wcms_245201.pdf

<u>3.1.4.b Paid Family Work Leave in OECD Countries</u>

In addition to leave entitlements around childbirth, employed parents can be entitled to further days of leave to help them match their work and family life commitments. Some "family-leave" provisions are specifically intended to provide support with elderly care. Days of paid annual leave refer to the statutory holiday entitlements and public holidays.

For European countries, the 1993 EU Working Time Directive set a benchmark of a minimum of 4 weeks of paid annual leave. The table below indicates that most OECD countries set a statutory minimum of annual paid leave for those in employment. In practice, European workers are typically entitled to around 30-35 days per year of paid vacation, when including public holidays. In Japan and Korea, the relatively high number of public holidays ensures that the overall number of holidays is comparable with practices in Europe.

As the table indicates, the US is the only OECD country where such a legal minimum of paid leave does not exist at the federal level.

See Table Family Work Leave, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Many countries provide workers with entitlements to (paid) leave to help them take care of sick children or other relative for a short period of time. It is not known to what extent parents can use their own sickday entitlement or have to use holiday entitlements to deal with "care emergencies." In addition, some countries (including Belgium, Finland, France, Greece, Hungary, Italy, the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain, and the UK) provide support towards care needs through legal entitlements to reduced working hours, which is addressed in the next set of measures ("Business Investment in Care Work").

More: Public holidays are at set dates, while annual holidays can generally be taken at the choice of employees (mindful of key production periods and due notice). The number of holidays stipulated by collective agreements is frequently higher than the statutory minimum. Support provided by individual employers over and above what is stipulated by law is not covered in the table above.

3.1.5 GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT IN LONG-TERM CARE IN OECD COUNTRIES

In most OECD countries, long term care (LTC) work is predominantly publicly funded, as the following figure indicates. Switzerland is the only European exception with private spending accounting for more than 60% of total LTC spending.

The significant cross-country variation observed in the figure below is accounted for by differences along a variety of dimensions - care needs, the structure and comprehensiveness of LTC systems, and family roles and cultural traditions, such as traditions where women are supposed to do all care work for free.

The Nordic countries, along with the Netherlands, where these gender norms have been replaced by more flexible gender roles where men do more of the care work, are the highest public spenders at 1.5% of GDP or higher. In the US, public spending on LTC is just above 0.5% of GDP.

See Figure LTC Spending: Public vs. Private, OECD Countries Source: OECD Health Policies and Data

More: There is a need for creating LTC coverage mechanisms because the cost of LTC is high and the need for LTC is associated with uncertainties (such as when the need will arise, as well as its duration and intensity). The need for public funding of such coverage mechanisms is especially acute since the market for private LTC insurance is small in most OECD countries, being highest in the US at only 7% of total LTC spending. Public spending on LTC takes three forms - universal coverage within a single program, mixed systems, and means-tested safety net schemes. For more details on these public spending systems, and how OECD countries may be categorized, see Ch. 7 (in particular, Table 7.1 on pp. 216-219) of the 2011 OECD report Help Wanted? Providing and Paying for Long-Term Care. For more details on the private LTC insurance market, see Ch. 8 (in particular Figure 8.1 on pp. 248) of the same report.

3.1.6 GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT IN CARE LEAVE IN OECD COUNTRIES

According to the 2011 OECD report entitled Help Wanted? Providing and Paying for Long-Term Care:

.....

"In three-guarters of the countries where it is available, paid care leave is limited to less than one month or to terminal illness. Belgium provides the longest publicly paid leave, for a maximum of 12 months, which employers may refuse only on serious business grounds. In Japan, paid leave is also fairly long, since carers can take leaves up to 93 days with 40% of wage paid through the employment insurance if the company does not compensate during the leave. In terms of remuneration, Scandinavian countries tend to pay the most. For instance, in Norway and Sweden paid leave is equivalent to 100% and 80% of the wage respectively. In Denmark, in exchange for employers continuing to pay full wages during care leave, municipalities reimburse a minimum equivalent to 82% of the sick benefit ceiling."

As for unpaid leave, the report states that "there is a geographical divide. A group of countries provides long leave of one or more years (e.g. Belgium, France, Spain and Ireland). While being relatively long, unpaid leave is not a statutory right for workers in Ireland and Spain and may be refused by employers on business grounds. In the case of France, while employers may not oppose the leave, eligibility criteria remain strict: leave is only available to care for a relative with an 80% autonomy loss. A second group provides relatively short leave of up to three months (e.g. English-speaking countries and the Netherlands), with a couple of countries providing medium-term leave of six months (Austria, Germany). In Austria the availability of unpaid leave is limited to care for terminally ill relatives."

The US does not mandate paid care leave. Countries such as the Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway, Sweden, Slovak Republic and the UK offer an allowance both to the carer who takes leave and to the person being cared for (usually, so that the latter might be able to hire carers for themselves, thereby reducing the burden on the carer who would otherwise have to take leave). The US does not offer the former type of allowance and has no federal mandates for the latter type of allowance (although these may exist at the state level, for e.g. in Arkansas and New Jersey).

More: For more details, see Ch. 4 of the report, and in particular Table 4.A1.1 on p. 139, Table 4.A2.1 on pp. 142-150, and Table 4.A3.1 on pp. 152-158.

3.2 **BUSINESS INVESTMENT IN** CARE WORK

The private sector may invest in care work through businesses adopting family-friendly workplace practices. Such practices are key determinants of families' ability to reconcile employment and family life. They are also key determinants of the ability of families to care for their members, be it for children, the elderly, or the sick and disabled.

Family-friendly arrangements include: leave from work arrangements; employer-provided childcare; out-of-school-hours-care; elderly care supports; and flexible working time arrangements.

In what follows, we present data for OECD countries. In most of them, businesses are seen to support care work by offering some form of parental leave. In some cases, as for Australia's Insurance Australia Group (which, in 2012, announced 20 weeks of parental leave at full pay, and 6 weeks of double pay for employees who return to work after 14 of the 20 weeks), such support is especially generous.

Businesses also often allow flex-time and employees have some control over their working hours, though this varies a lot across countries. There does not appear to be much business investment in the form of childcare support. However, this may be a reporting issue since businesses are not required to report the extent of such support. Moreover, in most OECD nations, with the notable exception of the US, governments provide or subsidize childcare.

3.2.1 EMPLOYMENT-PROTECTED PARENTAL LEAVE IN 21 DEVELOPED **COUNTRIES**

Parental leave laws can offer job-protected leave and/or financial support during leave.

According to a 2009 Center for Economic and Policy Research study of 21 developed/ advanced countries: "In terms of time, all 21 countries analyzed here protect at least one parent's job for a period of weeks, months, or years around the birth of a child. This job protection allows parents to take time to care for their infant or young child secure in the knowledge that they will be able to return to the same (or a comparable) job at the end of the leave period. Total protected job leave available to couples varies widely across the 21

3. CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS: BUSINESS INVESTMENT IN CARE WORK



countries, from only 14 weeks in Switzerland to over 300 weeks (about six years) in France and Spain. The United States, with 24 weeks of combined protected job leave for a two-parent family, ranks 20th (out of 21); Switzerland provides fewer weeks of protected job leave (14), but provides financial support of 80 percent of a mother's usual earnings during that leave. In terms of money, almost all of the 21 countries also provide direct financial support for parents during at least part of the protected leave. Most countries provide between three months and one year of full-time-equivalent paid leave; Sweden, the most generous of the countries examined, provides 40 weeks of full-time-equivalent paid leave."

The following chart illustrates these provisions.

See Chart Parental Leave in 21 Developed Countries Source: Center for Economic and Policy Research

As evidenced by the chart, the US is one of only two countries to offer no paid parental leave. The other country, at the time of the report's writing, was Australia, which however supported parents with a substantial "baby bonus" regardless of whether they take parental leave. In January 2011, Australia introduced its first national paid parental leave scheme.

More: The report also states: "Our review of 21 countries lead us to identify four countries with policies that are strongest on both generosity and gender equality. These countries include three Nordic countries – Finland, Norway, and Sweden – plus Greece. Across these high-performing systems, five policy practices stand out as the most important: (1) generous paid leave; (2) non-transferable quotas of leave for each parent; (3) universal coverage combined with modest eligibility restrictions; (4) financing structures that pool risk among many employers; and (5) scheduling flexibility.

3.2.2 PERCENTAGE OF EMPLOYERS PROVIDING CHILDCARE OR OTHER CARE SUPPORT IN OECD COUNTRIES

In addition to public spending on childcare support and early education services, employers may also provide childcare support to their employees. However, because companies often have no reasons to report such support to authorities, information on this issue can only be gleaned from surveys.

The Establishment Survey on Working Time held by the European Foundation for the Improvement of Living and Working Conditions reported in 2004/05 that on average for some 21 European countries for which information was available, about 7% of the companies reported providing childcare and/or service support to some of their workforce. The proportion is considerably higher in Latvia, the UK, and particularly the Netherlands, where many employers (in line with collective labor agreements) provide significant financial childcare supports to their employees.

See Table Employer Care Support, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

In the US, the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) does not require an employer to provide childcare assistance. These benefits are generally a matter of agreement between an employer and an employee (or the employee's representative). In a 2012 US survey conducted by the Families and Work Institute, only 7% of the employers surveyed offered childcare at or near the worksite. Employers were much more likely to offer Direct Care Assistance Plans (62%) that help employees pay for childcare with pre-tax dollars, and Child Care Resource and Referral (38%) that provide employees with access to information to help locate childcare in the community.

More: For more details on the US, see the report published by the Families and Work Institute, in particular Table 9 on p. 22.

3.2.3 PERCENTAGE OF EMPLOYERS PROVIDING FLEX-TIME IN OECD **COUNTRIES**

The chart below presents information on the proportion of companies (establishments) that provide flexible working time arrangements to their employees. Austria, Denmark, Finland, Germany, and Sweden are the countries with the highest proportion of time providing flexibility in working time arrangements. The percentage of companies providing flex-time is also relatively large in Ireland and the UK, but in these countries flexibility is often limited to variance in working hours without the possibility to convert accumulated hours in holidays. In Greece employers are the least inclined to allow flexibility of working hours.

The extent to which flex-time practices help workers balance employment and family life is codetermined by the extent to which workers have control over these arrangements.

See Chart Flex-Time Arrangements, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Indicators on family-friendly workplace supports are taken from different national surveys with different sample sizes, categorizations and questions for employers and employees. Comparisons are therefore difficult.

More: Examples of flex-time practices are: allowing the start and end times to vary on the same day, but not the total number of hours per day, and without the possibility of accumulating credit or debit hours; the accumulation of credit or debit hours within certain limitations, over a long period of time (such as a week or a month); full days off to compensate for accumulated credit hours, etc.

3.2.4 EXTENT OF EMPLOYEE CONTROL OVER THEIR WORKING HOURS IN **OECD COUNTRIES**

The chart that follows presents information on the extent to which employees have some sort of control over their working hours, which varies considerably. It considers the proportion of employees who (i) face working times entirely set by the company; (ii) can choose between fixed working schedules; (iii) can adapt working time within certain limits; and (iv) are free to decide their own working hours. These factors play a large role in the extent to which employees can provide care for their families. For example, flexibility in working time allows parents to adjust their working schedule with school and/or childcare center hours.

Finland, Denmark, the Netherlands, Norway, Sweden, and Switzerland are countries where many employees often have at least some freedom in choosing their working hours. By contrast, the control of working time by employees is limited in Hungary, Portugal and Spain where more than 70% of employees report that working time is entirely fixed by the company.

See Chart Setting of Working Times, OECD Countries Source: OECD Family Database

Data Issues

Indicators on family-friendly workplace supports are taken from different national surveys with different sample sizes, categorizations and questions for employers and employees. Comparisons are therefore difficult.

3.2.5 CARE LEAVE VS. PARENTAL LEAVE IN OECD COUNTRIES

Although care leave is provided by many OECD countries (as described in Section 3.1.6), the use of such leave is often limited in practice because employees fear that it will have a negative impact on their careers and household incomes. Data collected in 2004 by the European Establishment Survey on Working Time and Work-Life Balance and published in the 2011 OECD report Help Wanted? Providing and Paying for Long-Term Care indicate that about 37% of European companies offer LTC leave but more offer parental leave than LTC leave, except in Denmark and Poland.

See Chart Care Leave vs. Parental Leave, OECD Countries Source: OECD Health Policies and Data

In a 2012 US survey conducted by the Families and Work Institute, almost two-thirds of the employers surveyed allowed a period of 12 weeks for unpaid parental leave or unpaid leave to care for seriously ill family members. 75% of employers surveyed allowed time off (paid or unpaid) for employees to provide elder care without jeopardizing their jobs.

More: With regard to elder care, a report published by the Families and Work Institute states: "Elder care leave is not specifically required by the federal Family and Medical Leave Act, though 'family leave for seriously ill family members' is. This high prevalence of elder care leave is perhaps indicative of the fact that decision makers in organizations are typically older and more likely to experience elder care issues than those not in decision-making positions and thus the former may be more sensitive to providing help to others who have similar needs. It may also be a response to the aging workforce and the high prevalence of elder care needs." For more details, see the report, in particular Table 5 on p. 18 and Table 11 on p. 24.

3.3 PUBLIC AND PRIVATE INVESTMENT IN PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

The prevention, reduction and elimination of pollution or any other degradation of the environment is a vital task confronting all societies in the world today. The scope of this work is so vast that usually the responsibility for leading it is vested with the public sector, which is primarily responsible in most parts of the world for waste management and wastewater treatment.

But strategies for protecting the environment may also involve joint efforts by the public sector, industry (mining and quarrying, manufacturing and industry, gas and water supply) and specialized producers of environmental services (public and private enterprises specialized in producing environmental services).

Cooperation between the public and private sectors can take a variety of forms. For example, with worldwide energy demand likely to increase in the future, there is a great need for innovative sources of clean, renewable energy. Governments can invite private sector R&D in this area by instituting appropriate policies that make such innovation financially worthwhile.

We report below some measures of investment by the public and private sectors in environmental protection, mostly in Europe.

3.3.1 PUBLIC INVESTMENT IN ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AS A PERCENTAGE OF GDP IN EUROPEAN COUNTRIES

On average, in 2011, the public sector in the EU-27 spent approximately 0.67% of GDP on environmental protection, with countries such as the Netherlands, Malta, Lithuania, and Romania being the highest spenders, and Estonia, Slovakia, Spain and Cyprus being the lowest.

See Chart GDP Share of Public Spending on Environmental Protection, European Countries Source: European Commission Eurostats

3. CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS: INVESTING IN THE ENVIRONMENT



3.3.2 INVESTMENT IN ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BY SPECIALIZED PRODUCERS AS A PERCENTAGE OF GDP IN EUROPEAN COUNTRIES

"Specialized producers" are public and private enterprises that specialize in producing environmental services. On average, in 2011, such producers in the EU-27 spent approximately 1.2% of GDP on environmental protection, with countries such as Estonia, Austria and Romania being the highest spenders, and Finland and Slovakia being the lowest.

See Chart GDP Share of "Specialized Spending" on Environmental Protection, European Countries Source: European Commission Eurostats

3.3.2 FEDERAL SPENDING ON THE ENVIRONMENT AS A PERCENTAGE OF GDP IN THE US

According to the Public Agenda Archives, federal spending on natural resources and the environment in 2008 amounted to \$31.9 billion. US GDP in 2008 was \$14.7 trillion, and therefore federal spending on the environment amounted to 0.22% of GDP.

3.4 COMPARATIVE INVESTMENT DATA

Our purpose in compiling a list of Social Wealth Economic Indicators is partly to emphasize those public sector expenditure items that create social wealth. These are such items as education, health, environment, and the work of caring and caregiving. But the public sector also spends on items that do not contribute to social wealth. These are expenditure items such as the military and prisons.

We would argue that the second kind of expenditure is necessitated by the absence or paucity of social wealth, so that the more of the first kind of expenditure that the public sector is able to undertake, the less there is a need for the second kind of expenditure.

In order for policymakers to prioritize the creation of social wealth, it is necessary, therefore, to report on the relative amounts of the two kinds of expenditures. This we do below for the US. The picture that emerges clearly indicates a disproportionate emphasis on the second kind of expenditure, and points to the need for a renewed set of policies to address the creation and sustenance of social wealth.

3.4.1 EDUCATION VS. PRISON COSTS IN US

The following survey of 40 US states shows that in every one of them the public sector spends more per prisoner than per elementary/secondary student, despite the fact that studies (see Section 4.1.2 below for references to such studies) show that spending on education is an effective way of preventing crime and hence high prison costs.

See Chart Education vs. Prison, US Source: CNN Money

3.4.2 US MILITARY BUDGET VS. OTHER PRIORITIES

The following chart shows that US military spending was the largest spending item for tax collections in 2012, two times that of the next highest spending item (health care).

3. CARE INVESTMENT INDICATORS: COMPARATIVE INVESTMENT DATA



See Chart Large Military Spending, US Source: Global Issues

3.4.3 SHARE OF WORLD MILITARY EXPENDITURES

In 2012, the US, China and Russia were among the highest military spenders.

See Chart Military Spending, Many Countries Source: Stockholm International Peace Research Institute

4. IMPLICATIONS FOR POLICY: INTERACTIONS & CORRELATIONS

The Social Wealth Indicators in the previous two sections measure key dimensions of social wealth. By focusing on matters ignored in GDP and marginalized in the current economic and social discourse as "women's issues" or "children's issues," they highlight how the work of caring and caregiving matters for both equity and economic efficiency.

In this section, we highlight critical correlations and their implications for policy.

We show that investing in caring for children and early childhood education not only supports families and parents in the work of raising children through family-friendly policies and provides children the start they need to grow up into productive and caring adults, but also yields significant social and economic returns in both the short and long term.

We also point to another correlation still generally overlooked by both policy makers and the public: that the status of women is an especially important driver of long-term economic prosperity. Where women are honored and treated with respect, national policies are also designed to build human, social and natural capital, with the causation running both ways between the status of women and national capital accumulation policies.

In particular, violence against women imposes significant economic costs on a country, not to mention the human costs of intimate partner violence that threaten to destabilize the very basic unit of economic decision making, which is the family.

In what follows, we present the results of research that demonstrates the vital economic contribution of caring for our children and families and the significant economic implications of gender relations in a country.

4.1 EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION AND CARE

In the new knowledge-service era, our children should be able to think in new and creative ways and work collaboratively with others from all over the world when they reach working age. These skills are to be deliberately cultivated, and the only way to achieve this is through extensive investment in early childhood development.

A growing body of research is revealing that the most important factors in building these skills are early childhood education and care (ECEC). Quality ECEC is shown to have positive effects in both the short and long terms, for children and for the society and economy, and is shown to address problems of equity as well as efficiency.

4. IMPLICATIONS FOR POLICY

Much of the inequity that we see in our societies today can be traced to inequities in early childhood development, and therefore the universal provision of quality ECEC will go a long way toward addressing wider social inequity. Also, caring for our children is shown to reduce the incidences of deviance and violence in societies. Furthermore, proper early childhood development is shown to benefit a country's long-term economic productivity by enhancing the physical and mental capabilities of children growing into adulthood and therefore enhancing their earnings potential and lifetime earnings.

Ultimately, the resources that a country invests in early childhood development matter not only for violence and crime reduction, and improved health, but also for national economic success. We present below the results of research pertaining to a number of countries.¹

4.1.1 US

US evidence on long-term effects of ECEC comes from small-scale trials, such as the Perry Preschool project, which provided high-guality early childhood education to a randomly selected group of disadvantaged children in Michigan and followed these children into their forties. These studies find positive long-term effects on educational attainment, employment and earnings, as well as social benefits such as reduced criminal activity.²

Other, similar, experimental programs (i.e., small, high-quality interventions on very disadvantaged children) demonstrate significant gains in cognitive achievement owing to the availability of quality ECEC.³

Whereas the above research pertains to small-scale studies, research into the long-term effects of universal prekindergarten programs is not yet available because such programs have only recently been implemented in the US. Research into the short- and medium-term effects of such programs is, however, available and mostly focuses on school readiness, and to some extent, on performance in primary school. This research indicates positive effects on math and reading skills, and socio-emotional development.⁴

The discussion that follows (for the rest of Section 4.1) is sourced mainly from two recent publications: (a) Ruhm, Christopher J. and Jane Waldfogelm. 2012. "Long-term effects of early childhood care and education." Nordic Economic Policy Review: Economics of Education, 23(1): 23-51, and (b) Gambaro, Ludovica, Kitty Stewart and Jane Waldfogel (Eds.). 2014. An Equal Start?: Providing Quality Early Education and Care for Disadvantaged Children. Bristol, UK: Policy Press. Also, note that the citations for research papers/books in this section of the report (Section 4.1) are reproduced exactly as they appear in these two sources.

²Karoly, L.A., Kilburn, M.R. and Cannon, J.S. (2005) Early Childhood Interventions: Proven Results, Future Promise, Santa Monica, CA: RAND Distribution Services; Heckman, J.J., Moon, S.H., Pinto, R. and Savelyev, P.A.(2010) 'The rate of return to the HighScope Perry Preschool Program', The Journal of Public Economics, vol 94, no 1–2, pp 114-28.

³Waldfogel, J. (2006) What Children Need, Cambridge, MA: Harvard University Press. ⁴Gormley, J., Gayer, T., Phillips , D. and Dawson, B. (2005) 'The effects of universal pre-K on cognitive development', Developmental Psychology, vol 41, no 6, pp 872–84; Gormley, W.T., Phillips, D. and Gayer, T. (2008) 'Preschool programs can boost school readiness', Science, vol 320, no 5884, pp 1723–4; Magnuson, K.A., Ruhm, C. and Waldfogel, J. (2007) 'Does prekindergarten improve school preparation and performance?', Economics of Education

Returning to long-term effects, kindergarten programs (serving children aged 5) introduced in the 1960s and 1970s are shown to reduce the share of 21 to 35 year old adults who were high school dropouts or were incarcerated, although these effects were only found for whites.⁶ The absence of comparable effects for blacks may be due to the fact that kindergarten substituted for enrollment in other early childhood education programs (in particular, Head Start) for many poor black children.

Kindergarten expansions also lead to reduced grade retention among Hispanic children, non-English speakers, children of immigrants, and children from low socio-economic status households.7

- needed for productive lives.

In an article entitled "Effectiveness of Early Educational Intervention" (published in the August 2011 issue of Science), W. Steven Barnett, Director of the National Institute for Early Education Research at Rutgers University, presents evidence that:

- behavior, and even crime.

102

Children attending prekindergarten are also shown to have fewer behavioral problems, and lower suspension or grade retention rates during the first few years of primary school,

Studies by US economist and Nobel Prize winner James Heckman and his colleagues find that: • Inequality in early childhood learning experiences and learning produces inequality in ability, achievement, health, and professional and personal success in adulthood. • Adverse impacts of genetic, parental, and environmental resources can be overturned through investments in quality early childhood education that provide children and their parents the resources they need to properly develop the cognitive and personality skills

• Investment in early education for disadvantaged children from birth to age 5 helps re duce the achievement gap, reduce the need for special education, increase the likeli hood of healthier lifestyles, lower the crime rate, and reduce overall public costs. In fact, every dollar invested in high-quality early childhood education produces a 7-10% per annum return on investment. Policies that provide early childhood educational resources to the most disadvantaged children produce greater social and economic equity. • An economically advantaged child exposed to low-quality parenting is more disadvantaged than an economically disadvantaged child exposed to high-guality parenting.

• Early educational intervention (programs that provide for both the educational needs of children and childcare needs of parents) can have substantial short- and long-term effects on cognition, social-emotional development, school progress, antisocial

• Early educational intervention can improve the development and adult success of disadvantaged children in the developing world as well as in advanced economies.

Review, vol 26, no 1, pp 33-51; Magnuson, K.A., Ruhm, C. and Waldfogel, J. (2007) 'The persistence of preschool effects: Do subsequent classroom experiences matter?', Early Childhood Research Quarterly, Vol 22, no 1, pp 18-38; Wong, V.C., Cook, T.D., Barnett, W.S. and Jung, K. (2008) 'An effectiveness-based evaluation of five state pre-

⁵Figlio, D. and Roth, J. (2009), The behavioral consequences of pre-kindergarten participation for disadvantaged youth, in J. Gruber (ed.), The Problems of Disadvantaged Youth: An Economic Perspective, University of Chicago

⁶Cascio, E. (2009), Do investments in universal early education pay off? Long-term effects of introducing kindergarten into public schools, NBER Working Paper 14951; Cascio, E. (2010), What happened when kindergarten went

⁷Dhuey, E. (2011), Who benefits from kindergarten? Evidence from the introduction of state subsidization, Education

kindergarten programs', Journal of Policy Analysis and Management, vol 27, no 1, pp 122-54. Press, Chicago.

universal?, Education Next 10, 62-69.

Evaluation and Policy Analysis 33, 3-22.

• The potential return to societies on such investments is high and includes increased maternal earnings, decreased K-12 schooling costs, increased lifetime earnings, and decreased costs related to smoking.

Similarly, Barnett and Nores (2013) demonstrate that investments in high guality ECEC lead to greater educational success and higher economic productivity through:

- Higher achievement test scores
- Lower rates of special education and grade repetition
- Higher rates of high school graduation
- Fewer behavior problems such as delinguency and crime
- Greater chance of employment
- Higher lifetime earnings
- Lower dependency on welfare
- Lower incidences of smoking, drug use, and depression

Findings by the National Institute for Early Education Research also show that investments in high quality early childhood education lead to decreased costs to government through:

- Lower schooling costs
- Lower social services costs
- Lower crime costs
- Lower health care costs (in part through lower teen pregnancy and smoking)

More: See

http://nieer.org/sites/nieer/files/Investing in Early Childhood Eduation A Global Perspectivei.pdf and,

http://nieer.org/sites/nieer/files/health%20brief.pdf

4.1.2 UK

Evidence on the benefits of ECEC is available from the Effective Provision of Preschool Education (EPPE) project, which observed children in a range of different preschool settings in 1997 and tracked their progress on into compulsory schooling. Research has shown that preschool produces higher cognitive and social-behavioral outcomes on entry into primary school.⁸ These positive effects are shown to be still apparent at the end of primary school.⁹ Higher-guality preschool continued to predict math, science and social-behavioral outcomes at age 14.10

⁸Sylva, K., Melhuish, E., Sammons, P., Siraj-Blatchford, I. and Taggart, B. (2004) The Effective Provision of Preschool Education (EPPE) Project: Final Report, London: Department for Education and Skills. ⁹Sylva, K., Melhuish, E., Sammons, P., Siraj-Blatchford, I. and Taggart, B. (2008) *Final Report from the Primary* Phase: Preschool, School and Family Influences on Children's Development during Key Stage 2 (7–11), Research Report DCSF-RR061, London: Department for Children, Schools and Families. ¹⁰Sylva, K., Melhuish, E.C., Sammons, P., Siraj-Blatchford, I. and Taggart, B. (2012) Effective Pre-school, Primary and Secondary Education 3–14 Project (EPPSE 3–14): Final Report from the Key Stage 3 Phase: Influences on Students' Development from Age 11–14, Research Report DFE-RR202, London: Department for Education.

4.1.3 Denmark

Research into the long-term effects of preschool expansions that occurred in the late 1970s and early 1980s shows positive effects of preschool on school completion rates, especially for disadvantaged children and daughters of less-educated mothers, and adult earnings.¹¹

In comparison to children who are under family day care or parental care, preschool attendees are shown to have significantly higher test scores, with the largest effects for children from the bottom of the income or reading score distribution.¹²

4.1.4 France

Research into the long-term effects of preschool expansions that occurred in the 1960s and 1970s shows positive effects of preschool on grade repetition, test sores, high school graduation, and adult wages, particularly for children from disadvantaged or intermediate (rather than advantaged) backgrounds.¹³

4.1.5 Norway

Expanded preschool availability, following the passage of the Kindergarten Act of 1975, is found to raise children's subsequent educational attainment (more years of schooling, higher rate of college attendance, and lower rate of high school dropout) and labor market participation, while reducing welfare receipts, with the effects being largest for children of loweducated mothers.¹⁴

Preschool attendance at ages 3-5 is found to have a positive effect on children's future national exam grades, with the largest impacts for children from low-income families.¹⁵

4.1.6 Germany

Immigrants attending kindergarten are more likely to be placed in the intermediate or university preparatory tracks of 7th grade school placement.¹⁶

¹¹Bingley, P. and Westergaard-Nielsen, N. (2012), Intergenerational transmission and day care in Denmark, in J. Ermisch, M. Jantti and T. Smeeding (eds.), Inequality from Childhood to Adulthood: A Cross-National

¹²Esping-Andersen, G., Garfinkel, I., Han, W.-J., Magnuson, K., Wagner, S. and Waldfogel, J. (2012), Child care and school performance in Denmark and the United States, Children and Youth Services Review 34,

¹³Dumas, C. and Lefranc, A. (2012), Early schooling and later outcomes: Evidence from pre-school extension in France, in J. Ermisch, M. Jantti and T. Smeeding (eds), Inequality from Childhood to Adulthood: A Cross-

¹⁴Havnes, T. and Mogstad, M. (2011), No child left behind: Subsidized child care and children's long-run

¹⁵Black, S., Devereux, P., Loken, K. and Salvanes, K. (2010), The perils of pre-school? The effect of child care on academic performance, manuscript, Norwegian School of Economics, http://client.norc.org/jole/

Perspective on the Transmission of Advantage, Russell Sage Foundation, New York. 576-589.

National Perspective on the Transmission of Advantage, Russell Sage Foundation, New York. outcomes, American Economic Journal: Economic Policy 3, 97-129. soleweb/11228.pdf.

¹⁶Spiess, C.K., Büchel, F. and Wagner, G.G. (2003), Children's school placement in Germany: Does kindergarten attendance matter?, Early Childhood Research Quarterly 18, 255-270.

Center-based care provided to 0-3 year olds positively impacts social development, language skills, and school grades measured at ages 2-10.¹⁷

4.1.7 Sweden

Preschool attendance is found to significantly close a portion of the language score disparity between children of immigrants and their peers with native-born parents.¹⁸

4.1.8 Canada

Research shows that low-quality ECEC provision can have a negative impact. A universal \$5-a-day childcare subsidy program (designed to limit parents' maximum child care expense to \$5 per day, but not necessarily provide preschools or prekindergarten) produced a large increase in non-parental childcare, but negative effects on socio-emotional outcomes, health, and the vocabulary of young children, due in part to the informal nature and poor quality of the childcare that was taken up as a result of the subsidy.¹⁹

4.1.9 Argentina

An additional year of preschool increases language and math test scores, and also produces improved attention, effort, class participation, and discipline, particularly for children living in high-poverty areas.²⁰

4.1.10 Uruguay

Children who attend preschool are more likely to be enrolled in school and complete more grades, with both effects being particularly large for children with low-educated parents or living outside the capital city of Montevideo.²¹

4.1.11 India

Participation in government-sponsored early childhood developmental facilities (called Anganwadi) raises the school enrollment of 7-19 year olds by 31 percentage points and also speeds the grade progression conditional on enrollment.²²

¹⁷Felfe, C. and Lalive, R. (2011), How does early childcare affect child development? Learning from the children of German unification, manuscript, University of St. Gallen.

¹⁸Fredriksson, P., Hall, C., Johansson, E.-A. and Johansson, P. (2010), Do pre-school interventions further the integration of immigrants? Evidence from Sweden, in E.-A. Johansson (ed.), Essays on Schooling, Gender, and Parental Leave, Economic Studies 121, Department of Economics, Uppsala University.

¹⁹Baker, M. and Milligan, K.(2008) 'Maternal employment, breastfeeding, and health: Evidence from maternity leave mandates', *Journal of Health Economics*, vol 27, no 4, pp 871–87; Lefebvre, P., Merrigan, P. and Roy-Desrosiers, F. (2011) *Quebec's Childcare Universal Low Fees Policy 10 Years After: Effects, Costs and Benefits*, CIRPEE Working Paper 11-01 (www.cirpee.org/ fileadmin/ documents/ Cahiers_2011/ CIRPEE11-01. pdf).

²⁰Berlinski, S., Galiani, S. and Gertler, P. (2009), The effect of pre-primary education on primary school performance, Journal of Public Economics 93, 219-234.

²¹Berlinski, S., Galiani, S. and Manacorda, M. (2008), Giving children a better start: Pre-school attendance and school-age profiles, Journal of Public Economics 92, 1416-1440.

²²Hazarika, G. and Viren, V. (2010), The effect of early childhood developmental program attendance on future school enrolment and grade progression in rural north India, IZA Discussion Paper 5209, Bonn.

Analysis of the OECD's education survey, the Program for International Student Assessment (PISA), indicates that early education can have lasting effects. In nearly all OECD countries, 15 year olds who attend pre-primary education outperform those who do not, with a year of preschool associated with a test score improvement of 33 points (close to the 39 points linked o a year of formal schooling), and the strongest associations being registered for countries that have invested to improve the quality of provision.²³

4.2 PARENTAL LEAVE

The importance of high-quality parenting cannot be overstated. Even if a child is economically advantaged, the quality of parenting that that child receives remains crucial for his or her adult success.

It is important, therefore, to design family-friendly policies that will allow working parents to balance their paid work and family lives. Only then will high-quality parenting become a reality, as more mothers and fathers are able to spend time with their children and help them grow into strong, mature, creative and caring individuals.

In what follows, we present the results of research pertaining to the US (unless otherwise stated) that show the numerous benefits of paid parental leave. Not only do children benefit directly, but families are more cohesive, divorce rates are lower, the health of mothers is improved, businesses prosper through greater worker retention, the state bears a lesser burden in terms of welfare expenditures, and even productivity growth is enhanced. In other words, paid parental leave delivers benefits for businesses, for the economy, and for families.

4.2.1 Benefits for Businesses

<u>4.2.1.a Women and Men are More Likely to Stay in the Workforce when they take Paid</u> <u>Parental Leave</u>

In a 2012 study by the Rutgers Center for Women and Work, women who worked at least 20 hours a week prior to a child's birth who took paid leave were 93% more likely to return to work postpartum 9-12 months than those who did not take leave.²⁴

Women with access to leave have an increased likelihood of working prior to having their child and also an increased likelihood of returning to the labor market after giving birth.²⁵

²³OECD (2011) PISA in Focus : Does Participation in Pre-primary Education Translate into Better Learning Outcomes at School?, Paris: OECD.

 ²⁴Houser, Linda and Thomas P. Vartanian. 2012. Pay Matters: The Positive Economic Impacts of Paid Family Leave for Families, Businesses and the Public. New Brunswick, NJ: The Center for Women and Work. http://smlr.rutgers.edu/paymatters-cwwreport-january2012
²⁵Berger, Lawrence M. and Jane Waldfogel. 2004. "Maternity Leave and the Employment of New Mothers in the United States." Journal of Population Economics, 17(2): 331-349.

4. IMPLICATIONS FOR POLICY

Offering paid family leave increases the number of hours that a woman works after returning to work by about 2 to 3 hours per week.²⁶

The availability of paid leave increases use of leave in the early months for mothers, but also increases their likelihood of returning to work by 9 to 12 months after the birth.²⁷

While all of the above studies focus on women, Diversity Council Australia has recently published a report entitled *Men Get Flexible! Mainstreaming Flexible Work in Australian Business*, which finds that workplace flexibility is a key driver of employment decisions for men, including young men, men approaching retirement and especially men who are both younger and are fathers. Having the flexibility to manage family/personal life was in the top five job characteristics for all men, and for young fathers, it was the third most highly valued job characteristic. 18% of men indicated that they had seriously considered leaving their organization because of a lack of flexibility. Young fathers and men under 35 years of age with caring responsibilities were much more likely to indicate this – 37% and 29% respectively.

4.2.1.b Businesses Save Money on Employee Replacement Costs as Paid Parental Leave Reduces Turnover

It is more costly for a firm to undergo a search for a replacement and to invest time and money training that replacement than it is to temporarily arrange for coverage of the workers' duties while they are on leave.²⁸

Replacement costs vary by type of employee with an average replacement cost of \$4039 per worker overall with a substantial standard deviation of \$9800.²⁹

<u>4.2.1.c Firms Don't Suffer when Employees Take Leave, and Often Benefit in Improved</u> <u>Morale and Cost-Savings</u>

Most firms studied simply did without any replacement workers, and fewer than 15% of firms reported any additional costs attributable to leaves of six weeks or longer, such as losses in productivity.³⁰

99% of employers studied reported that paid family leave produced an increase in employee morale.³¹

87% of employers studied reported that paid family leave had not caused costs to increase.³²

8.8% of employers studied reported that paid family leave had resulted in cost savings because employees were able to use the paid family leave (financed by worker payroll taxes) instead of employer-provided benefits such as paid sick leave and vacation days. Because 60% of employers reported that they had coordinated their benefits, the authors of this research surmise that the actual share of employers experiencing cost savings was much higher than 8.8%.³³

The Diversity Council Australia report, mentioned earlier, also finds that men who have greater access to flexible work that results in a reduction of either work/life conflict or reduced work to family/personal life spillover are more effective in their jobs, report higher work performance, are less troubled by work overload, take fewer risks that can compromise productivity and are absent for fewer days; and they also have lower levels of personal stress and burnout.

4.2.2 Benefits for the Economy

<u>4.2.2.a Women are Less Likely to Receive Public Assistance when they take Paid</u> <u>Parental Leave</u>

Paid family leave reduces the likelihood of receiving public assistance in the year after the birth of a child.³⁴

Women who are offered paid family leave are 39% less likely to receive assistance than women who keep working and have no leave at all. 35

New mothers who are offered paid leave report \$413 less in public assistance than mothers who were not offered paid leave. $^{\rm 36}$

Nearly 10% of eligible and covered workers (under the FMLA) receiving partial or no pay during leave went on some form of public assistance.³⁷

²⁶Rossin-Slater, Maya, Christopher J. Ruhm, and Jane Waldfogel. 2011. "The Effects of California's Paid Family Leave Program on Mothers' Leave-Taking and Subsequent Labor Market Outcomes." *NBER Working Papers 17715*. Cambridge, MA: National Bureau of Economic Research, Inc.

²⁷Baum, Charles L. and Christopher J. Ruhm 2013. "The Effects of Paid Family Leave in California on Labor Market Outcomes." *NBER Working Paper No. 19741*. Cambridge, MA: National Bureau of Economic Research http://www.nber.org/papers/w19741>

²⁸Trzcinski, Eileen and Matia Finn-Stevenson. 1991. "A Response to Arguments against Mandated Parental Leave: Findings from the Connecticut Survey of Parental Leave Policies." *Journal of Marriage and the Family*, 53(2): 445-460.

²⁹Dube, Arindrajit, Eric Freeman, and Michael Reich. 2010. *Employee Replacement Costs*. UC Berkeley: Institute for Research on Labor Employment. Retrieved from: http://escholarship.org/uc/item/7kc29981 ³⁰Trzcinski, Eileen and Matia Finn-Stevenson. 1991. "A Response to Arguments against Mandated Parental Leave: Findings from the Connecticut Survey of Parental Leave Policies." *Journal of Marriage and the Family*, 53(2): 445-460. ³¹Appelbaum, Eileen and Ruth Milkman. 2011. *Leaves That Pay: Employer and Worker Experiences with Paid Family Leave in California*. Washington DC: Center for Economic and Policy Research. http://www.cepr.net/documents/publications/paid-family-leave-1-2011.pdf ³²Ibid.

³⁴Houser, Linda and Thomas P. Vartanian. 2012. Pay Matters: The Positive Economic Impacts of Paid Family Leave for Families, Businesses and the Public. New Brunswick, NJ: The Center for Women and Work. http://smlr.rutgers.edu/paymatters-cwwreport-january2012 ³⁵Ibid.

³⁶Ibid.

³⁷Kleman, Jacob, Kelly Daley, and Alyssa Pozniak. 2013. Family and Medical Leave in 2012: *Technical Report*. Cambridge, MA: Abt Associates. < http://www.dol.gov/asp/evaluation/fmla/FMLA-2012-Technical-Report.pdf>

4.2.2.b Paid Parental Leave Increases Women's Labor Force Participation

Increasing women's labor force participation rates to equal that of their male counterparts would increase GDP substantially in most countries (in the US, 5%; in some other countries, more than 30%).³⁸

Higher labor force participation of women mitigates the effects of a shrinking work force due to aging.39

4.2.2.c Paid Parental Leave Reduces Unemployment

Parental leave policies are associated with higher employment to population ratios (by about 3 to 4 percentage points) as well as decreased unemployment.⁴⁰

4.2.2.d Paid Parental Leave Boosts Overall Productivity

A one-week increase in available family leave is associated with an increase in aggregate labor productivity and multifactor productivity.⁴¹

Both paid and unpaid leave increase productivity but paid leave has a larger effect.⁴²

The US would see an increase in multifactor productivity of approximately 1.1% over time if it were to institute paid maternity leave at the average OECD level of 15 weeks.⁴³

4.2.2.e Paid Parental Leave is an Investment in Children's Human Capacity Development and therefore High Quality Future Human Capital

Paid parental leave allows parents to invest more time and attention towards early childhood care and education, and the latter has been shown to deliver substantial benefits for the development of human capacity.

Schweinhart et al. (2005) demonstrate that early childhood care and education initiatives consistently show higher returns than spending on policing or incarceration and also a high ROI in terms of economic independence of participants throughout their lifetimes. In a 35-year study of a Michigan preschool program, those who participated in pre-school were 19% less likely to have multiple arrests, 15% less likely to commit a violent crime, 20% less likely to use

110

illegal drugs, 20% more likely to earn a living wage, 14% more likely to be employed, and 16% more likely to have a savings account.44

4.2.3 Benefits for the Family

4.2.3.a Paid Parental Leave Catalyzes Lasting Health and Wellbeing Benefits for Children

In their early years, children experience rapid rates of brain and nervous system development.⁴⁵

In their early years, children form important social bonds with their caregivers.⁴⁶

Breastfeeding can increase bonding between the child and nursing mother, stimulate positive neurological and psycho-social development, and strengthen a child's immune system.⁴⁷

Breastfeeding can reduce the risk of health problems like diarrheal disease, respiratory illnesses, asthma, acute ear infection, obesity, Type 2 diabetes, leukemia, and sudden infant death syndrome.48

Women are more likely to breastfeed when they take maternity leave, and longer leave increases both the likelihood and duration of breastfeeding.⁴⁹

Children whose mothers take time from work after childbirth are more likely to receive wellbaby checkups in the first years of life.⁵⁰

When mothers stay home with an infant for at least 12 weeks after giving birth, their children have a greater likelihood of receiving all the recommended vaccinations.⁵¹

of vaccinations.52

⁵¹Ibid.

After controlling for per capita GDP, health care expenditures, and societal factors, each 10% increase in the duration of full-time equivalent paid leave in a country results in increased rates

³⁸Aguirre, DeAnne, Leila Hoteit, Christine Rupp, and Karim Sabbagh. 2012. *Empowering the Third Billion*: Women and the World of Work in 2012. Booz & Company Inc. http://www.booz.com/media/file/BoozCo Empowering-the-Third-Billion_Full-Report.pdf>

³⁹Elborgh-Woytek, Katrin, Monique Newiak, Kaplana Kochhar, Stefania Fabrizio, Kangni Kopdar, Philippe Wingender, Benedict Clements, and Gerd Schwartz. 2013. Women, Work, and the Economy: Macroeconomic Gains from Gender Equity.

⁴⁰Ruhm, Christopher J. 1998. "The Economic Consequences of Parental Leave Mandates: Lessons from Europe." The Quarterly Journal of Economics 113 (1): 285-317

⁴¹Bassanini, Andrea, and Danielle Venn. 2008. "The Impact of Labour Market Policies on Productivity in OECD Countries." International Productivity Monitor 17 (Fall): 3-15.

⁴²Ibid.

⁴³Ibid.

⁴⁴Schweinhart, L. J., J. Montie, Z. Xiang, W. S. Barnett, C. R. Belfield and M. Nores. 2005. "Lifetime effects: The High/Scope Perry Preschool Study Through Age 40." Monographs of the High/Scope Educational Research Foundation, 14. Ypsilanti, MI: High/Scope Educational Research Foundation. ⁴⁵Shonkoff, Jack P. and Deborah Phillips, eds. 2000. From Neurons to Neighborhoods: The Science of Early Childhood Development. Washington, DC: National Academy Press. ⁴⁶Schore, Allan N. 2001. "Effects of a Secure Attachment Relationship on Right Brain Development, Affect Regulation, and Infant Mental Health." Infant Health Medical Journal 22(1-2): 7-66. ⁴⁷U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. 2000. HHS Blueprint for Action on Breastfeeding. Washington, DC: Department of Health and Human Services, Office on Women's Health. ⁴⁸U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. 2011. The Surgeon General's Call to Action to Support Breastfeeding. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Surgeon General. ⁴⁹Appelbaum, Eileen and Ruth Milkman. 2011. Leaves That Pay: Employer and Worker Experiences with Paid Family Leave in California. Washington DC: Center for Economic and Policy Research. http://www.cepr.net/ documents/publications/paid-family-leave-1-2011.pdf> ⁵⁰Berger, Lawrence M., Jennifer Hill, and Jane Waldfogel. 2005. "Maternity Leave, Early Maternal Employment, and Child Health and Development in the U.S." The Economic Journal 115 (February): F29-F47.

⁵²Daku, Mark, Amy Raub, and Jody Heymann. 2012. "Maternal leave policies and vaccination coverage: A global analysis." Social Science & Medicine no 74 (2): 120-124.

The longer the duration of leave from work that a mother takes after giving birth – up to six months – the lower are her postpartum depression scores on the Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale.⁵³

4.2.3.b Mother's Overall and Psychological Health Improves

Women who took a maternity leave longer than 12 weeks reported fewer depressive symptoms, a reduction in severe depression, and, when leave is paid, an improvement in overall and mental health.⁵⁴

There is a positive association between the duration of breastfeeding and a reduction in a woman's risk of breast cancer (especially in women with a family history of the disease) and ovarian cancer.⁵⁵

There is a positive association between the duration of breastfeeding and a reduction in a woman's risk of rheumatoid arthritis.⁵⁶

There is a positive association between the duration of breastfeeding and a reduction in the risk of Type 2 diabetes among young and middle-aged mothers.⁵⁷

4.2.3.c Fathers who take Paid Leave Spend More Time with their Children Throughout their Childhood

Fathers who take time from work around childbirth are more likely to spend more time with their children in the months following childbirth.⁵⁸

The Diversity Council Australia report, entitled *Men Get Flexible! Mainstreaming Flexible Work in Australian Businesses*, argues that men want and need access to flexible working to support their important roles as fathers, carers and engaged volunteers in their communities, but their uptake of flexible working is limited and most commonly involves informal 'flextime' and ad hoc working from home structured around full-time work. The report also finds that when fathers are able to avail of flextime, they experience lower levels of work to family conflict, greater psychological wellbeing, higher quality parenting and higher quality family relationships.

⁵³Dagher, Rada, Patricia M. McGovern, Bryan E. Dowd, and Ulf Lundberg. 2011. "Postpartum depressive symptoms and the combined load of paid and unpaid work: a longitudinal analysis." International Archives of Occupational and Environmental Health 84:735–743.

⁵⁴Chatterji, Pinka, Sara Markowitz, and Jeanne Brooks-Gunn. 2011. "Early Maternal Employment and Family Wellbeing." *NBER Working Paper Series* No. w17212. Cambridge, MA: National Bureau of Economic Research. <http://www.nber.org/papers/w17212.pdf?new_window=1>

 ⁵⁵Stuebe, Alison M., Walter C. Willett, Fei Xue, and Karin B. Michels. 2009. "Lactation and Incidence of Premenopausal Breast Cancer, A Longitudinal Study." Archives of Internal Medicine 169 (15): 1364-71.
⁵⁶Karlson, Elizabeth W., Lisa A. Mandl, Susan E. Hankinson, and Francine Grodstein. 2004. "Do breastfeeding and other reproductive factors influence future risk of rheumatoid arthritis? Results from Nurses' Health Study." Arthritis & Rheumatology. 50(11): 3458-3467.

⁵⁷Stuebe, Alison M., Janet W. Rich-Edwards, Walter C. Willett, JoAnn E. Manson, Karin B. Michels. 2005. "Duration of Lactation and Incidence of Type 2 Diabetes." *Journal of the American Medical Association* 294 (20): 2601-2610.

⁵⁸Nepomnayaschy, Lenna and Jane Waldfogel. 2007. "Paternity Leave and Fathers' Involvement with Their Young Children: Evidence from the American Ecls-B." *Community, Work and Family* 10 (4): 427-453.

4.3 ELDERLY/DISABLED CARE

As we have noted earlier, in Section 2.1.6, direct-care workers make a significant contribution to our society but suffer from poor working conditions. So as the US population ages, and the proportion of older citizens (above 65 years of age) swells in the coming years, there is a real possibility of critical shortages developing in the numbers of direct-care workers.

According to a 2008 PHI (Paraprofessional Healthcare Institute) report,

"The eldercare/disability services industry employs more people than nearly any other industry in the country. Direct-care jobs are the employment core of this industry and are among the nation's fastest-growing occupations. Improving the quality of these jobs—home health aide, certified nurse aide and personal care attendant—is not only vital to our social infrastructure, but has the potential to drive economic growth, particularly within low-income communities. Given the sheer numbers of these occupations today as well as their tremendous expected growth, direct-care jobs are uniquely positioned to help repair and stabilize our faltering economy."

Furthermore,

"Eldercare/disability services is projected to be one of the country's leading employment growth industries, with jobs in this sector increasing three times as fast as jobs within the economy as a whole."

To realize these job growth numbers, however, policymakers and businesses will need to, as stated earlier, improve the quality of these jobs. As the report suggests, such policy action will not only benefit families (by supporting employed family caregivers) and local communities (since direct-care workers spend largely on locally produced goods and services in their communities), but also create economic resilience (since direct-care jobs are usually recession-proof and can't be outsourced) and alleviate the strain on public resources.

4.4 STATUS OF WOMEN

Research shows that a higher status for women is positively correlated with economic success and overall quality of life. A higher status for women means the empowerment of young girls through education, equality of access between women and men to all levels of education, employment and health care, and inclusion of women in the political process.

When women are accorded the same position and respect in society as men, several benefits to society at large follow. Mothers and children are healthier, educational attainment among children is higher, human capacity flourishes, national policies are more geared towards the work of caring and caregiving, democratic process is more widespread, and most importantly, economic productivity and competitiveness increase.

Gender equity also means respect for the person and physical integrity of a woman. Violence against women, whether inside the household (where it manifests in the form of intimate partner violence) or outside, is shown to be very costly, not only in human terms but also in economic terms. Investing in the physical safety and security of women through the crafting of women-friendly policies and laws is shown to significantly reduce economic waste.

In what follows, we present evidence that gender relations are an important correlate of a country's overall success in economic, political and social domains.

4.4.1 Global Gender Gap report

Closing gender gaps is not only a matter of human rights and equity - it is also a matter of efficiency, productivity and economic growth. The 2013 Global Gender Gap report demonstrates that countries with a smaller gender gap (which is the gap between men and women in four key domains - economic participation and opportunity, educational attainment, health and survival, and political empowerment) are also more competitive economically, have greater GDP per capita, and score higher on the Human Development Index. The following graphs illustrate these correlations.

See Chart Economic Competitiveness, Many Countries Source: World Economic Forum

See Chart GDP Per Capita, Many Countries Source: World Economic Forum

See Chart Human Development, Many Countries Source: World Economic Forum

Countries that have made investments in women's health and education generally see the returns on this investment in terms of women's economic and political participation. These countries include the Nordic countries, the US, the Philippines, Canada, New Zealand and Australia. These countries have not, however, fully closed economic and participation gaps - in particular, the gaps in senior positions, wages and leadership levels still persist. For example, data collected by the Inter-Parliamentary Union indicate that women's congressional political participation in the US almost 100 years after achieving women's suffrage is still a mere 18%.

According to research, closing the male-female employment gap would have massive economic implications for developed economies, boosting US GDP by as much as 9% and Eurozone GDP by as much as 13%.

See Graph Education And Economic Opportunity, Many Countries Source: World Economic Forum

Research demonstrates that investment in girls' education has significant multiplier effects - it reduces high fertility rates, lowers infant and child mortality, lowers maternal mortality rates, increases women's labor force participation rates and earnings and fosters educational investment in children.

4.4.2 Gender Equity and Quality of Life

In its study Women, Men and the Global Quality of Life, the Center for Partnership Studies found that measures of the status of women can be an even better predictor of quality of life than conventional indicators such as GNP or GDP. For example, gender equity variables correlated more highly with overall literacy than GDP.

A higher literacy gap between females and males correlated strongly with lower life expectancy and higher infant mortality. Of particular interest was that the prevalence of contraception had a stronger relation to basic quality-of-life indicators such as infant mortality and life expectancy than GDP.

One of the main reasons that gender equity correlates strongly with better quality of life is that in countries where women have higher status, caring and caregiving are given more value, whether it is performed by women or men. For example, in countries such as Sweden, Norway and Finland, caregiving professions such as childcare, nursing, and teaching have higher status and higher wages. Caring for people and nature is also given more priority in national budgets and other policies. All this contributed to a higher quality of life for all.

For more details, see http://www.partnershipway.org/Economics-Politics/economics-publicpolicy/excerpts-from-women-men-and-the-global-quality-of-life

4.4.3 Gender Equity and Democracy

The World Values Surveys are the largest international surveys of attitudes and how they correlate with economic development and political structure. For the first time in 2000, the World Values Survey focused attention on attitudes toward gender equity. And based on data from 65 countries representing 80% of the world's population, it found that the relationship between support for gender equality in politics and the society's level of political rights and civil liberties is remarkably strong. It also found that greater power for women is important for success in the postindustrial economy.

These results are reported in a paper entitled "Gender Equality and Democracy" by Ronald Inglehart, Pippa Norris, and Christian Welzel who write: "In advanced industrial societies authority patterns seem to be shifting from the traditional hierarchical style toward a more collegial style that parallels the differences between stereotypically 'male' and 'female' styles of social interaction." They further note that, along with other cultural changes associated with higher status for women, this "feminization of leadership styles" is closely linked with the spread of democratic institutions.

The 2000 World Values Survey found that the belief that women and men should be equal goes along with a shift from traditional authoritarian styles of child rearing to increasing emphasis on imagination and tolerance as important values to teach a child. And these shifts in attitudes about gender and child rearing, in turn, are linked with greater interpersonal trust, a lessening of reliance on outside authority, a rising sense of subjective wellbeing, a higher living standard, and other aspects of what Inglehart, Norris and Welzel call post-modern "selfexpression" rather than traditional "survival" values.

4.4.4 Violence against Women

According to a 2005 UN report surveying the literature on the economic costs of violence against women: "Costs of violence against women are widespread throughout society. Every recognizable effect of violence has a cost whether it is direct or indirect. Direct costs come from the use of goods and services for which a monetary exchange is made. Direct costs exist for capital, labour and material inputs. Indirect costs stem from effects of violence against women that have an imputed monetary value even though they do not involve an actual monetary exchange, such as lost income or reduced profits. Effects of violence against women also include intangible costs such as premature death, and pain and suffering for which there is no imputed monetary value in the economy. Costs can also be borne in the short-run or the long-run."

Pages 59-66 of the report lists chronologically the studies that have attempted to estimate the costs of such violence in countries such as the UK, the US, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, Finland and Spain. As described in this list, the costs of violence against women can be very high, reaching up to 23 billion British pounds in the UK when direct and indirect costs, including pain and suffering, are counted, and up to \$450 billion in the US when tangible and intangible costs are counted.

A 2012 Council of Europe document similarly presents the results of studies performed mainly for European countries and reports costs in hundreds of millions of euros for countries such as the Netherlands, Finland, and Denmark. One of the studies finds that domestic violence costs in the EU25 total EUR 16 billion for 2006 or EUR 33 per capita in Europe and EUR 1 million every 1/2 hour. The study shows that a EUR 1 increase in spending to prevent intimate partner violence can save EUR 87 in total costs, out of which EUR 30 are direct costs.

A more recent European study from July 2013 (hence, not included in the Council of Europe survey) finds that violence against women is estimated to cost the EU EUR 226 billion each year, including EUR 45 billion for services and EUR 24 billion in lost economic output. The costs of preventive measures are substantially less than the cost of the violence.

5. MOVING FORWARD: THE FUTURE OF SWEIs & RECOMMENDATIONS

In their current iteration, SWEIs provide the missing metrics to assess what the US has to do to catch up with other OECD countries on both human capacity development and investment in its key determinants, such as care and care work, gender and racial equity, and early childhood development. These new metrics provide a basis for more effective government and business policies, and show how the two are interconnected.

This current set of indicators serves as an adaptable template that, in the future, can be used as a framework for creating new measurement systems for social wealth. Social wealth is defined as both the care investment inputs required for human capacity development, and the economic and social benefit outputs from those investments. SWEIs are a bridge between the state of a nation's human capacity and economic prosperity. As such, they provide a useful framework for attempts in the public and private sectors to bridge these two concepts in their own ways.

Across the US, **two parallel efforts in the public sector** are underway at the local government levels that would benefit from SWEIs as a robust and creative measurement framework.

1) An ongoing effort to make the economic and business case for supporting policies such as: paid parental leave, tax credits for child care, tax credits for caregivers, and other forms of government support for parents and parenting.

2) An ongoing effort to quantify, and track over time, wellbeing indicators, such as: health, social cohesion, educational attainment, and gender and racial equity.

The challenge that lies ahead is ensuring SWEIs – as the first metrics that adequately reflect an economic system in which care, care work, and social equity in all shapes counts and is counted – are used by our national policy makers. At the same time, further development of SWEIs will focus on adapting these metrics for pilot projects on the state and local levels in the public sector as well as for specific business uses in the private sector.

5.1 SWEIS AS A PUBLIC SECTOR TOOL ON THE STATE AND LOCAL LEVELS

Traditional public sector performance metrics are overwhelmingly shortsighted and granular. This is a major obstacle to long-term planning, For instance, not having the tools to articulate long-term ROI of public investment in care and care work makes it difficult for public administrators and officials to push these policies forward, especially with current budget cuts in public spending at all levels. With continued development, SWEIs will provide a template for local and state governments to incorporate long-term ROI metrics into their existing performance measures. The current iteration of SWEIs provide the foundation for the inclusion of these metrics, offering the jump start needed to draft indicators for state and local governments. Having laid the groundwork, we plan to work with state and local agencies to provide trainings to adapt a template version of SWEIs for state and local use in a process that is less resource and time intensive than starting from scratch.

5.2 SWEIS AS A TOOL FOR BUSINESS

SWEIs show the long term ROI of investment in paid parental leave, childcare support, gender balance, and flexible time for families. This makes them a useful tool for long-term business planning as well as to help business leaders persuade government officials that public investment in these policies has a tremendously positive impact on a nation's economy.

We plan to provide trainings and in other ways work with businesses to adapt SWEIs to measure the impact within their organizations of adopting family-friendly policies and obtaining support for them.

5.3 SWEIS AS A TOOL FOR HIGHLIGHTING THE DYNAMIC INTERACTIONS BETWEEN THE PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SECTORS

In developing SWEIs for businesses and for government at all levels, critical attention will be accorded to the dynamic interaction between policy changes in the public sector and policy changes in the private sector. For it is the case that the conceptual framework that underwrites the measurement of SWEIs incorporates spillover effects from one sector to the other.

Thus, for example, we have seen that governments mandating paid parental leave help businesses reduce turnover and save costs, and conversely, businesses instituting familyfriendly workplace practices help reduce the need for public assistance and help curtail public spending on health and law and order.

Therefore, SWEIs will become the anchor for a new kind of public discourse in which both government officials and business leaders can persuade each other and the wider public about the tremendous positive impact of instituting caring policies on the social and economic conditions of life in a country.

5.4 SWEIS AS A COMPOSITE INDEX

We are also embarking on a research project that will combine all of the SWEIs into a single, composite index. The objective will be to create a single, composite index for each country. This will be accomplished in steps. First we will create sub-indices for each subcategory of HCIs and CIIs. That is, we will aggregate up from the measures themselves, such as life expectancy rates, infant and maternal mortality rates, and infant vaccination rates, to a subcategory index HM for Health. Once seven subcategory indices are available for HCIs, and four for CIIs, we will create two category indices, one for HCIs and one for CIIs. Finally, the two indices, one each for HCIs and CIIs, will be aggregated "up" to a single composite country-level Social Wealth Index.

The methodology of this work will be to select all the measures that will enter the index, to standardize these measures (as they use many different units of measurement), and then to find an appropriate weighting scheme for each measure and/or each subcategory index, so that the necessary aggregations can be performed. This weighting scheme could be arrived at by regression analysis or some other statistical method.

Because the single composite index will be constructed from separate indices for HCIs and CIIs, it will become easier to study the relationship between inputs into the creation of social wealth, represented by the CIIs index, and outputs, represented by the HCIs index. It will also become easier to drill down into either the HCIs index or the CIIs index and identify what a country needs to do in these domains to improve its overall index score in that domain. The same kind of analysis can be performed at the level of the single, composite SWEIs index. Furthermore, once a set of indices is available, not only will comparisons with other social wealth measures become simpler and more efficient, but the indices can also be used for cross-country regression analysis in order to verify and illustrate the central conclusion from our new conceptual framework: that care work matters for economic competitiveness, growth, and prosperity.

In short, the benefits of a single, composite index will be manifold, for economists, policymakers, and society at large.

5.5 RECOMMENDATIONS

In concluding this report, we present several recommendations targeted specifically at US policymakers and business leaders. As we have seen, the US lags behind other developed countries not only in key domains of present conditions of Human Capacity (output measures), but also, not surprisingly, in the inputs required for developing human capacity, namely Care Investment (the input factors that produce outputs or outcomes). Consequently, there is much that the US can do to effectively close the "care gap."

5.5.1 Government Investment in Care Work

To support families and children, the US should broadly increase public investment in three major types of family benefits: child-related cash transfers, spending on services for families with children (such as child care, early education, center- and home-based care), and benefits provided to families via the tax system (such as child tax allowances, tax exemptions, and child tax credits). These investments in family benefits should be considered an investment in future economic competitiveness, and not simply a cost incurred towards a more just society and improved wellbeing. The US in aggregate invests around 1% of GDP on these family benefits, compared to the OECD average of 2.6% and the 4% GDP investments of many Nordic countries. With respect to family cash benefits, the maximum benefit for one child aged 3-12 represents 2% of the average wage of a worker in the US, whereas the numbers for Australia, Canada, Denmark, Germany, and New Zealand are between 6 and 7%, 5%, 4%, 5% and 9% respectively.

The US should also increase public spending on early childhood education and care (ECEC). Although the US is a high spender on middle and late childhood, public spending on young children (aged 0 to 5 years) is lower in the US than in nearly all OECD countries, where this spending includes cash benefits and tax breaks, childcare, other benefits in kind, and

education. When measured as a percentage of GDP, US spending on formalized childcare and preschool programs is less than half of that in most developed countries. Although private provision of these early childcare services is commonplace in the US, many families cannot afford private childcare and preschool because it is prohibitively expensive. Since findings from neuroscience and economic research on early childhood care and education substantiate the importance of the first five years with respect to cognitive development and future success, the US should broadly work to boost investment in children aged 0 to 5.

The US government should **invest in programs that support work/life balance**. This can take several forms. The first is paid parental leave. The US is the only developed nation without public funding for such leave. Although the US offers 12 weeks of statutory leave, it is unpaid, and does not meet the ILO standard of 14 weeks. Paid leave is associated with numerous economic and health benefits, and is connected to better infant and maternal health outcomes, a reduction of the gender wage gap, and increased productivity. The US government should also mandate paid Family Leave, to allow employees to provide care for children, the elderly, or attend to other family care commitments. Most OECD countries have a minimum number of days of paid leave (typically around 20 days, plus 10-15 paid public holidays). The US is the only country where a legal minimum for this type of family leave does not exist. Finally, the US needs to also increase investment in public mechanisms to assist with the costs associated with Long-Term Care (LTC), especially since private provision of these mechanisms is small in most OECD counties, including the US.

5.5.2 Business Investment in Care Work

Businesses should **invest in programs that support work/life balance**. Out of 21 developed countries studied by the Center for Economic and Policy Research in 2009, the US ranks 20th in its offer of job protection and financial support during parental leave. In the countries that rank ahead of the US on this score, five policy practices stand out as the most important: (1) generous paid leave; (2) non-transferable quotas of leave for each parent; (3) universal coverage combined with modest eligibility restrictions; (4) financing structures that pool risk among many employers; and (5) scheduling flexibility (flex-time and employee control over working hours). Business leaders in the US should look to these policy practices to improve the ways in which they support their workers. They should pay more attention to the long-term ROI from supporting childcare and parental leave, and not simply consider these programs a cost in the short term.

5.5.3 Public and Private Investment in Protecting the Environment

US government and business leaders should invest more in protecting the environment. In 2011, European countries spent an average of 0.67% of GDP on environmental protections, while the US, in 2008, spent only 0.22% GDP on such protections. Although environmental protections can, and should, be directed jointly by the private and public sectors, governments at all levels should lead the way. Ultimately, such investments will not only improve health and wellbeing, but will also secure high-quality jobs in the clean and renewable energy sectors projected to grow rapidly in the coming years.

5.5.4 Comparative Investment

The overarching thrust of the recommendations is the importance of effective investments that reflect the economic and social concerns of US citizens and benefit our economy and society. US government and business leaders are called to tip the balance of public and private investments towards supporting women and families, early childhood care and education, and care giving broadly, in the home as well as in the market.

APPENDIX A: DATA SOURCES USED IN THIS REPORT

American Association for Retired Persons	http://www.aarp.org/
American Federation of Teachers	https://www.aft.org/
Annie E. Casey Foundation	http://www.aecf.org/
Bill Moyers	http://billmoyers.com/
Caring Economy Campaign	http://www.caringeconomy.org/
Center for Economic and Policy Research	http://www.cepr.net/
Center for Partnership Studies	http://www.partnershipway.org/
CNN Money	http://money.cnn.com/
Council of Europe	http://hub.coe.int/
Diversity Council Australia	http://dca.org.au
Diversity Data Kids	http://www.diversitydatakids.org/
Economic Policy Institute	http://www.epi.org
Economic Security 4 Women	http://www.security4women.org.au/
Eldercare Workforce Alliance	http://www.eldercareworkforce.org/
European Commission Eurostats	http://epp.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/portal/page/ portal/eurostat/home/
European Foundation for the Improvement of Living and Working Conditions	http://www.eurofound.europa.eu/
European Parliament	http://www.europarl.europa.eu/
European Social Survey	http://www.europeansocialsurvey.org/
Faculdade De Direito Universidade Nova De Lisboa	http://www.fd.unl.pt/
Families and Work Institute	http://www.familiesandwork.org/
Global Footprint Network	http://www.footprintnetwork.org/en/index.php/GFN/
Global Innovation Index	https://www.globalinnovationindex.org/content. aspx?page=GII-Home
Global Issues	http://www.globalissues.org/
Indices of Social Development	http://www.indsocdev.org/home.html
Institute for Women's Policy Research	http://www.iwpr.org/
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change	http://ipcc-wg2.gov/
International Country Risk Guide	https://www.prsgroup.com/about-us/our-two- methodologies/icrg
International Labor Organization	http://www.ilo.org/global/lang-en/index.htm
Inter-Parliamentary Union	http://www.ipu.org/english/home.htm
Legatum Prosperity Index	http://www.prosperity.com/

Measure of America National Center for Law and Economic Justic National Congress of American Indians National Institute for Early Education Research National Urban League National Women's Law Center New Yorker **OECD** - Directorate for Education and Skills - Environment Directorate: - Family Database: - Health Policies and Data:

- Ilibrary:
- Society At A Glance:

Paraprofessional Healthcare Institute

Pell Center for International Relations and Public Policy, Salve Regina University

Pew Research Center

Public Agenda Archives

Save The Children

Shriver Report Social Care Workforce Research Unit, King's College, London

Social Science Research Council

Stockholm International Peace Research Institute

UNESCO Institute for Statistics

UNICEF Statistics

United Nations Research Institute for Social Development

United Nations Statistics Division

United Nations Women Watch

Urban Institute

	http://www.measureofamerica.org/
ce	http://www.nclej.org/
	http://www.ncai.org/
ch	http://nieer.org/
	http://nul.iamempowered.com/
	http://www.nwlc.org/
	http://www.newyorker.com/
	http://www.oecd.org/
	http://www.oecd.org/edu/
	http://www.oecd.org/env/
	http://www.oecd.org/els/family/ oecdfamilydatabase.htm
	http://www.oecd.org/els/health-systems/
	http://www.oecd-ilibrary.org/
	http://www.oecd-ilibrary.org/content/book/soc_ glance-2014-en?contentType=&itemId=%2Fconten t%2Fchapter%2Fsoc_glance-2014-28-en&mimeTyp e=text%2Fhtml&containerItemId=%2Fcontent%2F serial%2F19991290&accessItemIds=%2Fcontent% 2Fbook%2Fsoc_glance-2014-en
	http://www.phinational.org/
b	http://www.salve.edu/pell-center
	http://www.pewresearch.org/
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org http://www.savethechildren.org/site/c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/ b.6115947/k.8D6E/Official_Site.htm
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org http://www.savethechildren.org/site/c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/ b.6115947/k.8D6E/Official_Site.htm http://shriverreport.org/
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org http://www.savethechildren.org/site/c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/ b.6115947/k.8D6E/Official_Site.htm http://shriverreport.org/ http://www.kcl.ac.uk/sspp/kpi/scwru/index.aspx
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org http://www.savethechildren.org/site/c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/ b.6115947/k.8D6E/Official_Site.htm http://shriverreport.org/ http://www.kcl.ac.uk/sspp/kpi/scwru/index.aspx http://www.ssrc.org/
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org http://www.savethechildren.org/site/c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/ b.6115947/k.8D6E/Official_Site.htm http://shriverreport.org/ http://www.kcl.ac.uk/sspp/kpi/scwru/index.aspx http://www.ssrc.org/ http://www.sipri.org/
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org http://www.savethechildren.org/site/c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/ b.6115947/k.8D6E/Official_Site.htm http://shriverreport.org/ http://www.kcl.ac.uk/sspp/kpi/scwru/index.aspx http://www.ssrc.org/ http://www.sipri.org/ http://www.uis.unesco.org/Pages/default.aspx
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org http://www.savethechildren.org/site/c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/ b.6115947/k.8D6E/Official_Site.htm http://shriverreport.org/ http://www.kcl.ac.uk/sspp/kpi/scwru/index.aspx http://www.ssrc.org/ http://www.sipri.org/ http://www.uis.unesco.org/Pages/default.aspx http://data.unicef.org/
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org http://www.savethechildren.org/site/c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/ b.6115947/k.8D6E/Official_Site.htm http://shriverreport.org/ http://www.kcl.ac.uk/sspp/kpi/scwru/index.aspx http://www.ssrc.org/ http://www.sipri.org/ http://www.uis.unesco.org/Pages/default.aspx http://data.unicef.org/ http://www.unrisd.org/
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org http://www.savethechildren.org/site/c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/ b.6115947/k.8D6E/Official_Site.htm http://shriverreport.org/ http://www.kcl.ac.uk/sspp/kpi/scwru/index.aspx http://www.ssrc.org/ http://www.sipri.org/ http://www.sipri.org/ http://data.unicef.org/ http://data.unicef.org/ http://unstats.un.org/unsd/default.htm
	http://www.publicagendaarchives.org http://www.savethechildren.org/site/c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/ b.6115947/k.8D6E/Official_Site.htm http://shriverreport.org/ http://www.kcl.ac.uk/sspp/kpi/scwru/index.aspx http://www.ssrc.org/ http://www.sipri.org/ http://www.sipri.org/ http://data.unicef.org/ http://data.unicef.org/ http://unstats.un.org/unsd/default.htm http://www.un.org/womenwatch/

- Data:	http://www.urban.org/toolkit/databases/
- Ву Торіс:	http://www.urban.org/race/index.cfm (e.g. Race, Ethnicity & Gender)
U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis	http://www.bea.gov/
U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics	http://www.bls.gov/
U.S. Census Bureau	http://www.census.gov/
U.S. Government Accountability Office	http://www.gao.gov/
Wellington Region Genuine Progress Index	http://www.gpiwellingtonregion.govt.nz/
Woman Stats Project	http://www.womanstats.org/
World Bank	http://data.worldbank.org/
World Economic Forum	http://www.weforum.org/
- Global Gender Gap	http://www.weforum.org/issues/global-gender-gap
World Health Organization	http://www.who.int/en/

APPENDIX B: OTHER INDICES, DATA & INFORMATION SOURCES

Beyond GDP

- Social Indicators:

- Environmental Indicators:

- Wellbeing:

Boston College Center for Work and Family -Research and Publications:

Caring Across Generations

Community Indicators Consortium

- Indicators Projects:

Companies That Care

Counting Women's Work

Gallup-Healthways Well-Being Index

Gender Action

Gender Inequality Index

Genuine Progress Indicator

- Indicator:

- Resources:

- Marlyand:

- Vermont:

Global Creativity Index

Global AgeWatch Index

Global Peace Index

Global Youth Wellbeing Index

Good Country Index

Gross National Happiness Index

Gund Institute

- Vermont GPI:

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/beyond_gdp/ index_en.html

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/beyond_gdp/ indicators_social_en.html

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/beyond_gdp/ indicators_environment_en.html

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/beyond_gdp/ indicators_wellbeing_en.html

http://www.bc.edu/content/bc/centers/cwf.html

http://www.bc.edu/content/bc/centers/cwf/ research/publications.html

http://www.caringacross.org/

http://www.communityindicators.net/

http://www.communityindicators.net/projects

http://www.companies-that-care.org/

http://www.cww-dpru.uct.ac.za

http://info.healthways.com/wellbeingindex

http://www.genderaction.org/

http://hdr.undp.org/en/statistics/gii

http://genuineprogress.net/

http://genuineprogress.net/genuine-progress-indicator/

http://genuineprogress.net/resources/

http://www.dnr.maryland.gov/mdgpi/

http://www.uvm.edu/giee/research/VTGPI_ ExecSum_29Jul13.pdf

http://martinprosperity.org/2011/10/01/creativityand-prosperity-the-global-creativity-index/

http://www.helpage.org/global-agewatch/

http://www.visionofhumanity.org/#/page/indexes/ terrorism-index

http://www.youthindex.org/

http://www.goodcountry.org/overall

http://www.grossnationalhappiness.com/

http://www.uvm.edu/giee/

http://www.uvm.edu/giee/research/VTGPI_ ExecSum 29Jul13.pdf

Healthy People 2020	http://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/default.aspx
Holistic Early Childhood Development Index (still in development)	http://www.unesco.org/new/en/education/ themes/strengthening-education-systems/quality- framework/technical-notes/holistic-early-child- development-index/
Human Development Indices	http://hdr.undp.org/en/statistics/hdi
Inclusive Wealth Report	https://www.ihdp.unu.edu/article/read/iwr
Labor Project for Working Families	http://www.working-families.org/#social=twtr
Levy Institute Measure of Economic Wellbeing	http://www.levyinstitute.org/research/the-levy- institute-measure-of-economic-wellbeing
The Demographic and Health Surveys (DHS) Program	http://dhsprogram.com/
Measure of America	http://www.measureofamerica.org/
- American HDI:	http://www.measureofamerica.org/human- development/#human%20development%20index
- Maps:	http://www.measureofamerica.org/maps/
- 2013 Opportunity Index:	http://www.measureofamerica.org/2013- opportunity-index/
- Common Good Forecaster:	http://www.measureofamerica.org/forecaster/
Nancy Folbre	http://people.umass.edu/folbre/folbre/
National Alliance for Caregiving	http://www.caregiving.org/
- Research:	http://www.caregiving.org/research
National Domestic Workers Alliance:	http://www.domesticworkers.org/
- Home Economics:	http://www.domesticworkers.org/homeeconomics/
National Partnership for Women & Families	http://www.nationalpartnership.org/
- Maps and Info-graphics:	http://www.nationalpartnership.org/issues/
OECD Better Life Index	http://www.oecdbetterlifeindex.org/
- Compendium/Info	http://www.oecd.org/general/ compendiumofoecdwellbeingindicators.htm
Social Progress Index	http://www.socialprogressimperative.org/data/spi
State of the USA	http://www.stateoftheusa.org/
- Info-graphics:	http://www.stateoftheusa.org/visualize.php
State of the World's Mothers Index	http://www.savethechildren.org/site/ c.8rKLIXMGIpI4E/b.8585863/k.9F31/State_of_the_ Worlds_Mothers.htm
State of Working America:	http://www.stateofworkingamerica.org/
- Data:	http://www.stateofworkingamerica.org/data/
- Charts/Tables:	http://www.stateofworkingamerica.org/subjects/ poverty/ (e.g. Poverty)

The Equality of Opportunity Project - Map:

- Data:

UNESCO's Legal Protection Indicators in Early Childhood

UNICEF Education Inequality Index

U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services' http://aspe.hhs.gov/hsp/ccquality-ind02/ 13 Indicators of Quality Childcare

U.S. Time-Use Surveys

Women in America

World Bank's Environmental Economics and Indicators

World Future Council

- Brainpool:

Working Mother

http://www.equality-of-o	pportunity.org/
--------------------------	-----------------

http://www.nytimes.com/2013/07/22/business/ in-climbing-income-ladder-location-matters. html?pagewanted=all&_r=1&#map-search

http://www.equality-of-opportunity.org/index.php/data

http://unesdoc.unesco.org/ images/0021/002157/215738e.pdf

http://www.education-inequalities.org/

http://www.bls.gov/tus/ https://www.atusdata.org/atus/

http://www.whitehouse.gov/administration/eop/ cwg/data-on-women

http://web.worldbank.org/WBSITE/EXTERNAL/ TOPICS/ENVIRONMENT/EXTEEI/0,,menuPK:4 08056~pagePK:149018~piPK:149093~theSite PK:408050,00.html

http://www.worldfuturecouncil.org/

http://www.worldfuturecouncil.org/brainpool.html

http://www.workingmother.com/

APPENDIX C: FIGURES & TABLES



Go Back





New Economic Map



This image originally appeared in *The Real Wealth of Nations,* 2007, by Riane Eisler. Reproduced here with permission from Berrett-Koehler Publishers.

Go Back

Also includes unpaid community, household, and natural economies



U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis



Go Back

Go Back

APPENDICES







Source: ABS (2007, 2008a, 2010a, 2010c, 2011a, 2011b, 2011f), AECgroup

Go Back

Go Back

Summary of Key Findings from this Study

Indicator	Care Economy Statistic		
Paid Care	NAME AND ADDRESS OF		
Number of Australian workers (in FTE) employed by the care sector in 2009-10	1.8 million (providing nearly 20% of all paid employment in Australia)		
Total value of wage and salaries earned in the paid care industry in 2009- 10	\$112.4 billion (equates to 8.8% of GDP and \$5,033 per capita)		
Earning of the average care sector worker compared to the average Australian worker	96 cents for every dollar		
Earning of the average female care sector worker compared to the average male care sector worker	84 cents for every dollar ¹		
Unpaid Care			
Total number of hours on unpaid care work undertaken in 2009-10	21.4 billion		
Equivalent number of FTE positions in 2009-10	11.1 million (1.2 times the total Australian FTE workforce)		
Imputed value of the unpaid care sector in 2009-10	\$650.1 billion ⁽⁴⁾ (equivalent to 50.6% of GDP and \$29,120 per capita)		
Contribution of women aged between 25 and 64 years to unpaid care provision	60%		
Percentage of female carers who are primary carers	36%		
Percentage of male carers who are primary carers	21%		
Government Investment in the Care Sector			
Total investment in 2009-10 ²	\$135.9 billion (10.6% of GDP)		
Federal Government Investment in 2009-10 per capita	\$3,540		
Total Government Investment in 2009-10 per capita	\$5,084		

Note: (a) Estimates of the imputed value of unpaid care work range between \$601 billion (replacement cost valuation method) and \$699 billion (opportunity cost valuation method). This is not a transacted value and examines the imputed value against GDP for comparison purposes only. Source: ABS (2008a, 2010a, 2010c, 2011c, 2010d, 2011a, 2011c, 2011d, 2011f)

¹ This is influenced by the higher number of males in higher-level roles.

³ Excludes wages and salaries and social security payments.

Go Back

Percentage of time dedicated to care work, by number of children under school age¹, 1999-2008*

Care declared as primary and secondary activity² Men age 25 to 44³

	No Child	1 child	2 children or more
Mexico	2.8	6.2	6.7
United Kingdom	1.3	6.9	8.3
Germany	1.2	5.9	8.4
Finland	1.0	6.0	7.7
Slovenia	1.4	5.1	6.9
Italy	0.8	5.5	6.3
Poland	1.8	6.4	7.3
Norway	1.0	5.2	8.3
Lithuania	1.3	3.3	7.5
Estonia	1.7	5.6	6.2
Spain	0.7	4.8	6.9
Sweden	1.6	6.5	9.0
Japan	0.3	2.5	4.1
Bulgaria	1.2	4.2	5.6
Belgium	0.6	4.0	5.6
France	1.1	3.6	4.5
United States ²	2.3	6.8	7.5
Latvia	1.3	3.5	3.1
Canada ²	2.1	5.6	6.6

Countries are ranked by decreasing percentage of time dedicated to care activities by women with two children or more. * Year: 1999: France; 2000: Estonia, Finland, Hungary; 2001: Norway, Slovenia, Sweden, United Kingdom; 2002: Germany; 2003: Italy, Latvia, Lithuania, Spain; 2004: Poland; 2005: Canada; 2006: Belgium, United States.

1) School age refers generally to children under age 7, except for the US and Japan where data refer to children under 6, and to children under 5 in Mexico.

2) Care work includes here all episodes of care work declared as primary or secondary activity, except for the United States and Canada. It also includes the time spent to care for household members or to informally help other households.

3) Except Japan, where data concern those age 15 and over.

Source: For European countries, National Time Use Surveys as reported in the HETUS dataset.

Go Back

			2 children
	No Child	1 child	or more
Mexico	7.5	17.6	22.6
United Kingdom	3.1	16.3	22.2
Germany	2.6	14.4	21.2
Finland	1.9	13.5	20.6
Slovenia	1.9	11.2	18.9
Italy	2.4	13.9	18.8
Poland	2.8	14.0	18.3
Norway	2.5	11.4	18.1
Lithuania	1.9	10.3	17.9
Estonia	2.7	12.8	17.5
Spain	1.9	11.5	17.2
Sweden	2.9	13.0	17.2
Japan	2.2	11.7	16.6
Bulgaria	1.8	11.4	15.6
Belgium	1.4	8.9	14.6
France	2.2	8.8	12.8
United States ²	2.3	11.0	12.5
Latvia	2.4	11.4	11.3
Canada ²	1.9	7.7	8.8

Women age 25 to 44³

Average weekly hours allocated to care activities

Women age 18 and over

	Caring for and educating children	Caring for elderly/disabled	Total
Estonia	44	9	53
Netherlands	48	5	53
Germany	35	15	50
Poland	37	12	49
United Kingdom	35	14	49
Ireland	32	16	48
Spain	28	17	45
Norway	40	5	45
Czech Republic	35	9	44
Greece	25	18	43
Luxembourg	32	10	42
Sweden	33	5	38
Austria	29	8	37
Cyprus (1,2)	27	10	37
Malta	23	14	37
Slovenia	26	11	37
France	29	7	36
Lithuania	29	7	36
Portugal	23	11	34
Slovakia	22	12	34
Bulgaria	20	13	33
Romania	19	14	33
Latvia	22	10	32
Hungary	22	8	30
Belgium	23	6	29
Italy	20	9	29
Denmark	23	5	28
Turkey	21	7	28
Finland	17	5	22

Countries are ranked by decreasing percentage of time dedicated to care activities by women.

1) Footnote by Turkey: The information in this document with reference to « Cyprus » relates to part of the Island. There is no single authority representing both Turkish and Greek Cypriot peop Turkey recognizes the Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus (TRNC). Until a lasting and equitable found within the context of United Nations, Turkey shall preserve its position concerning the "Cyprus".

2) Footnote by all the European Union Member States of the OECD and the European Commissi Republic of Cyprus is recognized by all members of the United Nations with the exception of Turi information in this document relates to the area under the effective control of the Government of I Cyprus

Source: Second European Quality of Life Survey, 2007, in Anderson R. et al., 2009.

Go Back

Participation rates in formal care and pre-school for children under six, 2008*

	Enrolment in for	mal care for the	under 3s and p	re-school from	3 to 5 years (%)	years in education for 3 to 5 year olds
out on the second se	20.0	12 1	62.6	oo a	5 10 5 years	S to b years
ustria	13.1	62.4	0.20	04.8	24.0	1.0
ursona Iolalum	49.4	00.3	00.6	94.0	00.4	2.3
eigium	40.4	88.3	99.0	99.0	39,4	3.0
ugana	14,0	04.3	11.7	70.1	10.1	2.1
anada	24.0	15.7	41.7	09.2	8.66	1.6
nile *	9.8	23.2	80.7	83.9	62.6	1.9
yprus **	32.7	45.1	75.2	100.0	73,4	2.2
zech Republic	2.2	58.3	86.8	95.0	79.7	2.4
Venmark	65.7	94.1	95.3	85.1	91.5	2.7
stonia	17.5	85.3	91.2	90,4	0.68	2.7
inland	28.6	68.5	75.4	78.9	74.2	2.2
rance	42.0	99.0	100.0	100.6	99,9	3.0
fermany	17.8	86.9	95.4	95.8	92.7	2.8
Reece	15.7	0.0	52,4	88.0	46.6	1.4
lungary	8.8	72.1	92.5	96.6	87.1	2.6
seland	55.0	95.4	95.6	96.8	95.9	2.9
eland	30.8	13,1	54.8	101.5	56.4	1.7
srael	23.0	79.6	86.3	94.7	86.8	2.6
aly	29.2	94.8	98.6	99.0	97.4	2.9
apan	28.3	75.4	95.7	98.2	90.0	2.7
orea	37.7	73.3	79.3	86.3	79.8	2.4
atvia	16.1	71.0	78.6	92.1	80.6	2.4
ithuania	13.7	61.4	65	70.0	65.5	2.0
uxembourg	38.6	69.3	95.2	93.4	85.9	2.6
faita	6.8	83.0	97.6	100.0	93.5	2.8
fexico 1	5.8	34.3	93.2	117.9	82.8	2.5
letherlands	55.9	0.1	99.5	99.3	67.1	2.0
lew Zealand	37.9	87.5	95.1	99.9	94.1	2.8
lorway	51.3	92.3	95.3	95.9	94.5	2.8
bland	7.9	36.1	45.1	57.7	47.3	1.4
ortugal	47.4	63.0	81.3	92.6	79.2	2.4
omania	14.3	55.3	75.8	86.4	72.5	22
lovak Republic	3.0	62.9	74.8	83.5	73.5	22
lovenia	33.8	69.5	79.3	83.7	77.5	23
inain	37.5	97.6	95.7	69.3	98.5	3.0
pan	46.7	99.6	01.8	93.0	01.1	27
wittedard	40.7	0.0	36.6	03.0	47.6	14
witzenanu		3.0	38.5	55.1	97.0	0.7
loited Kingdom	10.0	2.6	13/0	09,4	23.8	0.7
Inited States 1	40.8	36.4	97.3	56.6	92.7	2.0
miled oralles .	31.4	30.3	07.5	13.3	33.7	1.7
ECD -average	30.1	50.7	80.0	91.8	17.3	2.3
U 27 -average	28.2	68.8	85.6	91.1	81.8	2.5

Sources: For children 0-2: Australia, ABS Childcare service (2008); Canada, National Longtudinal Survey of Children and Youth (2006); Chile, CASEN (2006); New Zealand, Education Counts' statistics (2008); European countries, EU-SILC (2008); Germany, administrative data: Nordic countries, NOSOSCO (2007-08); the US, Early Childhood Program Participation Survey (2005) For children 3-5: OECD Education database and Eurostat (2008) for non-OECD countries * or latest year available

Notes: 1) Data for children aged 0-2 concern 2005; 2) Data for children aged 0-2 concern 2006; 2 [Data for children aged 0-2 concern 2009. 4) and 5) see notes Chart PF3.2.A

Go Back - page 38 Go Back - page 46 Expected

Summary

Quick Facts: Childe	are Workers					
2012 Median Pay 😨	\$19,510 per year \$9.38 per hour					
Entry-Level Education 😨	High school diploma or equivalent					
Work Experience in a Related Occupation 😨	None					
On-the-job Training 😨	Short-term on-the-job training					
Number of Jobs, 2012 🕢	1,312,700					
Job Outlook, 2012-22 🔞	14% (As fast as average)					
Employment Change, 2012-22 🔞	184,100					

Go Back

Summary

Quick Facts: Plumbers, Pipefi	tters, and Steamfitters			
2012 Median Pay 😨	\$49,140 per year \$23.62 per hour			
Entry-Level Education 🕢	High school diploma or equivalent			
Work Experience in a Related Occupation 🕢	None			
On-the-job Training 🕢	Apprenticeship			
Number of Jobs, 2012 😨	386,900			
Job Outlook, 2012-22 🕡	21% (Faster than average)			
Employment Change, 2012-22 😮	82,300			

Go Back

Educational attainment expressed in average number of years in formal education (2009)

					25-to-64	25-to-64-year-old population						
	Total [†]	Males ¹	Females ¹	Males ²				Females ²				
				25-34	35-44	45-54	55-64	25-34	35-44	45-54	55-64	
Australia	12.6	12.8	12.5	13.2	12.8	12.7	12.2	13.3	12.4	12.3	11.7	
Austria	12.0	12.3	11.7	12.4	12.4	12.2	12.0	12.3	12.0	11.4	10.8	
Belgium	11.3	11.4	11.4	12.4	11.7	11.1	10.3	12.8	11.9	10.7	9.5	
Canada	13.2	13.2	13.3	13.6	13.3	13.0	12.2	14.1	13.6	13.0	11.8	
zech Republic	12.5	12.6	12.4	12.6	12.8	12.6	12.5	12.8	12.6	12.1	11.9	
Denmark	13.4	13.5	13.3	13.6	13.6	13.4	13.6	13.6	13.3	13.3	13.0	
inland	11.2	10.9	11.4	12.5	12.3	10,5	8.5	13.5	13.0	11.2	8.5	
rance	11.6	11.7	11.4	12.8	12.1	11.3	10.3	13.1	12.0	10.7	9.6	
Sermany	13.4	13.7	13.2	13.6	13.8	13.8	13.7	13.5	13.4	13.2	12.5	
Greece	10.9	11.0	10.7	11.9	11.7	10.9	9.4	12.6	11.7	10.0	8.2	
lungary	11.7	11.8	11.6	12.1	12.1	12.0	11,3	12.4	12.1	11.5	10.5	
celand	10.5	9.7	11.4	10.1	10.4	9.2	9.0	12.6	11.9	10.5	9.7	
reland	13.0	12.9	13.1	14.0	13.4	12.3	11.2	14.5	13.6	12.5	11.4	
taly	10.1	10.2	10.0	11.2	10.5	10.0	8.7	11.7	10.7	9.5	7.6	
apan ¹	12.4	12.6	12.1	13.3	13.3	12.4	11.2	13.2	12.0	11.0	10.5	
Corea	12.0	12.5	11.4	13.7	13.2	11.6	10.2	13.6	12.2	10.0	8.0	
uxembourg	13.3	13.6	13.0	14.2	13.5	13.5	13.1	14.1	13.3	12.6	11.6	
Лекісо	8.8	9.1	8.6	9.5	9.4	8.8	7.8	9.4	8.9	8.0	7.1	
letheriands	11.2	11.4	11.1	12.0	11.5	11.3	10.6	12.5	11.4	10.5	9.8	
lew Zealand	12.6	12.6	12.6	11.8	11.4	11.0	9.6	12.1	11.5	10.7	8.4	
lorway	13.9	13.9	13.9	14.2	14.1	13.7	13.4	14.7	14.2	13.8	13.1	
Poland	11.8	11.6	11.9	12.2	11.7	11.4	11.0	12.9	12.2	11.7	10.7	
ortugal	8.5	8.3	8.7	9.3	8.4	7.8	7.3	10.3	88	7.9	7.2	
Slovak Republic	12.5	12.5	12.4	12.8	12.7	12.6	12.1	13.0	12.7	12.4	11.3	
içain	10.6	10.6	10.6	11.9	11.2	10.1	8.9	12.5	11.4	9.7	8.0	
Sweden	12.6	12.4	12.8	13.1	12.7	12.2	11.3	13.6	13.0	12.7	11.8	
witzerland	13.0	13.5	12.5	13.7	13.7	13.5	13.2	13.0	12.7	12.3	11.7	
ukey	9.6	9.9	9.2	10.3	9.8	9.6	9.2	9.6	91	8.9	8.6	
Inited Kingdom	12.0	12.7	12.4	13.0	12.6	12.7	12.4	12.9	12.4	12.3	12.0	
Inited States	13.3	13.2	13.4	13.1	13.2	13.4	13.2	13.4	13.4	13.5	13.1	
DECD average	11.9	11.0	11.8	12.5	12.2	11.7	11.0	12.8	12.1	11.4	10.3	
EU19 average	11.8	11.8	11.7	12.5	12.1	11.7	11.0	129	12.2	11.4	10.3	
the second se		11.0		Caller and I	1.001		11.4	14.9			10.0	



Go Back

data concern 2004

² data for age groups concern 2003

3 Year of reference is 2003

Go Back



Go Back

Population that has attained tertiary education (2011) Percentage, by age group



Countries are ranked in descending order of the persentage of 25-34 year-olds who have attained tertiary education. Source: OECD. Table A1.3a. See Annex 3 for notes (www.oecd.org/edu/eag.htm). StatLink arm http://dx.doi.org/10.1767/668932846215

Go Back

142 SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS
Infant mortality rates, 2010

	Neonatal	Post-neonatal	Infant Mortality
	mortality	mortality	Rate
Mexico	8.9	5.2	14.1
Romania	6.0	5.6	11.6
Turkey	8.5	1.6	10.1
Bulgaria	5.0	3.8	8.8
Latvia	5.0	2.9	7.9
Chile	5.4	2.5	7.9
United States	4.0	2.1	6.1
Lithuania	3.0	3.1	6.1
Slovak Republic	3.6	2.1	5.7
Malta	2.0	3.5	5.5
Hungary	3.5	1.8	5.3
New Zealand	3.1	2.1	5.2
Canada	3.7	1.4	5.1
Poland	3.5	1.5	5.0
OECD average	2.9	1.4	4.3
United Kingdom	2.9	1.3	4.2
Australia	2.9	1.2	4.1
Austria	2.7	1.2	3.9
Switzerland	3.1	0.7	3.8
Ireland	2.7	1.1	3.8
Netherlands	2.8	1.0	3.8
Israel (3)	2.5	1.3	3.8
Greece	2.5	1.3	3.8
Belgium	2.6	1.1	3.7
France	2.5	1.1	3.6
Cyprus (1,2)	2.0	1.5	3.5
Denmark	2.6	0.8	3.4
Germany	2.3	1.1	3.4
Luxembourg	2.2	1.2	3.4
Estonia	1.9	1.4	3.3
Italy	2.3	1.0	3.3
Korea	1.8	1.4	3.2
Spain	2.1	1.1	3.2
Norway	1.6	1.2	2.8
Czech Republic	1.7	1.0	2.7
Portugal	1.7	0.8	2.5
Slovenia	1.8	0.7	2.5
Sweden	1.6	0.9	2.5
Finland	1.5	0.8	2.3
Japan	1.1	1.2	2.3
Iceland	1.2	1.0	2.2
OECD34 average	2.9	1.4	4.3
OECD34+EU average	3.0	1.7	4.7

2009 for Chile and New Zealand; 2008 for Belgium, Bulgaria, Canada, Cyrpus, Ireland, Italy, Latvia, Lithuania, Malta a

Note:

1 Footnote by Turkey: The information in this document with reference to « Cyprus » relates to the southern part of the Island. There is no single authority representing both Turkish and Greek Cypriot people on the Island. Turkey recognizes the Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus (TRNC). Until a lasting and equitable solution is found within the context of United Nations, Turkey shall preserve its position concerning the "Cyprus issue".

2 Foctnote by all the European Union Member States of the OECD and the European Commission: The Republic of Cyprus is recognized by all members of the United Nations with the exception of Turkey. The information in this document relates to the area under the effective control of the Government of the Republic of Cyprus.

3 The data for Israel are supplied by and under the responsibility of the relevant Israeli authorities. The use of such data by the OECD is without prejudice to the status of the Golan Heights, East Jerusalem and Israeli settlements in the West Bank under the terms of international law.

Source: OECD Health Data (versionMarch 2013) and WHO Global Health Observatory 2013

Go Back



Go Back

Immunization coverage with measles-containing vaccines in infants, 2012

The rel matrice of 2% Nit & Josefinik av 1094 Nit date (Mass-miles av 1794) 2017 andress date i son syst 8-30 teres age &- JULL 100 1 Superior WHOLEVICEP continues antimates, 1988-2011, July 2010 "198 developing control and assessments fortunation par UH Ward Bossessic & Social Roman, 2010 Assession Stat. nengarang the en ed a state a possible abless d's ben

Developing and transition countries and territories* with all districts achieving at least 80% DTP3 coverage, 2012

Countries by percentage of districts achieving at least 80% DTP3 coverage, 2012



Go Back

Life expectancy at birth and Healthy Adjusted Life Expectancy at birth (HALE), in years, females and males, 2008

TEENAGE BIRTH RATES BY COUNTRY

		sorted Females			Males			Population	
Countries	Life	Healthy life	DIM LE - HALE	Life	Healthy life	DiffLE - HALE	Life	Healthy life	Diff LE - HALE
Japan	86.0	78.0	8.0	79.0	73.0	6.0	82.7	76.0	6.7
France	84.0	76.0	8.0	77.0	71.0	6.0	81.0	73.0	8.0
Raly 1	84.0	76.0	8.0	79.0	73.0	6.0	81.5	74.0	7.5
Spain	84.0	76.0	8.0	78.0	71.0	7.0	81.2	74.0	7.2
Switzerland	84.0	76.0	8.0	79.0	73.0	6.0	82.2	75.0	7.2
Australia	84.0	75.0	9.0	79.0	72.0	7.0	81.5	74.0	7.5
Canada 1	83.0	75.0	8.0	78.0	71.0	7.0	80.7	73.0	7.7
Finland	83.0	75.0	8.0	76.0	70.0	6.0	79.9	72.0	7.9
Germany	82.0	75.0	7.0	77.0	71.0	6.0	80.2	73.0	7.2
Iceland	83.0	75.0	8.0	80.0	73.0	7.0	81.3	74.0	7.3
Luxembourg	83.0	75.0	8.0	77.0	71.0	6.0	80.6	73.0	7.6
Sweden	83.0	75.0	8.0	79.0	72.0	7.0	81.2	74.0	7.2
Austria	83.0	74.0	9.0	77.0	70.0	7.0	80.5	72.0	8.5
Belgium	82.0	74.0	8.0	77.0	70.0	7.0	79.8	72.0	7.8
Greece	82.0	74.0	8.0	77.0	71.0	6.0	80.0	72.0	8.0
Ireland	82.0	74.0	8.0	77.0	71.0	6.0	79.9	73.0	6.9
Korea	82.0	74.0	8.0	76.0	68.0	8.0	79.9	71.0	8.9
Malta	82.0	74.0	8.0	78.0	71.0	7.0	80.0	72.0	8.0
Netherlands	82.0	74.0	8.0	78.0	72.0	6.0	80.2	73.0	7.2
New Zealand	83.0	74.0	9.0	78.0	72.0	6.0	80.4	73.0	7.4
Norway	83.0	74.0	9.0	78.0	72.0	6.0	80.6	73.0	7.6
Slovenia	81.0	74.0	7.0	75.0	69.0	6.0	78.8	71.0	7.8
OECD average	81.9	73.6	8.4	76.3	69.7	6.7	79.1	71.7	7.4
Donmark	81.0	73.0	8.0	76.0	70.0	6.0	78.8	72.0	6.8
Portugal	82.0	73.0	9.0	76.0	69.0	7.0	79.3	71.0	8.3
United Kingdom 1	82.0	73.0	9.0	77.0	71.0	6.0	79.7	72.0	7.7
Chile	81.0	72.0	9.0	75.0	67.0	8.0	77.8	70.0	7.8
Czech Republic	80.0	72.0	8.0	74.0	68.0	6.0	77.3	70.0	7.3
United States 1	81.0	72.0	9.0	76.0	68.0	8.0	77.9	70.0	7.9
Estonia	79.0	71.0	8.0	67.0	61.0	6.0	73.0	66.0	7.0
Poland	80.0	70.0	10.0	71.0	64.0	7.0	75.6	67.0	8.6
Slovak Republic	78.0	70.0	8.0	71.0	64.0	7.0	74.8	67.0	7.8
Bulgaria	76.0	69.0	7.0	69.0	63.0	6.0	73.0	66.0	7.0
Hungary	78.0	69.0	9.0	69.0	62.0	7.0	73.8	66.0	7.8
Mexico	78.0	69.0	9.0	73.0	65.0	8.0	75.1	67.0	8.1
Latvia	76.0	68.0	8.0	66.0	59.0	7.0	71.0	64.0	7.0
Littuania	77.0	68.0	9.0	65.0	58.0	7.0	71.0	63.0	8.0
Romania	77.0	68.0	9.0	70.0	63.0	7.0	73.0	65.0	8.0
Turkey	76.0	67.0	9.0	71.0	64.0	7.0	73.6	66.0	7.6



Source: WHO statistical information system (WHO SYS), v. April 2011

Go Back

45 40 Teen birth rate (births per 1,000 women ages 15-19) 35 30 25 20 15 10 5 n

Sources: CDC's National Center for Health Statistics, UNECE Statistical Database, and United Nations Demographic Yearbook, 2009-2010





The branchesies and names shown and the lexignations and or this roug do not imply the expression of any spinore effations or on the part of the World Saidh Departicular concerning the legal states of any southy, techny, sky or area or if its authorities, or concerning the defaultation of its frontients or boundaries. Defaul time on maps represent approximate booker lines for which the theorem any not yet be full agreement.

Data Saurae Wald Health Organization May Production Public Health Information and Geographic Information Systems (192) Weld Health Dramitation

6 MHO 2011. M right research.

Go Back



HAP: Household air pollution; AAP: Ambient air pollution; Amr: America, Afr: Africa; Emr: Eastern Mediterranean, Sear: South-East Asia, Wpr: Western Pacific; LMI: Low- and middle-income; HI: High-income.

Go Back

Total deaths attributable to the joint effects of HAP and AAP in 2012, by region

EXPOSURE PATHWAYS BY WHICH CLIMATE CHANGE AFFECTS HEALTH

FREQUENT HEAT EXTREMES AND THE RAPIDLY GROWING NUMBER OF OLDER PEOPLE LIVING IN CITIES





Go Back

Ca-benefit category	Benefits for health	Besefits for climate	References in chronological order
induction of co-publications from manyhold solid hard anthustions: [see also WGBE-7, WGBE-8, WGBE-9, WGBE-10]	Potentially reduce exposures that are associated with disease, through and acture requiratory illueson, long cancer, low birth weight and stillhorths, and possibly tuberculosis	Robuces CAP emissions associated with household usid fuel use including CO2, CO, Nack carbon, and CH4	Bell et al., 2008 Smith et al., 2008 Williamen et al., 2009 Lefulus et al., 2010 Venisataraman et al., 2010 World Health Organization Regional Office for Europe, 2010 Po et al., 2011
Robuction of GBRGs and numerized co-politizants from subserial sources, such as power plants and landfills by more efficient generation or ubstitution of line carbon dormatives [27.3.7.2]	Boductions health-damaging to-perflutant omisations would decrease exposures to autdoor air pollution and could roduce toks of cardiovourniar disease, theresic and acute respiratory illnesses, lung cancer, and presents ideab.	Roductions in emission of CO2, black carbon, CO, CH4,and other CAPs	Anotherg et al., 2002 Ball et al., 2008 Apainteen et al., 2009 Jacobson, 2009 Puppion de Oliverita et al., 2009 Jacobson, 2009 Demerkamp et al., 2010 Jacobson, 2010 Nomme, et al., 2010 Rive and Annan, 2010 Shoukall et al., 2011 Shindell et al., 2012 West et al., 2012
inergy efficiency. Actual energy eduction may supertrives be less has anticipated because part of le officiency benefit is taken as more service	Beductions in fuel demand potentially can reduce envisions of CAPs associated with fast conduction and subsequent exposures to pollotants that are known to be health damaging.	Reductions in emission of CAPs due to decreases in had consumption	West et al., 2013 Markandya et al., 2009 Williamon et al., 2009
increases in active travel and eductions in pollution due to midifications to the built evolution including better economic including better economic including better action on pollution and and attenuents [See also 24.4, 24.5, 24.6, 24.7, 25.8,]	Increased physical activity; reduced obesity; reduced not communicable disease barden, braith service cores averted; improved mental bashfi; reduced exposure to air polisition; increased local acters to econtral services, including food users; enhanced safety.	Beductions of CAP emissions associated with vehicle numport, Replacing existing vehicles with lower emission vehicles could reduce ar pullution	Babey et al., 2007 Bred and Alawwarth, 2007 Katzymial and Henderson, 2008 Gauggande et al., 2009 Jaonte et al., 2009 Wondcock et al., 2009 Donand et al., 2009 Donand et al., 2013 McCormack and Shiell, 2011 Jenan et al., 2013 Wondcock et al., 2013
inabley low GHG emission diets chich can have beneficial diets; on a songe of health succases [See also Table 11.3]	Reducted dietary saturated fat in sume populations (particularly from rumisants) and replacement by place sources associated with decreased risk of (schemic) heart disease, stroke, colorectal catcer (processed trust communities) increased fruit and vegetable communities can reduce risk of chronic diseases. Bodacied CIL, emission due to a decreased dismark for ruminant meat products would reduce the tropogleric runner.	Reductions in CO2 and CH4 eminians from energy-immulve livestack systems	McMichael et al., 2007 Feial et al., 2009 Sinda et al., 2009 Smith and Balakrishman, 2009 Juliaryus et al., 2011 Hosper et al., 2012 Pen et al., 2012 Xuert al., 2012
Genere access to reproductive solith services	Lower child and maternal mostality from increased hirth intervals and shifts in maternal age.	Potentially slover growth of energy consumption and related CAP emusions; less impact on land one change, etc.	Tsui et al. 2007 Gribble et al., 2009 Praz, 2009 O'Neill et al., 2010 Diamond-Senith and Potts, 2011 Potts and Henderson, 2012 Konskie al. 2011
icceases in arban green space Table 15-5)	Reduced temperatures and hust island effects; reduced nease: enhanced safety; psychological benefits; bener self-perceived health status.	Reduces atmospheric CO2 via cathon sequestration in plant those and soil	Mitchell and Pophan, 2007 Balwy et al., 2008 Mans et al., 2009 van den Berg et al., 2010 van Dilien et al., 2011
Carbon sequentization facest plantations, REDD and carbon officer soles (see Opt 13, 153.4, see also 20.4.1, 26.8.4.3)	Poverty alleviation and livelihood/ph generation through sale of CDM and voluntary market credits. Anothouse declines in production or competitiveness in rural communities.	Beduces resistants of CAPs and promotes carbon sequentiation through REDD	Halmes, 2019 Earline-de-Blan et al. 2011

Proportion of young people who are active or inactive group members by type of group, around 20051

Men and women age 15 to 29

	Church or religious organisation	Sports and Cultural association	Trade unions and association with political orientation	Humanitarian or Charitable organisation	Other groups
Australia	32	62	23	25	36
Bulgaria	4	9	4	2	3
Canada	45	70	33	33	42
Cyprus ¹³	20	47	22	17	25
Finland	82	44	47	17	14
France	6	43	8	19	21
Germany	27	45	6	4	10
Italy	19	51	10	18	17
Japan	9	30	13	1	14
Korea	38	45	9	6	14
Mexico	62	49	20	23	30
Netherlands	21	66	13	15	18
New Zealand	32	63	22	21	41
Norway	35	60	39	27	39
Poland	28	30	11	14	13
Romania	11	3	10	1	2
Slovenia	38	59	16	12	17
Spain	15	23	9	8	7
Sweden	63	58	49	32	48
Switzerland	53	82	12	22	44
Turkey	2	6	4	2	3
United Kingdom	27	59	18	23	27
United States	60	44	40	20	34
OECD average	35	49	20	17	25

1), 2) and 3) see corresponding notes to Table CO4.1.A Source: 2005 World Values Surveys.

Tolerance perception: large differences around a stable average



Go Back

Variation in trends in tolerance perception for ethnic minorities

Percentage points variation in the share of people who think that the city or area where they live is a good place to live for racial and ethnic minorities botween 2007 and 2012



Source: Gallup World Poll (www.golkup.com).

Variation in trends in tolerance perception for gays and lesblans

Percentage points variation in the share of people who think that the city or alwa where they live is a good place to live for gay or lesbian people between 2007 wist 2012

840+803	lu.,,
1000	

Go Back

Select Prison Populations per 100,000 of the National Population

Ranking	Country	Rate
1	United States of America	716
10	Russian Federation	475
47	Brazil	274
67	Mexico	210
102	United Kingdom	148
103	Argentina	147
117	Australia	130
126	China	121
133	Canada	118
149	France	101
151	South Korea	99
161	Netherlands	82
167	Germany	79
172	Denmark	73
176	Norway	72
179	Sweden	67
189	Finland	58
198	Japan	51
201	Iceland	47

Source: International Centre for Prison Studies

Go Back

APPENDICES

APPENDICES

Select Rates of Recidivism						
Australia	39%					
Ireland	62% [#]					
Japan	43% ⁱⁱⁱ					
Scotland	50% ^{ir}					
United Kingdom (England & Wales)	46%*					
United States	52%**					

*Reimprisonment rate within 10 years of release, Australian Bureau of Statistics, March 16, 2010.

"Irish Prison Service Recidivism Study, May 2013.

"Reducing the Rate of Recidivism," The Japan Times, July 8, 2013.

* Reconviction Rates in Scotland: 2010-2011 Offender Cohort, Scottish Government.

*Rate applies to adult offenders in England and Wales released from custody in 2011. "Proven Re-Offending Quarterly Jan-Dec 2011," Ministry of Justice released October 31, 2013.

"Confronting Confinement," Commission on Safety and Abuse in America's Prisons, June 2006.

Go Back









APPENDICES





APPENDICES



GINI INDEX, 2009-2013



Go Back

Poverty rates for children and the total population, 2009-11

	Total population	Children <18
Denmark	6.0	3.7
Finland	7.3	4.4
Norway	7.5	5.1
Cyprus (1,2)	10.7	7.6
Iceland	6.3	7.7
Slovenia	8.7	8.0
Austria	7.5	8.2
Sweden	9.1	8.2
Germany	8.8	9.1
Hungary	6.8	9.4
Korea	15.2	9.7
United Kingdom	9.9	9.8
Switzerland	9.5	9.8
Netherlands	7.5	9.9
Ireland	9.0	10.2
Czech Republic	5.9	10.3
France	7.9	11.0
Malta	9.4	11.2
Luxembourg	8.1	11.8
Slovak Republic	7.7	12.2
Belgium	94	12.3
Estonia	11.1	12.7
OECD34 average	11.2	13.2
New Zealand	10.3	13.3
Canada	11.9	14.0
Poland	11.3	14.2
Australia	14.5	15.1
Portugal	12.0	15.6
Japan	16.0	15.7
Greece	13.0	16.0
Italy	12.1	17.3
Lithuania	15.8	19.4
Latvia	15.4	19.5
Spain	15.5	20.1
Bulgaria	15.7	20.8
United States	17.4	21.0
Chile	18.0	22.0
Mexico	20.4	23.9
Romania	20.4	24.0
Turkey	10.0	24.3
Israel (3)	10.0	21.0

Poverty thresholds are set at 50% of the median income of the entire population.

1) Footnote by Turkey: The information in this document with reference to « Cyprus » relates to the 2) Footnote by all the European Union Member States of the OECD and the European Commission: 3) The data for Israel are supplied by and under the responsibility of the relevant israeli authorities.

Source: OECD Income distribution questionnaire, version March 2013, for OECD countries

Go Back



Go Back



Since 2000, the percentage of children living in high-poverty communities has increased four points.



GENDER GAP IN AVERAGE EARNINGS OF FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES, 2011 **OR LATEST YEAR AVAILABLE**

Gender differences in full-time employment rates, 2011



1) Full-time employmees refers to persons who usually work more than 30 hours per week in their main job. Data include only persons declaring usual hours. 2) see note (3) for Chart LMF1.6.A Source: OECD Employment Outlook, 2012

Go Back

1) Data for Estonia, Cyprus, Slovak Republic, Latvia, Lithuania, Bulgaria, Luxembourg, Romania, Ireland, Slovenia and Malta refer to all employees who work at least 15 hours per week and is likely to result in comparativley lower gender gaps

2) Data refer to 2000 for Estonia; 2006 for Cyprus, the Slovak Republic, Latvia, Lithuania, Bulgaria, Luxembourg, Romania, Ireland, Slovenia and Malta and Romania, to 2010 for Austria, Finland, Australia, Germany, Sweden< denmark, Italy, Belgium, Greece Portugal, Spain and Poland, to 2009 for Netherlands and France and to 2008 for Iceland.

3) Footnote by Turkey: The information in this document with reference to "Cyprus" relates to the southern part of the Island. There is no single authority representing both Turkish and Greek Cypriot people on the Island. Turkey recognizes the Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus (TRNC). Until a lasting and equitable solution is found within the context of United Nations, Turkey shall preserve its position concerning the "Cyprus issue".

4) Footnote by all the European Union Member States of the OECD and the European Commission: The Republic of Cyprus is recognized by all members of the United Nations with the exception of Turkey. The information in this document relates to the area under the effective control of the Government of the Republic of Cyprus.

Source: OECD Employment Database, June 2013; and EU Survey on Income and Living Conditions and national sources, 2008

Go Back

Gender gap employment rate A Gender gap FTE employment rate

FEMALE EMPLOYMENT IS CONCENTRATED IN A RELATIVELY LIMITED NUMBER OF OCCUPATIONS



Countries are ranked by decreasing number of occupations for women.

1) 2009 for the United States 2) and 3) see notes (4) and (5) for chart LMF1.6.A

Source: ELFS, 2007; and Current Population Survey, March 2009, for the United States.

Go Back

Proportion of women among staff with managerial responsibilities, 2007¹



1) March 2009 for the United States 2) and 3) see notes (1) and (2) for Chart LMF1.6.A

Source: ELFS, 2007; and Current Population Survey, March 2009, for the United States.

Go Back

172 SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS APPENDICES

Gender gaps in opportunities to change working hours, 2009 Proportion of male and female employees who can adjust and/or decide their working time



Source: Fifth European Survey on Working Conditions, 2010..

Go Back

			Eco	onomic	Educ	ational	Health a	nd Survival	Po	litical
	Overall		Particip	oation and	Atta	inment			Empo	werment
Country		Score	Rank	Score		Score	Rank	Score		Score
,	Rank				Rank				Rank	
Iceland	1	0.8731	22	0.7684	1	1	97	0.9696	1	0.7544
Finland	2	0.8421	19	0.7727	1	1	1	0.9796	2	0.6162
Norway	3	0.8417	1	0.8357	1	1	93	0.9697	3	0.5616
Sweden	4	0.8129	14	0.7829	38	0.9977	69	0.9735	4	0.4976
Philippines	5	0.7832	16	0.7773	1	1	1	0.9796	10	0.376
Ireland	6	0.7823	29	0.745	34	0.9988	65	0.9737	6	0.4115
New	7	0.7799	15	0.7797	1	1	93	0.9697	12	0.3703
Zealand										
Denmark	8	0.7779	25	0.7639	1	1	64	0.9739	11	0.3738
Switzerland	9	0.7736	23	0.7681	66	0.9919	72	0.9733	16	0.361
Nicaragua	10	0.7715	91	0.6218	28	0.9996	55	0.9758	5	0.4889
Belgium	11	0.7684	34	0.7367	67	0.9918	47	0.9787	14	0.3664
Latvia	12	0.761	17	0.7767	1	1	1	0.9796	26	0.2875
Netherlands	13	0.7608	26	0.7592	44	0.9954	93	0.9697	22	0.3191
Germany	14	0.7583	46	0.712	86	0.9818	49	0.978	15	0.3611
Cuba	15	0.754	65	0.6736	30	0.9995	63	0.9743	13	0.3685
Lesotho	16	0.753	18	0.7756	1	1	1	0.9796	35	0.257
South Africa	17	0.751	78	0.6505	54	0.9941	102	0.9677	8	0.3919
United	18	0.744	35	0.732	31	0.9994	92	0.9698	29	0.2747
Kingdom										
Austria	19	0.7437	69	0.6642	1	1	47	0.9787	19	0.3318
Canada	20	0.7425	9	0.7959	1	1	49	0.978	42	0.1959
Luxembourg	21	0.741	7	0.8162	1	1	85	0.9719	51	0.1757
Burundi	22	0.7397	3	0.8307	114	0.8895	99	0.9685	31	0.2702
United	23	0.7392	6	0.8185	1	1	33	0.9792	60	0.1593
States										
Australia	24	0.739	13	0.7879	1	1	69	0.9735	43	0.1945
Ecuador	25	0.7389	90	0.6253	52	0.9942	55	0.9758	17	0.3604
Mozambique	26	0.7349	11	0.7897	124	0.8355	112	0.9612	18	0.3533
Bolivia	27	0.734	57	0.6841	99	0.9623	84	0.9719	23	0.3175
Lithuania	28	0.7308	21	0.7688	60	0.9928	34	0.9791	47	0.1826
Barbados	29	0.7301	10	0.7907	1	1	1	0.9796	63	0.1503
Spain	30	0.7266	76	0.6521	40	0.9971	75	0.973	27	0.2841
Costa Rica	31	0.7241	98	0.5955	1	1	62	0.9747	21	0.3263
Kazakhstan	32	0.7218	20	0.7706	69	0.9913	1	0.9796	65	0.1458
Mongolia	33	0.7204	2	0.8338	49	0.9946	1	0.9796	108	0.0734
Argentina	34	0.7195	101	0.5887	42	0.9962	1	0.9796	24	0.3136
Colombia	35	0.7171	39	0.7275	45	0.9954	34	0.9791	55	0.1662

nomic	Educational
pation and	Attainment

Tobago Uruguay 77 0.6803 58 0.6833 41 0.9967 1 0.9796 116 0.06 Panama 37 0.7164 45 0.7136 43 0.9998 61 0.9753 48 0.1811 Kenya 78 0.6803 44 0.7146 107 0.923 102 0.9767 85 0.111 Slovenia 38 0.7135 43 0.7189 26 0.9999 75 0.973 54 0.1702 Cyprus 79 0.6801 85 0.6437 88 0.6787 88 0.6787 88 0.6787 88 0.6787 89 0.6773 94 0.6061 50 0.9733 54 0.102 0.3011 Honduras 82 0.6773 94 0.6061 50 9973 65 0.9794 102 0.976 102 0.976 102 0.976 102 0.976 103 0.9796 102 0.976 102 0.976 103 0.9791 102 0.979 102 0.976 102 0.9791
Panama 37 0.7144 45 0.7136 43 0.9958 61 0.9733 48 0.1811 Kenya 78 0.6803 44 0.7146 107 0.923 102 0.9677 85 0.11 Slovenia 38 0.7155 43 0.7189 4 0.8253 112 0.8961 101 0.9683 56 0.166 Peru 80 0.6787 88 0.6278 88 0.9796 109 0.9685 69 0.14 Bahamas 40 0.7128 5 0.8244 1 1 0.9796 124 0.0471 Greece 81 0.6773 94 0.6013 50 0.9788 52 0.9787 78 0.11 Serbia 42 0.7116 59 0.6791 55 0.994 111 0.9642 39 0.2089 Czech 83 0.677 94 0.6013 50 9.9785 65 0.9737 53 0.17 Serbia 0.7094 53 0.6791 55 0.9971 58 0.1606
Slovenia 38 0.7155 43 0.7189 26 0.9999 75 0.973 54 0.1702 Cyprus 79 0.6801 85 0.6353 83 0.9835 91 0.9701 76 0.12 Malawi 39 0.7139 4 0.8253 112 0.8961 101 0.9683 56 0.166 Peru 80 0.6787 88 0.6278 88 0.9796 109 0.9658 69 0.14 Bahamas 40 0.7122 96 0.602 97 0.9663 1 0.9796 25 0.3011 Honduras 82 0.6773 94 0.601 35 0.9988 52 0.9762 78 0.1 Serbia 42 0.7116 59 0.6791 55 0.9924 34 0.9796 25 0.2089 Czech 83 0.677 94 0.6031 1 1 10 979 25 0.172 Malat 84 0.6761 108 0.5655 58 0.9935 65 0.9737 53 0
Malawi 39 0.7139 4 0.8253 112 0.8961 101 0.9683 56 0.166 Peru 80 0.6787 88 0.6278 88 0.9796 109 0.9658 69 0.14 Bahamas 40 0.7128 5 0.8244 1 1 1 0.9796 124 0.0471 Greece 81 0.6787 79 0.647 46 0.9953 65 0.9737 92 0.09 Cape Verde 41 0.7122 96 0.602 97 0.9643 1 0.9762 78 0.10 0.6061 35 0.9988 52 0.9762 78 0.12 Bulgaria 43 0.7097 49 0.7067 64 0.9924 34 0.9796 52 0.1727 Malta 84 0.6761 108 0.5655 58 0.9935 65 0.9737 53 0.17 France 45 0.7086 37 0.7285 123 0.8425 1 0.9796 28 0.2839 Georgia 86
Bahamas 40 0.7128 5 0.8244 1 1 1 0.9796 124 0.0471 Greece 81 0.6782 79 0.6471 46 0.9793 65 0.9737 79 0.096 Cape Verde 41 0.7112 96 0.602 97 0.9663 1 0.9796 25 0.3011 Honduras 82 0.6773 94 0.6061 35 0.9988 52 0.9762 78 0.12 Bulgaria 43 0.7097 49 0.7067 64 0.9924 34 0.9791 52 0.120 Republic 79 0.6039 1 1 46 0.9788 79 0.017 France 45 0.7084 57 0.669 1 1 0.9796 25 0.187 Botswana 85 0.6752 48 0.7018 1 127 0.9553 97 0.097 Jamaica 47 0.7085 36 0.7317 80 0.9884 1 0.9796 74 0.1345 Hungary 87
Cape Verde 41 0.7122 96 0.602 97 0.9663 1 0.9796 25 0.3011 Honduras 82 0.6773 94 0.6061 35 0.9988 52 0.9762 78 0.12 Serbia 42 0.7116 59 0.6791 55 0.994 11 0.9742 39 0.2089 Czech 83 0.677 95 0.609 1 1 46 0.9788 79 0.12 Bulgaria 43 0.7097 49 0.7067 64 0.9924 34 0.9791 52 0.1727 Malta 84 0.6761 108 0.5655 58 0.9935 65 0.9737 53 0.17 France 45 0.7086 37 0.7285 12 0.8425 1 0.9796 28 0.2839 Georgia 86 0.675 64 0.6741 89 0.9791 126 0.9553 97 0.09 Jamaica 47 0.7085 36 0.7317 80 0.9884 1 0.9796
Serbia 42 0.7116 59 0.6791 55 0.994 111 0.9642 39 0.2089 Czech 83 0.677 95 0.6039 1 1 46 0.9788 79 0.12 Bulgaria 43 0.7097 49 0.7067 64 0.9924 34 0.9791 58 0.1606 Republic 7 95 0.6039 1 1 46 0.9788 79 0.12 France 45 0.7089 67 0.669 1 1 0.9796 25 0.187 Botswana 85 0.6752 48 0.7108 1 1 27 0.953 97 0.09 Jganaica 47 0.7085 36 0.7317 80 0.9884 1 0.9796 74 0.1345 Hungary 87 0.6742 68 0.6677 62 0.9925 34 0.9791 120 0.055 0.9758 100 0.953 97 0.09 0.9925 34 0.9791 120 0.955 120 0.9553 100
Bulgaria 43 0.7097 49 0.7067 64 0.9924 34 0.9791 58 0.1606 Republic Namibia 44 0.7094 53 0.698 1 1 105 0.9671 52 0.1727 Malta 84 0.6761 108 0.5655 58 0.9935 65 0.9737 53 0.17 France 45 0.7086 37 0.7285 123 0.8425 1 0.9796 28 0.2839 Georgia 86 0.675 64 0.6471 89 0.9797 126 0.9553 97 0.031 Jamaica 47 0.7085 36 0.7317 80 0.9884 1 0.9796 74 0.1345 Hungary 87 0.6742 68 0.6677 62 0.9925 34 0.9791 120 0.055 Guyana 48 0.7085 10 0.6753 47 0.9791 33 0.2668 Brunei 88 0.673 33 0.7372 76 0.9889 109 0.9658 1
Namibia 44 0.7094 53 0.698 1 1 105 0.9671 52 0.1727 Malta 84 0.6761 108 0.5655 58 0.9935 65 0.9737 53 0.17 France 45 0.7089 67 0.669 1 1 1 0.9796 45 0.187 Botswana 85 0.6752 48 0.7108 1 1 127 0.9549 127 0.031 Uganda 46 0.7086 37 0.7285 123 0.8425 1 0.9796 74 0.1345 Hungary 87 0.6742 64 0.6771 62 0.9925 34 0.9791 120 0.055 Guyana 48 0.7085 102 0.5885 1 1 145 0.9796 33 0.2668 Brunei 88 0.673 33 0.7372 76 0.9889 109 0.9658 135 0.9758 140 0.9791 50 0.1779 Darussala 0.7056 66 0.6726 56 0.9994
France 45 0.7089 67 0.669 1 1 0.9796 45 0.187 Botswana 85 0.6752 48 0.7108 1 1 127 0.9549 127 0.033 Uganda 46 0.7086 37 0.7285 123 0.8425 1 0.9796 28 0.2839 Georgia 86 0.675 64 0.6741 89 0.979 126 0.9553 97 0.09 Jamaica 47 0.7085 36 0.7317 80 0.9884 1 0.9796 74 0.1345 Hungary 87 0.6732 68 0.6677 62 0.9925 34 0.9791 120 0.055 Guyana 48 0.7085 102 0.5885 1 1 0.9796 74 0.1345 Hungary 87 0.6732 68 0.6677 62 0.9889 109 0.9758 102 0.9658 11 0.9796 70 0.1779 Darussala 0.6724 83 0.6363 61 0.9928 55 0.9758<
Uganda 46 0.7086 37 0.7285 123 0.8425 1 0.9796 28 0.2839 Georgia 86 0.675 64 0.6741 89 0.979 126 0.9553 97 0.09 Jamaica 47 0.7085 36 0.7317 80 0.9884 1 0.9796 74 0.1345 Hungary 87 0.6742 68 0.6677 62 0.9925 34 0.9791 120 0.58 Guyana 48 0.7085 102 0.5885 1 1 45 0.9789 33 0.2668 Brunei 88 0.673 33 0.7372 76 0.9889 109 0.9658 135 Croatia 49 0.7069 61 0.6726 56 0.994 83 0.9724 46 0.1834 Tajikistan 90 0.6682 38 0.7284 110 0.8993 123 0.9759 100 0.084 Potugal 51 0.7037 32 0.7407 74 0.9907 34 0.9791 87
Jamaica 47 0.7085 36 0.7317 80 0.9884 1 0.9796 74 0.1345 Hungary 87 0.6742 68 0.6677 62 0.9925 34 0.9791 120 0.055 Guyana 48 0.7085 102 0.5885 1 1 45 0.9789 33 0.2668 Brunei 88 0.673 33 0.7372 76 0.9889 109 0.9658 135 Croatia 49 0.7069 61 0.6753 47 0.9991 50 0.1779 Darussala Venezuela 50 0.706 89 0.6256 33 0.9993 1 0.9794 37 0.2196 Paraguay 89 0.6724 83 0.6363 61 0.9928 55 0.9758 104 0.086 Portugal 51 0.7056 66 0.6726 56 0.994 83 0.9791 87 0.1043 Chile 91 0.6677 112 0.5445 32 0.9993 1 0.9796 67 <td< td=""></td<>
Guyana 48 0.7085 102 0.5885 1 1 45 0.9789 33 0.2668 Brunei 88 0.673 33 0.7372 76 0.9889 109 0.9658 135 Croatia 49 0.7069 61 0.6753 47 0.9951 34 0.9791 50 0.1779 Darussala Venezuela 50 0.706 89 0.6256 33 0.9993 1 0.9796 37 0.2196 Paraguay 89 0.6724 83 0.6363 61 0.9928 55 0.9758 104 0.086 Portugal 51 0.7056 66 0.6726 56 0.994 83 0.9724 46 0.1834 Tajikistan 90 0.6682 38 0.7284 110 0.8993 123 0.9559 100 0.086 Moldova 52 0.7037 32 0.7407 74 0.9907 34 0.9791 87 0.1043 Chile 91 0.667 112 0.5445 32 0.9993 1
Croatia490.7069610.6753470.9951340.9791500.1779DarussalaVenezuela500.706890.6256330.999310.9796370.2196Paraguay890.6724830.6363610.9928550.97581040.08Portugal510.7056660.6726560.994830.9724460.1834Tajikistan900.6682380.72841100.89931230.95591000.08Moldova520.7037320.7407740.9907340.9791870.1043Chile910.6671120.5445320.999310.9796670.144Israel530.7032560.6915820.9874930.9697570.1643Angola*920.6659920.61631270.806210.9796340.265Poland540.7031730.6563370.9983340.9791490.1786Bhutan*930.6651270.75281160.8843820.97251220.565Sri Lanka550.7016510.7033930.975740.9732610.1547Indonesia950.66131030.58811010.95741070.9663750.133Madagascar560.701651<
Venezuela 50 0.706 89 0.6256 33 0.9993 1 0.9796 37 0.2196 Paraguay 89 0.6724 83 0.6363 61 0.9928 55 0.9758 104 0.08 Portugal 51 0.7056 66 0.6726 56 0.994 83 0.9724 46 0.1834 Tajikistan 90 0.6682 38 0.7284 110 0.8993 123 0.9559 100 0.08 Moldova 52 0.7037 32 0.7407 74 0.9907 34 0.9791 87 0.1043 Chile 91 0.667 112 0.5445 32 0.9993 1 0.9796 67 0.144 Israel 53 0.7031 73 0.6563 37 0.9983 34 0.9791 49 0.1786 Bhutan* 93 0.6651 27 0.7528 116 0.8843 82 0.9725 122 0.506 Sri Lanka 55 0.7016 51 0.7033 93 0.975 74
Portugal510.7056660.6726560.994830.9724460.1834Tajikistan900.6682380.72841100.89931230.95591000.089Moldova520.7037320.7407740.9907340.9791870.1043Chile910.6671120.5445320.999310.9796670.14Israel530.7032560.6915820.9874930.9697570.1643Angola*920.6659920.61631270.806210.9796340.266Poland540.7031730.6563370.9983340.9791490.1786Bhutan*930.6651270.75281160.8843820.97251220.056Sri Lanka550.70191090.559480.994610.9796300.2744Armenia940.6634820.6384290.99951310.94971150.066Madagascar560.7016510.7033930.975740.9732610.1547Indonesia950.66131030.58811010.95741070.9663750.133
Moldova 52 0.7037 32 0.7407 74 0.9907 34 0.9791 87 0.1043 Chile 91 0.667 112 0.5445 32 0.9993 1 0.9796 67 0.14 Israel 53 0.7032 56 0.6915 82 0.9874 93 0.9697 57 0.1643 Angola* 92 0.6659 92 0.6163 127 0.8062 1 0.9796 34 0.266 Poland 54 0.7031 73 0.6563 37 0.9983 34 0.9796 30 0.2744 Bhutan* 93 0.6651 27 0.7528 116 0.8843 82 0.9725 122 0.050 Sri Lanka 55 0.7019 109 0.559 48 0.9746 1 0.9796 30 0.2744 Armenia 94 0.6634 82 0.6384 29 0.9995 131 0.9497 115 0.066 Madagascar 56 0.7016 51 0.7033 93 0.975 74 <
Israel 53 0.7032 56 0.6915 82 0.9874 93 0.9697 57 0.1643 Angola* 92 0.6659 92 0.6163 127 0.8062 1 0.9796 34 0.26 Poland 54 0.7031 73 0.6563 37 0.9983 34 0.9791 49 0.1786 Bhutan* 93 0.6651 27 0.7528 116 0.8843 82 0.9725 122 0.050 Sri Lanka 55 0.7019 109 0.559 48 0.9796 30 0.2744 Armenia 94 0.6634 82 0.6384 29 0.9995 131 0.9497 115 0.0663 Madagascar 56 0.7016 51 0.7033 93 0.975 74 0.9732 61 0.1547 Indonesia 95 0.6613 103 0.5881 101 0.9574 107 0.9663 75 0.133
Poland 54 0.7031 73 0.6563 37 0.9983 34 0.9791 49 0.1786 Bhutan* 93 0.6651 27 0.7528 116 0.8843 82 0.9725 122 0.050 Sri Lanka 55 0.7019 109 0.559 48 0.9746 1 0.9796 30 0.2744 Armenia 94 0.6634 82 0.6384 29 0.9995 131 0.9497 115 0.066 Madagascar 56 0.7016 51 0.7033 93 0.975 74 0.9732 61 0.1547 Indonesia 95 0.6613 103 0.5881 101 0.9574 107 0.9663 75 0.133
Sri Lanka 55 0.7019 109 0.559 48 0.9946 1 0.9796 30 0.2744 Armenia 94 0.6634 82 0.6384 29 0.9995 131 0.9497 115 0.0663 Madagascar 56 0.7016 51 0.7033 93 0.975 74 0.9732 61 0.1547 Indonesia 95 0.6613 103 0.5881 101 0.9574 107 0.9663 75 0.133
Madagascar 56 0.7016 51 0.7033 93 0.975 74 0.9732 61 0.1547 Indonesia 95 0.6613 103 0.5881 101 0.9574 107 0.9663 75 0.133
Macedonia 57 0.7013 71 0.6611 75 0.9903 128 0.9533 40 0.2007 El Salvador 96 0.6609 114 0.5345 79 0.9886 1 0.9796 70 0.140
Singapore 58 0.7 12 0.7883 105 0.9409 85 0.9719 90 0.0989 Maldives 97 0.6604 99 0.5914 1 1 112 0.9612 101 0.0/
Estonia 59 0.6997 41 0.7228 59 0.9931 34 0.9791 88 0.1038 Mauritius 98 0.6599 105 0.5735 72 0.9907 1 0.9796 93 0.099
Lao PDR* 60 0.6993 8 0.7999 113 0.8948 106 0.9669 73 0.1355 Azerbaijan 99 0.6582 72 0.6591 85 0.982 136 0.9254 114 0.066
Russian 61 0.6983 42 0.7204 36 0.9984 34 0.9791 94 0.0951 Cameroon 100 0.656 40 0.7258 122 0.847 112 0.9612 99 0.090
Federation 101 0.6551 124 0.4465 120 0.8574 135 0.9312 9 0.385
Brazil 62 0.6949 74 0.6561 1 1 1 0.9796 68 0.144 Malaysia 102 0.6518 100 0.5904 73 0.9907 75 0.973 121 0.05
Kyrgyz 63 0.6948 60 0.6789 77 0.9888 75 0.973 71 0.1383 Burkina Faso 103 0.6513 28 0.7467 128 0.7987 99 0.9685 98 0.09
Cambodia 104 0.6509 77 0.6514 117 0.8811 1 0.9796 96 0.091
Ukraine 64 0.6935 30 0.7426 27 0.9998 75 0.973 119 0.0587 Japan 105 0.6498 104 0.5841 91 0.9757 34 0.9791 118 0.060
Thailand 65 0.6928 50 0.7035 78 0.9888 1 0.9796 89 0.0992 Nigeria 106 0.6469 54 0.6965 126 0.8115 122 0.9607 83 0.11
Tanzania 66 0.6928 70 0.6635 118 0.8779 112 0.9612 32 0.2684 Belize 107 0.6449 80 0.6458 103 0.9445 1 0.9796 133 0.009
Senegal 67 0.6923 81 0.6401 125 0.827 71 0.9734 20 0.3286 Albania 108 0.6412 87 0.6324 92 0.9755 134 0.9313 130 0.025
Mexico 68 0.6917 111 0.5499 70 0.9911 1 0.9796 36 0.2463 United Arab 109 0.6372 122 0.4672 1 1 112 0.9612 81 0.120
China 69 0.6908 62 0.6752 81 0.988 133 0.9398 59 0.1604 Emirates
Romania 70 0.6908 55 0.6928 50 0.9945 34 0.9791 91 0.097 Suriname 110 0.6369 119 0.4986 39 0.9973 1 0.9796 110 0.072
Italy 71 0.6885 97 0.5973 65 0.9924 72 0.9733 44 0.1912 Korea 111 0.6351 118 0.5036 100 0.9592 75 0.973 86 0.104
Dominican 72 0.6867 63 0.6751 84 0.9822 89 0.9711 84 0.1184 Republic
Bahrain 112 0.6334 117 0.5146 71 0.9911 112 0.9612 113 0.066
Vietnam 73 0.6863 52 0.7023 95 0.9741 132 0.9441 80 0.1247 Zambia 113 0.6312 84 0.6354 121 0.8472 98 0.969 109 0.073
Slovak 74 0.6857 86 0.635 1 1 1 0.9796 77 0.1284 Guatemala 114 0.6304 113 0.5422 102 0.9522 1 0.9796 123 0.047
Qatar 115 0.6299 106 0.5735 53 0.9941 129 0.9522 135
Bangladesh 75 0.6848 121 0.4954 115 0.8846 124 0.9557 7 0.4036 Kuwait 116 0.6292 115 0.5252 57 0.9936 112 0.9612 126 0.07

APPENDICES

Fiii	117	0.6286	120	0.4975	63	0.9925	1	0.9796	125	0.0448
Ethiopia	118	0.6198	93	0.6148	131	0.7451	68	0.9737	66	0.1457
Jordan	119	0.6093	128	0.4145	68	0.9915	90	0.9706	117	0.0607
Turkey	120	0.6081	127	0.4269	104	0.9431	59	0.9755	103	0.0868
Nepal	121	0.6053	116	0.5151	130	0.7462	112	0.9612	41	0.1989
Oman	122	0.6053	123	0.4489	94	0.9745	59	0.9755	132	0.0221
Lebanon	123	0.6028	126	0.442	87	0.9796	1	0.9796	133	0.0099
Algeria	124	0.5966	133	0.3307	106	0.9387	108	0.9661	62	0.1511
Egypt	125	0.5935	125	0.4426	108	0.9199	51	0.9768	128	0.0348
Benin	126	0.5885	31	0.7419	136	0.5127	112	0.9612	72	0.1383
Saudi Arabia	127	0.5879	134	0.3223	90	0.9761	52	0.9762	105	0.0769
Mali	128	0.5872	107	0.5668	132	0.7291	54	0.9761	106	0.0769
Morocco	129	0.5845	129	0.3949	109	0.9002	88	0.9712	111	0.072
Iran Islamic	130	0.5842	130	0.3655	98	0.9653	87	0.9714	129	0.0346
Republic										
Côte d'Ivoire	131	0.5814	110	0.5561	133	0.7141	1	0.9796	107	0.0758
Mauritania	132	0.581	131	0.3651	119	0.8591	1	0.9796	82	0.1201
Syria	133	0.5661	136	0.2508	96	0.9682	58	0.9756	112	0.0697
Chad	134	0.5588	75	0.6547	135	0.5311	112	0.9612	102	0.0883
Pakistan	135	0.5459	135	0.3108	129	0.7685	124	0.9557	64	0.1487
Yemen	136	0.5128	132	0.3577	134	0.698	81	0.9727	131	0.0227





1 in 3 women throughout the world will experience physical and/or sexual violence by a partner or sexual violence by a non-partner



AR statistics can be framilian that report antibled Calculated and angional estimates of vocience against women. Provolvence and health reliefs of intervale partner visioner and non-partner vision of topical likedicine, and the South African Medical Research Council, from liters http://www.wki.uity/reproductiv/treadity/publications/visitence/en/index.html

Go Back

Go Back

178 SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS



VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN: HEALTH IMPACT

Women exposed to intimate partner violence are ->



All shifts can be transfer the report entitled Gobal and report elements of violence against women. Newsence and health effects of inforute partner violence and non-partner second violence, by the Warld Health Cognization, the London School of Hygene It Trajacal Medicine, and the Snott Alman Medical Research Council, Island Aree. http://www.whc.int/inproductive/noith/publications/violines/wo/index.html

Go Back



CPrivenoSTATS MULTRACALE.2 Day 17 The Woundow Proof

Programsy medium: 1.50 to 2.99 total mander rate lages 15 to 440 per 100,000 notal female population Frequency high-320 and above total femdle models rate lages 15 to 440 per 100,000 total female population No Data

Go Back

Rate of Murder of Women Scaled 2010

6 SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS 180

Margad to 1001 AND VisualLightBox.com



 Charactered Expension

 <td

Go Back

Go Back





VisualLightBox.com



POVERTY RATES FOR WOMEN, MEN, AND CHILDREN, 2000-2012



Go Back

www.mwlc.org



Figures from the US Census Bureau. (Chart: John LightMoyers & Company)







PERCENTAGE OF HIGHER-RATE MORTGAGES GIVEN TO BORROWERS WITH GOOD CREDIT, BY RACE 2004-2008





Figures from the Pew Research Center. (Chart: John Light/Moyers & Company)

Go Back



Data includes only borrowers with a FICO score of 660 or higher. Figures from the Center for Responsible Lending via the Economic Policy Institute. (Chart: John Light/Moyers & Company)

• Legend No Data 65.5% to 77.2% 77.3% 10.81.9% R2.0% to 86.4% B6.5% tu 95.8% 2 83.0%

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION FOR WHITES (NON-HISPANICS),

UNITED STATES, 2009-2010



Go Back

Go Back

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION FOR BLACKS (NON-HISPANICS), UNITED STATES, 2009-2010



INFANT MORTALITY FOR WHITES (NON-HISPANICS), UNITED STATES, 2006-2008

INFANT MORTALITY FOR BLACKS (NON-HISPANICS), UNITED STATES, 2006-2008



Go Back

JOB QUALITY FOR WHITES (NON-HISPANICS), UNITED STATES, 2007-2011

Legend Legend Light Light

Go Back



Go Back

JOB QUALITY FOR BLACKS (NON-HISPANICS), UNITED STATES, 2007-2011

Bin Bin

CHILD POVERTY FOR WHITES (NON-HISPANICS), UNITED STATES, 2008-2012

CHILD POVERTY FOR BLACKS (NON-HISPANICS), UNITED STATES, 2008-2012



Go Back

Children Living In High Poverty Areas By Race And Ethnicity

Year(s): 2008-2012 | Race: All | Data Type: Percent

Data Provided by: National KIDS COUNT

Location	Race	Data Type	2008 - 2012
United States	American Indian	Percent	28%
	Asian and Pacific Islander	Percent	75
	Black or African American	Percent	30%
	Hispanic or Latino	Percent	23%
	Non-Hispanic White	Percent	8
	Two or More Races	Percent	115
	Total	Percent	13%

Go Back

Teen Births By Race And Ethnicity Year(s): 5 selected | Race: All | Data Type: Rate per 1,000 Data Provided by: National KIDS COUNT

Location	Race	Data Type	2004	2006	2008	2010	2012
nited States	American Indian	Rate per 1,000	53	55	58	39	35
	Asian and Pacific Islander	Rate per 1,000	17	17	16	11	10
B	Black or African American	Rate per 1,000	63	65	63	51	44
	Itispanic or Latino	Rate per 1,000	83	83	78	56	46
	Non-Hispanic White	Rate per 1,000	26	26	26	23	20
	Total	Rate per 1,000	41	42	41	34	29

Go Back

U

Public Opinion That Immigration Is Bad For The Culture



Go Back

2009



Notes:

- Public support accounted here only concerns public support that is exclusively for families (e.g. child payments and allowances, parental leave benefits and childcare support). Spending recorded in other social policy areas as health and housing support). Spending recorded in other social policy areas as health and housing support also assists families, but not exclusively, and is not included here. - Data missing for Turkey. Data on tax breaks towards families is not available for Greece and Hungary.

1 The data for Israel are supplied by and under the responsibility of the relevant Israeli authorities. The use of such data by the OECD is without prejudice to the status of the Golan Heights, East Jerusalem and Israeli settlements in the West Bank under the terms of international law.

Source: Social Expenditure Database (www.oecd.org/els/social/expenditure), December 2013

Go Back

Public spending on family benefits in cash, services and tax measures, in per cent of GDP,

Family Cash Benefits¹ , 2011

	Maximu benefit fo child aged 3-	Maximum banefit for one child aged 3-12		num for one Id 3-12 Benefit amount per additional child varies with(2)		Upper age limit for		
	National currency	% of ∧ W	Age of chil d	Number of children	children (student)	Means test on	Observations	
	[1]	[2]	[3]	[4]	[5]	[6]	[7]	
Australia(3)	4,803	7	+/-	+ from 3rd 0	20 (24)	Family income.	Family tax benefit (FTB) part A to help families with cost of raising children. FTB part B paid to families with one	
						secondary earner in a couple.	main income.	
Austria	2,272	6	+	·	19 (27)	No	Maximum amount comprises benefit and non-wasteable tax credit. For low income families there is an extra supplement for each additional child from the 3rd.	
Belgium	1,266	3	+/-	+/-	17 (24)	No	For unemployed, family benefits are increased as from 7th month of unemployment.	
Canada	1,348	3	0	•	17	Family taxable income.	Canada child tax benefit (non-wastable tax credit).	
(Ontario)				from 3rd				
(anishe)	2,088	5	0		17	Family taxable income.	National Child Benefit (NCB) supplement for low income families.	
	1,100	2	0	0	17	Family taxable income.	Ontario Child Benefit	
Czech	7,320	3	*	0	14 (25)	Family income relative to minimum living standard.		
Republic					2115			
Denmark	13,448	4		0	17	No	Parents can also receive a means-tested "Green cheque" of EUR 300 per child through the tax system in respect of their first two childran.	
Estonia	3,600	2	0	+	15(18)	No	Payment triples for third and subsequent children.	
Finland	1,200	3	0	+	16	No		
France	747	2	*	•	19	No	Family allowance: zero benefit for first child. For 2 children (under age 11) the amount per child would be EUR 747 (2% of AW).	
Germany	2,208	5	0	+ from 3rd	18 (25)	No	Kindergeld is a non-wastable tax credit in the form of a monthly tax refund (reduces SA if there is no tax liability).	
	1,680	5	*	**	-	Yes	Supplementary child allowance (kinderzuschlag) is paid to parents to	

							prevent them from having to apply for unemployment benefit II/social welfare benefits only because of the maintenance of their children.
Greece	99	0	0	+/-	17 (21)	No	Employment condition: 50 days of work prior to the claim. In addition, the employer usually grants 5% of gross earnings to each worker for each child and 10% for the wife independently of her income status. The employer benefits are taxable.
Hungary	146,400	6	0		18 (22)	No	
Iceland	152,331	3	-	•	17	Allowance is reduced by a percentage of income above limit.	Basic allowance has an income limit of ISK 3 600 000 for a couple. Reduction is 3, 5 and 7% for 1, 2 and 3 children respectively.
	61,191	1	0	0	6	Means-tested along with the basic family allowance.	Supplement for children aged under 7.
Ireland	2,298	7	0	+ from 3rd	15 (18)	No	-
Israel	1,980	2	0	+	17	No	Increment to child allowance available
Incl. (4)	1.002		0		17	Maurahala	for families with three or more children.
italy(4)	1,092	•	0	.*	. 17	taxable income.	granted if at least 70% of household taxable income is employment income (or earnings replacement benefits including unemployment benefits and employment pension). A spouse is considered a dependant so a couple with no children can receive family allowance. Benefits are reduced in proportion to days not worked. Temporary additional benefit available in 2010 for children aged less than 3 years, this is not included in the modelling as it is only payable to home- and car-owners.
	800	3	-3	0	17	Household taxable income.	Wastable family tax credits.
Japan	156,000	3	0	0	15	No	Supplementary child allowance available as part of SA.
Korea						-	-
Luxembourg	2,809	6	+		17 (26)	No	Maximum amount by age is reached at age 12.
Netherlands	1,114	2	+	1	17	No	Universal child benefit.
	1,242	3	+	1	17	Family taxable income.	The benefit is withdrawn at a rate of 7.6 per cent when the family's yearly taxable income exceeds EUR 28897.
New Zealand	4,487	9	+	1	18	Family income.	Family Tax Credit
Norway	11,640	2	0	0	17	No	Lone-parents receive payment for one
							more child than they have, as well as a

						supplement for children aged between 1 and 3.
1,092	3	•	*	17 (20)	Net income per family member.	Supplementary benefits available in specific circumstances.
568	3	•		15 (23)	Family gross income (including some benefits)	Higher benefits for children aged under 1. Benefits also vary relative to family income (six levels). For first income level households, benefit amount is doubled in September for schooling expenses for children between 6 and 16.
264	3	0	0	15 (25)	No	The child allowance is provided at a uniform amount. Child tax credit is described in employment-conditional
1.020				43/05	and the second second	benefits table.
1,372	8	U		17(25)	Gross income	Large family allowance is paid as a lump sum payment for families with three and more children. Benefit amount is increased by 10% for lone parents.
291	1	2	0	17	Gross family income.	Not taxable.
12,600	3	0	+	15(19)	No	**
3,000	4	•	0	15 (24)	No	Amounts are fixed at the level of the cantons and paid by the employer. Benefits are taxable but not subject to social contributions.
÷.		- 44				
1,056	3	0	4	15 (18)	No	Fixed rate from 2nd child.
				2017		
2,845	8	0	·	15 (18)	Gross family income.	Child Tax Credit. Withdrawn after Working Tax Credit has been exhausted where families are also eligible for the WTC.
1,068	2	0	+/-		Yes	Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF): benefit is based on family size at the time of application rather than number of children. The
						benefit amounts and durations vary by State.
420	6	0	0	17 (19)	Gross per capita family income	
96	2	0	0	14 (18)	No	
624	3	1	0	18	Net family income.	Only paid till age 7 if two children or lass.
1,156	6	0	+	15 (20)	Income excluding SSCs	-
1,254	5	•	3	18	Universal component and means-tested component	Means-tested component is increased if family receives SA.
	1,092 568 264 1,372 291 12,600 3,000 1,056 2,845 1,068 1,068	1,092 3 568 3 264 3 1,372 8 291 1 12,600 3 3,000 4 1,056 3 2,845 8 1,068 2 420 6 96 2 624 3 1,156 6 1,254 5	1,092 3 * 568 3 - 264 3 0 1,372 8 0 291 1 - 12,600 3 0 3,000 4 * 1,056 3 0 1,056 3 0 2,845 8 0 1,068 2 0 420 6 0 96 2 0 624 3 - 1,156 6 0 1,254 5 -	1,092 3 $+$ $+$ 568 3 $ 264$ 3 0 0 $1,372$ 8 0 $+$ 291 1 $ 0$ $12,600$ 3 0 $+$ $3,000$ 4 $+$ 0 $ 1,056$ 3 0 $+$ $2,845$ 8 0 $ 1,068$ 2 0 $+/ 420$ 6 0 0 96 2 0 0 96 2 0 0 $1,156$ 6 0 $+$ $1,254$ 5 $ -$	1,092 3 + + 17 (20) 568 3 - . 15 (23) 264 3 0 0 15 (25) 1,372 8 0 + 17(25) 291 1 - 0 17 12,600 3 0 + 15 (19) 3,000 4 + 0 15 (19) 3,000 4 0 - - 1,056 3 0 - 15 (18) 2,845 8 0 - - 1,068 2 0 +/- - 420 6 0 0 17 (19) 96 2 0 0 14 (18) 1,156 5 - - 18 1,156 5 - - 18	1,092 3 + 17 [20] Net income per family member. 568 3 - - 15 [23) Family gross income (including some benefits) 264 3 0 0 15 [25) No 1,372 8 0 + 17(25) Gross income 291 1 - 0 17 Gross family income. 12,600 3 0 + 15 [17) No 12,600 3 0 + 15 [17) No 12,600 3 0 + 15 [17) No 3,000 4 + 0 15 [18) No 2,845 8 0 - - - 1,068 2 0 +/- - Yes 420 6 0 0 17 (19) Gross per capita family income 96 2 0 0 14 (18) No 16 (20) Income excluding sincome excluding sincome. 1,156<

1. Family benefits including non-wastable tax credits. All benefit amounts are shown on an annualised basis. "--" indicates that no information is available or not applicable. In general family benefits are not taxable unless otherwise indicated.

"+": increases, "-": decreases, "0": remains the same, "+/-": increases or decreases (some countries give higher rates to the youngest and oldest age groups).
 See also the Parenting Payment in lone-parents benefits table.

4. Benefit amount for the first child is calculated as the difference in benefit between a 3-member and a 2-member household.

5. Benefit amount for a household with no declared income. Benefit amount as 6% (1 child percentage) of household income limit LM 10 270.

6. Footnote by Turkey: The information in this document with reference to « Cyprus » relates to the southern part of the Island. There is no single authority representing both Turkish and Greek Cypriot people on the Island. Turkey recognizes the Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus (TRNC). Until a lasting and equitable solution is found within the context of United Nations, Turkey shall preserve its position concerning the "Cyprus issue".

7. Footnote by all the European Union Member States of the OECD and the European Commission: The Republic of Cyprus is recognized by all members of the United Nations with the exception of Turkey. The information in this document relates to the area under the effective control of the Government of the Republic of Cyprus. 8. The data for Israel are supplied by and under the responsibility of the relevant Israeli authorities. The use of such data by the OECD is without prejudice to the status of the Golan Heights, East Jerusalem and Israeli settlements in the West Bank under the terms of international law.

Source: Source: OECD Benefits and wages database 2013

Public social expenditure by age group, 2009 Proportion of total spending per child

	Early	Middle	Late	
Age group	childhood	childhood	childhood	
Iceland	36.8	33.5	29.7	
Hungary	34.1	32.3	33.6	
Czech				
Republic	34.1	28.2	37.7	
France	30.4	30.1	39.5	
Finland	30.2	29.7	40.1	
Slovak				
Republic	30.2	35.1	34.7	
Germany	29.7	33.2	37.2	
Australia	29.5	33.3	37.2	
Norway	29.3	34.1	36.6	
Estonia	29.2	31.4	39.5	
Slovenia	29.0	37.0	34.0	
Sweden	27.9	35.5	36.7	
United				
Kingdom	27.6	35.1	37.3	
Luxembourg	27.1	33.4	39.5	
Chile	26.0	38	36	
New Zealand	26.0	34.7	39.3	
Netherlands	24.8	32.4	42.8	
Denmark	24.5	39.7	35.8	
Italy	24.1	37.6	38.3	
Spain	23.1	34.1	42.8	
Ireland	22.4	34.9	42.7	
Israel	22.0	39.6	38.4	
Belgium	21.7	31.8	46.6	
Greece	21.5	35.7	42.7	
Austria	20.5	37.6	42.0	
Mexico	20.4	42.9	36.7	
Korea	19.1	40.3	40.6	
Portugal	18.7	34.4	46.9	
Poland	16.6	41.5	42.0	
Japan	15.0	42.8	42.1	
United States	12.0	41.9	46.1	
Switzerland	11.1	40.6	48.3	

Note: Data missing for Canada and Turkey. Source: OECD Social Expenditure Database and OECD Education database.

Go Back







* For Spain only aggregate spending data are presented. 1) Footnote by Turkey: The information in this document with reference to « Cyprus » relates to the southern part of the Island. There is no single authority representing both Turkish and Greek Cypriot people on the Island. Turkey recognizes the Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus (TRNC). Until a lasting and equitable solution is found within the context of United Nations, Turkey shall preserve its position concerning the "Cyprus issue".

2) Footnote by all the European Union Member States of the OECD and the European Commission: The Republic of Cyprus is recognized by all members of the United Nations with the exception of Turkey. The information in this document relates to the area under the effective control of the Government of the Republic of Cyprus.

3) The data for Israel are supplied by and under the responsibility of the relevant Israeli authorities. The use of such data by the OECD is without prejudice to the status of the Golan Heights, East Jerusalem and Israeli settlements in the West Bank under the terms of international law. Source: Social Expenditure database 2012; OECD Education database 2012; Eurostat for EU-countries outside the OECD.

Public expenditure on childcare and pre-school, per child, 2008 Expenditure per child on childcare and pre-primary education in US\$ (PPP converted)



Source: Social Expenditure database 1980-2007; OECD Education database; and, US Department of Health and Human Services.

Go Back



Countries ranked in descending order of total spending on education as a percentage of GDP Notes: Data for Canada on primary education and data for Luxembourg on tertiary education is unavailable. 1. Data refers to 2005 for Canada and Greece.

2. Footnote by Turkey: The information in this document with reference to « Cyprus » relates to the southern part of the Island. There is no single authority representing both Turkish and Greek Cypriot people on the Island. Turkey recognizes the Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus (TRNC). Until a lasting and equitable solution is found within the context of United Nations, Turkey shall preserve its position concerning the "Cyprus issue".

3. Footnote by all the European Union Member States of the OECD and the European Commission: The Republic of Cyprus is recognized by all members of the United Nations with the exception of Turkey. The information in this document relates to the area under the effective control of the Government of the Republic of Cyprus.

4. The data for Israel are supplied by and under the responsibility of the relevant Israeli authorities. The use of such data by the OECD is without prejudice to the status of the Golan Heights, East Jerusalem and Israeli settlements in the West Bank under the terms of international law. Source: OECD Education Database, 2013, and Eurostat Education Database, 2013.

Go Back

Public Expenditure on Education by level, per cent of GDP, 2009

Expenditure on educational institutions as a percentage of GDP (2010) From public and private sources, by level of education and source of funds

Private expenditure on educational institutions Public expenditure on educational institutions



Source: Social Expenditure database 1980-2007; OECD Education database; and, US Department of Health and Human Services. 1. Public expenditure only for Switzerland, in tertiary education only, for Norway, in primary, secondary and post-secondary non-tertiary education only).

Countries are ranked in descending order of expenditure from both public and private sources on educational institutions in primary, secondary and post-secondary non-tertiary education.

Source: OECD. Argentina: UNESCO Institute for Statistics (World Education Indicators Programme). Table B2.3. See Annex 3 for notes (www.oecd.org/edu/eag.htm).

Statiink arg http://dx.doi.org/10.1787/888932846899

Go Back

Map 1. Statutory duration of maternity leave, 2013 (185 countries and territories)



Source: ILO Working Conditions Laws Database - Maternity Protection, 2013. Available at: http://www.ilo.org/travdatabase.

Map 2. Source of funding of maternity leave cash benefits, 2013 (185 countries and territories)



Source: ILO Working Conditions Laws Database - Maternity Protection, 2013. Available at: http://www.ilo.org/travdatabase.

Go Back

Statutory and collectively agreed annual leave, 2007

	Days of paid annual leave						
	Statutory minimum 1	Collectively agreed (Avg.)	Public holidays ²				
Australia	20	H.	8 to 10				
Austria	25	25	10				
Belgium	20		8				
Bulgaria	20	24	10				
Canada ¹	10 to 20		10				
Czech Republic	20	25	8				
Cyprus ^{2,3}	20	20	15				
Denmark	25	30	9				
Estonia	20	20	10				
Finland	20	25	10				
France	25	25	11				
Germany	20	30	9				
Greece	20	23	10				
Hungary	20	ai.	6				
Iceland							
Ireland	20	*	9				
Japan ¹	10 to 20	NT-	15				
Italy	20	28	10				
Korea ¹	8 to 20		14				
Latvia	20	**	11				
Lithuania	20	44.	12				
Luxembourg	25	28	10				
Malta	24		14				
Netherlands	20	25.6	8				
New Zealand	(15) 20 3		11				
Norway	21	25	8				
Poland	20	4).	11				
Portugal	22	24.5	12				
Romania	20	21	7				
Slovak Republic	20	21.1	12				
Slovenia	20	-	16				
Spain	22		11				
Sweden	25	33	9				
Switzerland ¹	20 to 25	+	8				
Turkey		#	(4+1)				
UK	24	24.6	8				
US	0	+	10				

Countries ranked in descending order of total spending on education as a percentage of GDP Notes: Data for Canada on primary education and data for Luxembourg on tertiary education is unavailable. 1. Data refers to 2005 for Canada and Greece. 2. Footnote by Turkey: The information in this document with reference to « Cyprus » relates to the southern
2 Footnote by Turkey: The information in this document with reference to "Cyprus" relates to the southern part of the Island. There is no single authority representing both Turkish and Greek Cypriot people on the Island. Turkey recognizes the Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus (TRNC). Until a lasting and equitable solution is found within the context of United Nations, Turkey shall preserve its position concerning the "Cyprus issue".

3 Footnote by all the European Union Member States of the OECD and the European Commission: The Republic of Cyprus is recognized by all members of the United Nations with the exception of Turkey. The information in this document relates to the area under the effective control of the Government of the Republic of Cyprus.

4 20 days from 1 April 2007 onwards (beforehand 15 days).

5. For federal countries, this is subject to variation across Cantons/Provinces and States. Typically, these jurisdictions recognize one or two additional public holidays, but in the Canadian province of Newfoundland there are six additional public holidays.

Sources: For EU countries EIROnline, Working time developments - 2007; and, OECD (2007), Babies and Bosses for other countries.

Go Back

Employers' provision of childcare/other domestic support Proportion of companies offering services¹

	Companies of	offer childcare and/or		Companies offer childca and/or	
	With employees on parental leave	With no employees on parental leave		With employees on parental leave	With no employees on parental leave
Austria	6	7	Ireland	5	14
Belgium	3	3	Italy	2	2
Czech Republic	3	3	Luxembourg	9	5
Cyprus (2,3)	4	3	Netherlands	41	26
Denmark	5	4	Poland	3	7
Germany	5	3	Portugal	7	5
Greece	9	5	Slovenia	1	2
Hungary	4	5	Spain	8	3
Latvia	22	15	Sweden	3	3
Finland	7	4	United Kingdom	17	17
France	7	8	EU21	8	7

1) Companies with 10 or more employees form all economic sectors except agriculture

2) and 3) see notes (1) and (2) for Chart PF3.1.A

Source: Establishment Survey on Working Time, 2004-2005 (management interviews), in Anxo et al. (2007), Parental leave in European companies, European Foundation for the Improvement of Living and Working Conditions.

How working time arrangements are set, 2009

Incidence of employer-provided flexible working time arrangements, 2009 Proportion of companies (establishment)s providing flexi-time

- Possibility to vary the start and end of daily work, but no accumulation of hours
- Possibility to accumulate hours, but no accumulation of full day off
- Possibility to use accumulated hours for days of leave



Establishments with 10 or more employees; all economic sectors are covered, except for agriculture. Countries are ranked by decreasing percentage of establishment allowing employees to either use accumulated hours for full days off or for longer period of leave. Source: Source: European Companies Survey, 2009. Eurofound.

Go Back - Page 73

Go Back - Page 95



Countries are ranked by decreasing proportion of employees having some opportunity to adapt their working time. Source: Fifth European Survey on Working Conditions, 2010



Go Back

INVESTMENT IN ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BY SPECIALIZED PRODUCERS AS A PERCENTAGE OF GDP IN EUROPEAN COUNTRIES



(1) Ireland, Greece and United Kingdom, not available.
(2) Estimate.
(3) 2010.
(4) 2009.
(5) 2008.
(6) 2007.
(7) 2006.
(8) 2005.
(9) 2003.
Source: Eurostat (online data codes: env_ac_exp2)

Go Back

PUBLIC INVESTMENT IN ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AS A PERCENTAGE OF GDP IN EUROPEAN COUNTRIES

EDUCATION VS. PRISON COSTS, UNITED STATES





Go Back



Go Back



www.globalissues.org

Current Military Spending and Cost of Past Wars

Responses to Poverty

Interest on Public Debt

Supporting the Economy

Federal Government Operations

Energy, Science & Environment

Diplomacy, Development and War Prevention

Source: Friends Committee on National Legislation, April 2013

and an antitute of all military expenditure in 2012 is made by 23 China, 9.5% Russia, 5.2% UK. 3.5% Japan, 3.4% USA, 39% France, 3,4% Saudi Arabia, 3.2% India, 2.6% Germany, 2.6% Others, 18%

THE SHARE OF WORLD MILITARY EXPENDITURE OF THE 15 STATES WITH THE HIGHEST EXPENDITURE IN 2012

Go Back





Source: Gabai Genter Gap Index 2013 and Gabai Competitiveness Index 2013-2014. None: Gabai Genter Gap Index and Gabai Competitiveness Index acales have been transated to enhance readability

Relationship between GDP per capita and the Global Gender Gap Index 2013 score



Source: Getail Genite Gap Index 2013 and the World Bank's Mohl Development Aukantes (MD) online database, accessed May 2013. Note: The Gabail Genite Gap Index has been transable to enhance readability.

Go Back





Source: Galaxi Gender Gap Index 2013 and UHSP, Atemational Human Development Indicators online database, 2012 (accessed September 2013), Nate: Galaxi Gender Gap Index and Human Development Index acales have been truncated to enhance mabalility.

Go Back

226 | SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS

Relationship between Economic Participation and Opportunity and Educational Attainment subindex scores



Source: Global Gondor Gap Index 2013.

Note: Economic Participation and Opportunity and Educational Attainment subindex acores have been truncated to enhance readability.

Go Back



Go Back

228 SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS

Median Wages for Direct-Care Workers, Adjusted for Inflation (2012 Dollars) \$11.00 -Nursing Assistants \$12.33 \$11.74 \$12.00 -\$11,19 \$11.00 Home Health Aides \$10.01 \$18.04 **Personal Care Aides** \$12.00 . \$9.57 \$9.00 2011 2012 2009 2002 2003 2004 2005 2007 2008 2010 2005

Go Back

LTC users as share of the population in OECD countries, 2008 Home care use Institutional care use Total LTC use % of population

Go Back

5

4

3

2

1

patant

SPE

230 SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS APPENDICES

More LTC users receive care at home than in institutions



Most LTC users are women aged over 80 years

LTC users by age and gender, as a share of respective population group, 2008



Note: Data for Austria, Belgium, France and Poland refer to 60 years instead of 65; data for the Slovak Republic refer to 62 years; for Norway, data refer to 67 years and over. For home-care users in Poland, the age breakdown refers to 60-74 years and those aged over 75, instead of 65-79 and those over 80. Data for Sweden refer to institutional care only. Data for Canada, the Netherlands, Australia and Luxembourg refer to 2007. Austrian data represent recipients of cash allowances.

Source: OECD Health Data 2010 and additional Australian and Swedish data. StatLink 400 http://dx.doi.org/10.1787/888932400627

Go Back

of those in need

LTC-worker density per 100 persons over 80 years across OECD countries, 2008 or latest available year



Note: The definition of full-time equivalent (FTE) varies across countries. Data Italy are from 2003; data for New Zealand and the United States are from 2006; data for the Slovak Republic, Germany, Australia, Denmark, Canada, Hungary and Luxembourg are from 2007; data for Spain, Korea, the Netherlands and Sweden are from 2009. Data from Germany exclude elderly care nurses (circa 170 000, 2007); data for the Netherlands are limited to nurses and ADL assistants in employment.

Source: OECD Health Data 2010 and Korea National Statistical Office. Stati.ink 400 http://dx.doi.org/10.1787/888932400703

Go Back

The size of the LTC workforce is limited compared to the number

The shares of the population aged over 65 and 80 years in the OECD will increase significantly by 2050



Go Back

	Wages (monthly gross, unless mentioned otherwise)	Remarks/sources
elete	Registered nurses (RN) Level 1 top per annum wages:	Wages vary according to function and jurisdiction. Wages for personal care workers at max classification may include managerial positions
	AUD 55 123 (around EUR 40 122) to 61 869 (around EUR 45 038).	Wapes are 50% more than minimum weekly in 2002 (Follows and Columbo, 2009)
	Personal care worker:	
	AUD 28 079-37 267 (amond FUR 20 445-27 128)	
	to AUD 36 131-38 906 (around EUR 26 299-28 377)	
	Brook around 2000	
ala lum	Rasic annual (mones) wasan 2000	atam werk heinig haf 40/33/230-2008-003655 off
	Fill 21 867-34 567 Name and start	and a conference of the second of the
	FUE 22 765-37 556 Bankhard surse	Earlists additional assesses (incompanience arrival lands atr.)
-	Home two workers FAD 16 1 (around 118) 11 8) are how 110 workers	Educed administrative payments (inconversely, are usineers, etc.)
	CAD 12.7 (around EUR 1.3) (home-service workers) to CAD 24.4 (around EUR 17.9) howdy (Bin)	Library and research (const
ark Basshile	Names City 72 800 (annual FUR 844)	2008 data Average subject F2X 24 282 in 2008
arts understand	Remote out as por providence of prov	(according to Czech Statistical Office)
	(around EUR 593)	
	Salartes in social services sectors:	
	Nurses: CZK 24 009 (around EUR 989)	
	Nurses auxiliary: C2X 18 395 (around EUR 758)	
	Ambulance attendants: CZX 16 179 (around EUR 667) per month	
tenia	Nursing care hospital workers salary (March 2009) EEK 22 809 (around EUR 1 458) (March 2008: EEK 18 550; around EUR 1 185)	
Ind	(end 2009) Average salary licensed practical nurse: EUR 2 370	There are no significant differences in salary levels between local
	ANI: EUR 2 860	government and private sector
1001	Monthly wages (2009) at 31 years of age in private not-for profit sector: - infermior dpilone d'EartEUR 2 442	LTC workers in private contract earn minimum wage, while those workin through agencies earn 50% more (Fujisawa and Colombo, 2009)
	- alde-solgmant (personal carer) EUR 1 852	
	- side midder-psychologique EUR 1 856	
	- auxiliaire de vie applaie EUR 1 856	
rmany	72% of all elder care tull-time employees interviewed earn under EUR 2 000; 48% earn less than EUR 1 500	Nölle and Goesmann (2009); Fuchs (without year); reported in: Oschmiansky (2010)
tand	Annual Home Help: EUR 29 352-EUR 30 659 (levels: 2008)	
	Rursus aides (Duble, non-paypath); EUR 29 299-EUR 30 630	
	Home below you (1 Queen d duese service nine quertime hours	(data secondari June 2008) Nakai Milay Jasharhi Anda Kaine Roda
	JPY 211 700 (around EUR 1 888) monthly; special annual wave. JPY 278 600 (around EUR 2 485)	Attai Chesa (2008 Fact Finding Survey on Long-term Care Work)
	Nursing care worker of weithre facility, age 35.6 years, 5.2 years	
	service, four overtime hours:	
	JPY 215 800 (around EUR 1 924) with special annual wage JPY 505 000 (around EUR 4 502)	
	Hame-vial care workers, average monthly: JPY 207 541 (around EUR 1 844)	Wapes appr. 64-47% of average (Fujisawa and Colombo, 2009)
	Institutional care workers: JPV 217 415 (around FUR 1 917)	
and an	Infernior FLIB 2 675-FLIB 6 671	Furl incompaniences annual lange afr
	And an annual fill a 175 fill a 475	Contemporary and many and
the data is	Andersongnant: Europe and an de unit?	Water based on collection bitmer accounter (CAD 10/7 2008 10)
	Changes, contents congress of an an equ.	Employers receive compensation for "wage sensitive" costs. Wages exclude overtime, inconvenience rostering, annual extras
	Wages: EUR 1 729 to EUR 2 558 (2008), depending on experience	
rw Zealand	Median hourly wage for personal and home-care aids (2000): N2D 7.50 (around EUR 4.2)	Health Outcomes International (2007)
arway.	(as al and 2008): NOK 29 000 (around EUR 3 657) per math	
oval Republic	2008 FUR 276-FUR 385 grass monthly thath institution and home care)	Overall average salary: FUR 766.41: minimum (2000): FUB 295.5
the second se	the second	Statement of the second of the

Table 5.3. Wages in LTC

Slevenia	Basic monthly wages: Nursing assistant II, 15 wage grade (WG): EUR 817.43 Nurse holding secondary education degree, 21 WG: EUR 1 034.30 The basic wage for a social care; 13 WG: EUR 755.75	Wages between 50-70% of national average (Fujisaws and Colombo, 2008)
United Kingdom	Median hourly wages for LTC in adult social care: GBP 6.56 (around EUR 7.62)	14% above minimum; lower than in health care, esp. in home care Private sector pays lower than not for profit, lower than public sector (Cangiano et al., 2008a, 2009b)
United States	2007: Direct care workers: Median hourly wages USD 18.48 (around EUR 7.67) (2007). In 2008: 5.5% decrease	Wages are 31% below US median. 2008: US Median increases by 3% (PH, 2007, 2010)
		Wages appr. 51% of average wage in 2007 (Fujisawa and Colombo, 2009)

Notes: Country currencies are converted into euros using the 2011 exchange rates. LPN: Licenced professional nurse. RN: Registered nurse. Source: OECD 2009-10 Questionnaire on Long-term Care Workforce and Financing, unless other sources are mentioned.

Go Back

Most LTC workers are women





Note: Data for Japan refer to 2003. Data for the United States, New Zealand, Canada refer to 2006. Data for Denmark refer to 2007. Data for the Slovak Republic and Norway refer to 2008. Data for Korea refer to 2009. German data do not include elderly care nurses (170 000 in 2007). Source: OECD Health Data 2010.

Go Back

236 | SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS

StatLink and http://dx.doi.org/10.1787/888932401501







Go Back

Go Back



Go Back

Large Gaps In Well-Being Separate America's Major Racial And Ethnic Groups Nationwide

Human Development

Asian Americans score the highest on the American HD Index, followed by whites, Latinos, African Americans, and Native Americans and Alaskan Natives. Based on 2007 Census Bureau figures, non-Hispanic whites make up about 66 percent of the U.S. population; Latinos, 15 percent; African Americans, 12 percent; Asian Americans, 4 percent; American Indians and Alaskan Natives, 1 percent.



Education

In terms of access to knowledge, the Index measures a combination of educational attainment and school enrollment. On the attainment scale, nearly one in five Asian American adults has a graduate degree. Latinos lag in education; nearly four in ten adults 25 and older did not complete high school.

EDUCATION INDEX Atreas Asian Americana Latines Native Whites Arrise Garne Anatikans 5.62 2.20 3.31 4.39 7.99

Go Back

240 SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS

() Health

In terms of health, which is measured by life expectancy, Asian Americans are the longest-lived [86.6 years], followed by Listinos [82.8 years], who outlive whites by more than four years. In seven states, Latinos can expect to live over 85 years (NJ, MA, NV, IL, RI, WA, ORI. Native Americans and African Americans live the shortest lives.

	LIFE EXP	ECTANCY I	IN YEARS	->
+				
Atrant	Native Americans	Multer	Latres	Americana
73.4	74.2	78.5	82.8	86.6

1 Income

In terms of income, U.S. median earnings are \$29,740 per person. Asian Americans and whites earn the most; Latinos and Native Americans earn the least. Native Americans median earnings are less than \$22,000.



Basic Living Characteristics wiii





Go Back

Go Back

242 SOCIAL WEALTH ECONOMIC INDICATORS

	32%
15%	
11%	
	Total Population
14%	American Indian /Alaska Native
12%	
ment and P	overty
13%	25%
	22%

The share of public LTC expenditure is higher than that of private LTC expenditure in OECD countries

Percentage of GDP, 2008



Note: Data for Austria, Belgium, Canada, the Czech Republic, Denmark, Hungary, Iceland, Norway, Portugal, Switzerland and the United States refer only to health-related long-term care expenditure. In other cases, expenditure relates to both health-related (nursing) and social long-term care expenditure. Social expenditures on LTC in the Czech Republic are estimated at 1% of GDP (Source: Czech Ministry of Health, 2009). Data for Iceland and the United States refer only to nursing long-term care in institutions. Data for the United States underestimate expenditure on fully private LTC arrangements. Data for Poland exclude infrastructure expenditure, amounting to about 0.25% of GDP in 2007. Data for the Netherlands do not reflect user co-payments, estimated at 8% of total AWB2 expenditure in 2007. Data for Australia refer to 2005; data for the Slovak Republic and Portugal refer to 2006; data for Denmark, Japan and Switzerland refer to 2007.

Source: OECD Health Data 2010.

Statish and http://dx.doi.org/10.1787/888932400722

Go Back





Go Back

₹.







Care leave is less frequent than parental leave

Source: European Establishment Survey on Working Time and Work-Life Balance, 2004. StatLink 400 http://dx.doi.org/10.1787/888932401387

	PATIRNAL	O-LONING	EDLCATIONAL STATUS	ICOHONIC	ROUTICAL	
	Lifetime risk af maternal death (I is number stated)	Under-S martality rate (per 1,000 live births)	Espected number of years of formal schooling	Gross national Income per capita (current USS)	Participation of woman in national guvernment (% seats held by women)*	Muthers' Index Rask (out of 176 countries)
Country or Territory	2010	2011	2012	2011	2013	2013
Reparistan	12	101.1	83 (b)	679	27.4	145
Abasia	2,298	ю	11.3	3,988	15.2	81
Ageria	408	19.8	13.6	4.09	25.8	74
Angela		157.6	10.2	3,630	34.1	123
Argentina	548	14,8	16.4	1,148	11.1	36
Amenia	UW	11.5	121	1,140	18.7	15
Aerala	8,100	45	87.A (4)	41,138	29.3	10
Autria	16,289	0	15.4	48,199	28.7	
Azetaijas	1,908	44.7	113	5,298	16.0	58
Islans	1,188	16.2	\$2.6 (s)	31,978	163	47
Baleain	1,808	16.0	14.1	15,936	16.8	44
Raglaich	170	46.0	LJ (0	190	18.7	136
Battales	1.38	19.7	16.0	12,568	19.4	48
Belaras	14,300	5.6	15.3	5,030	29.5	26
Beigian	7,588	u	16.5	45,990	11.1	
Belex	410	16.9	111	1,710	63	88
Senie .	12	106.0	(1) (1)	190	14	140
Betar	218	81	12.4	2,130	11.9	120
Babsia, Plarinational State of	14	SRA	83	2,620	34.1	13
Senia and Reception	11,40	11	0.4	CH	19.3	47
Betweene	239	15.9	iu	3,470	7.9	116
bui	*10	15.6	HQ	18,728	1.4	78
Branei Danassalam	1,90	12	15.)	31,300	-	-
Belgaria	\$,900	12.1	14.0	4,538	22.9	0
Burbina Fase	55	146.4	6.9	530	15.7	161
lundi	11	09.1	11.9 (4)	298	349	137
Cambodia	158	423	11.0	838	18.5	130
Cameroon	11	127.3	115	1,210	13.9	153
Canada	\$,398	5.4	15.1	45,548	28.0	22
Cape Node	40	21.3	13.0	1,540	28.8	#1
Central African Republic	-26	162.5	12	488	12.5	171
Chail	15	149.0	12	470	10	168
Chile	2,398	11	14.9	12,300	11.9	51
Oira	1,700	141	11.9	4,940	21.3	48
Calumbia	418	12.1	13.4	4,838	11.6	13
Comunit	17	79.3	18.2	770	1.0	143
Congo, Democratic Republic of the	38	162.3	15	198	LL LL	176
Cango	39	91.1	9.8 (4)	2,250	- 14	157
Cent No.	1,300	10.1	13.5	7,440	38.4	41
Gin divier	53	110	6.6 (9)	1,810	18.4	167
Grania	4,100	\$1	14.1	13,530	23.8	34
Calls	1,300	11	15.4	5,440	45.2	33
Cyprus	4,300	3.1	14.0	29,450	10.7	39
Carch Republic	12,100	3.9	15.8	18,630	28.6	24

	MATERINAL INCASTIN	D-BLORING WELL-BONG	IDUCADONAL STATUS	HEOREMIC STRILLS	POLITICAL STATUS	
	Lifetime risk of maternal death (1 in nomber stated)	Under-S mertality rate (per 1,000 live births)	Espected eamber of years of formal schooling	Gross national income per capita (current USS)	Participation of waves in national government (% seats held by women)*	Machaes ² Index Rank (out of 176 countries)
Country or Territory	2010	2011	2012	2011	2013	2913
Desmark	4,380	13	16.8	60,126	39.3	6
Djbeati	140	85	5.8 (4)	1,270	11.8	155
Duminican Republic	248	24.7	63	5,248	19.1	92
Enader	250	22.8	11.7 (4)	6200	32.3	71
Egge	490	21.1	ELA.	2,608	2.8	118
El Salvader	498	15.2	822	3,488	362	74
Equatorial Games		110.1	19	15,670	16.0	140
Entres		67.8	u	438	22.8	147
Ezonia	25,100	1.7	14.8	15,244	28.8	21
Emispia	6	77.8	N.	374	25.5	141
14	6,406	18.4	15.7	3,728	-	-
Feland	12,300	2.9	16.9	6,778	65	
France	4,380	41	163	6,08	25.3	16
Gibes	08	45.6	31.0 (v)	1,000	167	108
Gambia	54	100.4		588	75	170
Georgia		28.5	11.2	2,868	12.0	94
Genuny	10,00	43	16.4 (c.0)	46,278	12.4	•
Glass		77.6	UI	1,410	113	146
Grenz	25,500	4.4	163	21,400	21.0	19
Genada	1,300	12.0	15.1	7,154	17.9	52
Gestenzla	11	38.4	11.7	2,870	113	120
Galers		125.8		01	- 11	
Games-Berran	в	180.8	13	400	16.0	165
Geyana	64	11.9	11.4	2,908	LA	109
Nati		76.8	7.8 (60)	700	13	164
Renderat	276	21.4	11.7	1,980	19.5	
Regary	3,300	43	15.5	12,730	u	52
koluni	8,990	25	18.5	30,838	39.7	
bda	170	41.3	18.7	1,410	18.9	142
Indonesia	218	111	12.9	2,50	18.6	106
Iran, Islamic Republic of	2,408	25.6	13.9	4538	ц	85
kaj	310	12.9	10.0	2,640	25.2	10
Ireland	8,100	4	(8.7 (i)	38,930	19.0	20
hrad	5,100	40	15.7	28,930	21.7	25
tuły	26,386	13	16.5	35,290	28.6	17
Janaica	110	14.3	12.9	1,300	15.5	96
) agust	13,100	3,4	15.3	44,900	11.3	31
jorius	470	28.7	12.7	CHI CHI	11.9	103
Kassikhutan	276	31.1	15.4	1,210	18.2	45
Kenya	\$5	72.0	ILI	829	11	156
Erbati	-	47.4	12.8	2,810	8.7	-
Kens, Democratic Propie's Republic of	478	13.2	_	510 (x)	15.6	-
Koma, Republic of	4,800	u	17.2	28,879	15.7	31
lavait	2,500	18.7	14.2	48,900	62	55

	MATERIAL	CHLORING	EDUCATIONAL STATUS	iconoric status	POUTICAL STATUS	
	Lifetime risk of maternal death (1 in number stated)	Under-S mertality rate (per 1,000 live births)	Expected number of years of formal scheoling	Gross national income per capita (corrent USS)	Participation of women in national government (% seats held by women)*	Hothers' Index Rash (out of 176 countries)
Country or Territory	2010	2011	2012	2011	2013	2013
typnta	40	38.6	125	890	23.3	104
Las People's Democratic Republic	34	41.9	18.5	1,130	25.0	121
Lavia	2,000		HS	12,350	21.0	38
Letures	2,110	13	14.4	1.141	31	68
Leathe	53	84.0	18.8	1,229	26.8	131
Liberia	26	11.3	165	330	11.7	144
Litya	629	14.2	14.2	12,320	14.5	57
Lithuania	1,400	\$3	15.5	12,290	245	26
Lutembourg	3,200	1.2	115	71,580	21.2	29
Mandonia, The Iormer Tageslaw Republic of	6,380	2.6	114	4738	123	40
Nalagastar		61.6	18.4	436	15.8	151
Ralami	38	82.6	16.8	348	22.3	144
Malaysia	1,310	45	12.6	8,778	13.2	70
Rablees	870	18.7	12.6	1,730	45	84
ne .	28	175.4	15	410	18.2	173
Nata	8,988	5.9	15.1	18,428	87	45
Raintonia	44	112.8	82	1,900	19.2	154
Ranities	1,980	15.1	134 (4)	1.946	18.8	62
Neia	210	15.7	11.7	8,420	36.0	49
Normania, Enterated States of	210	41.5	117 (9)	2,840	88	133
Notiona, Republic al	1,580	16.0	11.9	1,988	19.8	84
Negela	680	38.7	145	2,310	14.9	91
Nancemegra	7,490	12	15.0	2,140	173	42
Newca	480	12.8	110 (9)	2,970	112	124
Netandague	0	183.8	97	476	392	138
Tyumar	250	62.4	95 (0)	1,140 (x)	44	152
Ramibia	140	41.5	11.3	4,780	25.8	101
Rept	190	48.5	13	140	11.2	121
Reberlands	10,500	41	17.0	49,450	17.8	5
New Instand	1,00	5.9	18.7 (4)	29,140	12.2	17
Konge	254	25.4	18.8	1,510	40.2	89
Spr	23	1343	\$3	348	113	172
Kipria	29	1041	7.0	1,390	6.6	167
Renty	7,988	11	17.5	81,891	19.6	1
Ocupied Palezinian Territory	330	12.6	0.4	1,250	-	-
Oman	1,300	NJ.	0.4	19,368	1.6	63
Polistan	110	72.4	75	1,129	11.1	139
Parama	410	19.5	8.2	2,439	85	96
Papea New Gaines	110	\$2.8	5.8 (ut)	1,400	2.1	158
Panguay	310	22.4	11.9	1,629	13.6	114
hes	570	18,1	0.2	5,150	11.5	73
Phäppines	388	25.4	11.3	2,218	12.8	105
Poland	14,400	5.8	15.4	12,488	21.8	28
Perupi	9,300	3.4	16.2	20,200	38.7	13

	PATERNAL HEALTH	CHILDRING WILLIAING	EUGATIONAL EDITUS	ICD-KPIC (MUS	POLINCAL STREAM	
	Lifetime risk of maternal death (1 in number stated)	Under-S mortality rate (ger 1,000 live birthi)	Especied number of years of formal schooling	Gress national liscame per capita (current USS)	Participation of women in national government (% seats held by women)*	Nothers' Index Rask (out of 176 countries)
Country or Territary	2010	2011	2012	2011	2013	2013
Qutur	5.400	11	12.9	80,440	8.8	58
Remania	2,600	125	HS	7,918	11.6	41
Resilan Federation	2,300	11.9	143	10,730	12.1	59
Branda	14	54.1	11.1	578	51.9	117
Saint Saria	E,400	15.6	12.9	6,029	17.2	72
Sant Vincent and the Grenadises	940	28.9	11.3	6,819	12.4	79
Sames	260	18.7	13.8	3,160	4	115
Sas Tene and Principe	330	83	11.2 (b)	1,354	18.2	129
Saudi Anabia	1,400	92	13.7	17,830	19.9	46
Senegal	54	64.8	82	1,819	6.1	126
Settia	6.900	n	13.6	5,410	33.2	36
Sera Lune	11	1853	2.4	348	12.4	174
Segapore	25,300	2.6	14.4 (k.d)	42,998	24.2	15
Seakia	12,398	n	14.7	14,070	18.7	35
Sorenia	5,908	2.8	17,0	23,610	24.6	14
Seismen Manh	348	21.6	12.3 (6)	1,110	2.0	133
Senalu	16	188.0	2.4 (b)	110 (4)	13.8	175
Seeth Alvica	140	46.7	13.1 (u)	4,110	41.1 (2)	17
Secth Sedan (31	1285	63 (6)	1,310	243	147
Spain	12,000	42	16.8	38,810	35.2	7
Sri Lanka	1,290	12.2	11.8	2,580	5.8	19
Setan (31	863	63 (6)	1,318	24.1	10
Seinane	129	29.5	13.0 (6)	7,640	11.8	100
Secoluted	15	HELA	11.3	1,300	21.9	119
Serden	14,100	23	16.0	\$3,150	44.7	2
Switterland	1.581	44	15.7	26,400	27.2	12
Syrian Arab Republic	462	63	11.3 (ul)	2,750	12.0	112
Tajilistan	01	63	11.5	879	17.5	124
Tanzania, United Republic of	38	47.6	9.2	540	36.0	135
Thaland	1,408	12.3	12.3	4,440	15.7	80
Timer-Loca	55	543	10	2,798	38.5	110
lap		18.1	12.9	570	11.1	150
Tunga	239	15.4	14.7	3,629	3.6	102
Irisidad and Talogo	1,388	37.7	11.1	15,340	26.8	64
Turnia	848	16.2	10	4,679	26.7	56
lariey	2,268	15.2		10,400	14.2	60
Tertmenistan	540	23	12.6 (s.d)	4,800	163	99
lipeda		8.9	10	510	35.0	132
Thraine	2,299	10.1	14.1	1,130	9.4	74
United Arab Emirates	4,000	44	12.6 (c)	40,360	175	50
Daird Kepton	4,600	5.1	16.7	37,840	22.6	23
Gained States	2,400	15	163	48,620	11.2	30
Brupsay	1,600	10.3	15.5	11,568	123	54
Ribebistan	1,408	4.6	11.6	1,510	19.2	105

	Lifetime risk of maternal death (1 in number stated)	Dist_256/VS WELL-829VS Bindler-S mortality rate (per 1,890 live birthi)	Expected sumber of years of formal scheeling	SCONOME (3370) Grass national income per sapita (current USS)	Participation of women in national government (5 seats held by women)*	Hathers' Index Rank (sut of 176 countries)
Country or Territory						
	2010	2011	2012	3011	3013	2013
Termata	134	13.2	11.1 (b)	2,750		127
Instacts, Balvarias Repúblic of	410	15.8	143	11,838	17.8	65
Tenan	879	317	11.9	1,219	24.4	86
hees	**	763	62	1,879	4.7	142
Zambia	37	42.9	13 (6.4)	1,340	11.5	159
Database .	8	623	HL1 (H)	640	12.9	147

REGIONAL PEDIANS						
Sel-Salvana Arica	53	H	10	715	16	147
Seeth Asia	100	54	18	1,385	u	129
East Ann and Pacific	295	22	12	2,758	16	106
Late America and Caribbran	\$25		0	4,578		76
Nide Last and North Alrica	\$35	18	11	4.425	12	74
GE/05	2,298	14	14	4,000		65
Industrialized countries.	8,900	4	14	14,565	25	18
WIRL3	110	38	11	1311	28	

Note: Data refer to the year specified in the column heading or the most recent year available. For indicator definitions and data sources see Methodology and Research Notes.

- Data are not available.
- * Figures correspond to the number of seats currently filled in parliament.
- Data for maternal health, educational and economic status are pre-secession estimates.
- § UNICEF regions. For a complete list of countries and territories in these regions see: UNICEF. The State of the World's Children 2012, p.124. Medians are based only on the countries included in the Index table.
- a Discounted to 18 years prior to calculating the Index rank.
- b Refers to primary and secondary education only.
- c Calculated by the Singapore Ministry of Education.
- d Based on cross-country regression.
- Estimate excludes years spent repeating grades.
- / Parliament was dissolved following the December 2008 coup.
- g Figures are calculated on the basis of permanent seats only.
- x Data are from a secondary source.

Go Back

Maternal mortality ratio	(modeled estimate, p	per 100,000 live births)
	÷	N

Country name	2010	2013
Afghanistan	500	400
Albania	21	.21
Algeria	92	89
Antigua and Barbuda	530	460
Argentina		
Armenia	76	.69
Aruba	31	29
Austria	5	6
Azerbaijan	3	
Bahamas, The	27	26
Bahrain	-30	37
Bangladesh	24	22
Barbados	200	\$70
Belarus	63	52
Belgium	2	1
Belize	7	6
Benin	60	45
Bermuda	370	340
Bolivia	140	120
Bosnia and Herzegovina	230	200
Botswana	9	8
Brazil	210	170
Brunei Darussalam	68	67
Bulgaria	27	27
Burkina Faso	8	5
Burundi	440	400
Cabo Verde	820	740

Cambodia	58	53
Cameroon	200	170
Canada	640	590
Cayman Islands	13	11
Chad	960	860
Chile	1,100	.950
China	24	- 22
Colombia	36	32
Comoros	85	63
Congo, Dem, Rep.	380	150
Congo, Rep.	810	730
Costa Rica	450	410
Cote d'Ivoire	33	38
Croatia	750	720
Cuba	15	13
Curacao	80	80
Czech Republic	10	10
Denmark	5	5
Djibouti	9	5
Dominica	250	230
Ecuador	130	100
Egypt, Arab Rep.	90	67
El Salvador	50	45
Equatorial Guinea	71	69
Eritrea	330	290
Estonia	450	380
Ethiopia	6	.11
Faeroe Islands	500	420
Finland	62	59
France	6	. 4
French Polynesia	12	12

Sambia, The	260	240
eorgia	460	430
Sermany	42	-41
Ghana	7	2
Sreece	410	360
dieece		
Greenland	5	5
Guam	23	23
Guinea	140	140
Guinea-Bissau	696	650
Guyana	400	560
laiti	230	250
Honduras	420	360
Hong Kong SAR, China	120	120
celand		14
ndia	5	4
ndonesia	220	190
ran, Islamic Rep.	210	190
aq	25	23
reland	73	- 67
sle of Man	10	9
taly	5	2
lamaica	4	4
apan	82	80
arakhetan	53	50
Conva	40	26
firibati	460	400
orea Dem Ren	140	130
orea, Rep.	98	67
(osovo	21	27
(vravz Republic	13.	14
PDR	79	75
abia	230	220
atvia	29	13
ecanon	18	16
lesotho		
iberia	540	490

Tanzania	48	- 44
Tajikistan	50	49
Syrian Arab Republic	8	6
Switzerland	5	4
WGGBI	6666	2000
Swadan	350	310
Swaziland	150	130
Suriname	390	360
Sudan	47	45
part)	2015	
St. Martin (French	25	34
St. Kitts and Nevis	32	29
Sri Lanka	6	4
South Sudan Spain	830	730
South Sudan	140	140
South Africa	930	850
Somalia	140	130
Solomon Islands	8	2
Slovenia	7	7
part)		
Sint Maarten (Dutch	4	ė
Sincapore	1,200	1,100
Souchallac	14	16
Serbia	360	320
Senegal	16	16
Saudi Arabia	230	210
Samoa	42	58
Company Company	393	320
Rwanda	31	24
Russian Ecoloration	30	33
Pomania	7	6
Qatar	20	20
Puerto Rico	11	8
Portugal	4	3
Philippines	120	520
DI II.	100	80

APPENDICES

NATIONAL ECOLOGICAL FOOTPRINT AND BIOCAPACITY for 2007

Results from National Footprint Accounts 2010 edition, www.footprintnetwork.org. Extracted on October 13, 2010

	Population (million)	Income Group	Ecological Footprint of Consumption	Total Biocapacity	Ecological (Deficit) or Reserve
World	6,671.6	-	2.7	1.8	(0.9)
High Income Countries Middle Income	1,031.4		6.1	3.1	(3.0)
Countries Low Income	4,323.3	÷	2.0	1.7	(0.2)
Countries Unclassified	1,303.3		1.2	1.1	(0,1)
Countries	13.5				
Africa	963.9	5	1.4	1.5	0.1
Algeria	33.9	LM S	1.6	0.6	(1.0)
Angola	17.6	LM	1.0	3.0	2.0
Benin	5.4	u	1.2	0.8	(0.4)
Botswana	1.9	UM	2.7	3.8	1.2
Burkina Faso	14.7	u	1.3	1.3	(0.0)
Burundi	7.8	u	0.9	0.5	(0.4)
Cameroon	18.7	LM	1.0	1.9	0.8
Central African Republic	4.3	u	1.3	8.4	7.1
Chad	10.6	u	1.7	3.2	1.4
Congo Congo, Democratic	3.6	LM	1.0	13.3	12.3
Republic of	62.5	U	0.8	2.8	2.0
Côte d'Ivoire	20.1	u	1.0	1.7	0.7
Egypt	80.1	LM	1.7	0.6	(1.0)
Eritrea	4.8	u	0.9	1.6	0.7
Ethiopia	78.6	u	1.1	0.7	(0.4)
Gabon	1.4	UM	1.4	29.3	27.9
Gambia	1.6	u	3.4	1.1	(2.3)
Ghana	22.9	u	1.8	1.2	(0.6)
Guinea	9.6	U	1.7	2.8	1.2
Guinea-Bissau	15	U	1.0	3.2	2.3

Kenva	37.8	11
Lesotho	20	IM
Liberia	36	11
Libyan Arab Jamahiriya	6.2	UM
Madagascar	18.6	11
Malawi	14.4	L
Mali	12.4	u
Mauritania	3.1	U
Mauritius	1.3	UM
Morocco	31.2	LM
Mozambique	21.9	u
Namibia	2.1	IM
Niger	14.1	U
Nigeria	147.7	LI.
Rwanda	9.5	u
Senegal	11.9	u
Sierra Leone	5.4	U.
Somalia	87	u
South Africa	49.2	UM
Sudan	40.4	LM
Swaziland	1.2	LM
Tanzania, United		
Republic of	41.3	u
Togo	6.3	u
Tunisia	10.1	LM
Uganda	30.6	u
Zambia	12.3	u
Zimbabwe	12.4	u
Other	3.5	
Δeia	4031.3	
Afohanistan	4,031.2	
Armania	20.3	
Azərbaijan	3.1	LM
Bangladesh	5.0	LM
Cambodia	157.8	u
China	14.3	
Georgia	1,336.6	LM
India	4.4	LM
Indonesia	1,104.7	UM
Iran Islamic Republic of	224.7	LM
Iran, Islamic Republic of	72.4	LM
legal	29.5	LM
Israel	6.9	HI
Japan	127.4	HI

5.9

LM

Jordan

1.1	0.6	(0.5)
1.1	0.8	(0.3)
1.3	2.5	1.2
3.1	0.4	(2.6)
1.8	3.1	1.3
0.7	0.7	(0.0)
1.9	2.5	0.6
2.6	5.5	2.9
4.3	0.6	(3.7)
1.2	0.6	(0.6)
0.8	1.9	1.1
2.2	7.6	5.4
2.3	2.1	(0.3)
1.4	1.1	(0.3)
1.0	0.6	(0.5)
1.1	1.2	0.1
1.1	1.2	0.1
1.4	1.4	(0.0)
2.3	1.1	(1.2)
1.7	2.4	0.7
1.5	1.0	(0.5)
		10 C
1.2	1.0	(0.2)
1.0	0.6	(0.4)
1.9	1.0	(0.9)
1.5	0.8	(0.7)
0.9	2.3	1.3
1.2	0.8	(0.5)
1.0	0.0	11.00
1.0	0.8	(1.0)
1.0	0.5	(0.1)
1.0	0.7	(1.0)
1.7	0.0	(1.1)
0.6	0.4	(0.2)
2.0	1.0	(0.1)
1.0	1.0	(1.2)
1.0	1.2	(0.0)
0.9	0.5	(0.4)
27	0.9	(1.0)
13	0.8	(1.7)
1.5	0.3	(4.5)
4.8	0.6	(4.1)
21	0.2	(1.8)

Kazakhetan			15	4.0	(0.5)
Kazakhistan	15.4	UM	4.5	4.0	(0.5)
Rorea, Democratic			1.2	0.4	(0.7)
Feople's Republic of	Z3.7	U	1.3	0.0	(0.7)
Korea, Republic of	48.0	H	4.7	0.3	(4.5)
Kuwait	2.9	H	0.3	1.2	(5.7)
Kyrgyzstan	5.3	u	1.2	1.5	0.1
Lao People's	122	33	1.2		0.2
Democratic Republic	6.1	u	1.3	1.0	(2.5)
Lebanon	4,2	UM	2.7	0.4	(2.3)
Maraysia	26.6	UM	4.7	15.1	0.4
Mongolia	2.6	LM	5.5	15.1	9.0
Niganimar	49.1	u	1.0	2.0	(2.0)
Occupied Palastinian	28.3	U.	5.0	0.5	(5.0)
Territory	10		0.7	0.2	(0.6)
Oman	0	LM	5.0	21	(2.8)
Pakistan	472.9	1	0.8	0.4	(0.3)
Philippines	00.7	114	1.3	0.6	(0.7)
Ostar	00.7	LNI	10.5	2.5	(8.0)
Saudi Arabia	1.1		5.1	0.8	(4.3)
Singapore	24.7		53	0.0	(5.3)
Sri Lanka	4.5		12	0.4	(0.8)
Surian Arab Republic	19.9	1.54	15	0.4	(0.8)
Taiikistan	20.5	LNA	10	0.6	(0.4)
Thailand	6.7		2.4	12	(1.2)
Timordieste	67.0	LM	0.4	12	0.8
Turkey	1.1	LM	27	13	(1.4)
Turkmonistan	73.0	UM	3.9	3.2	(0.7)
United Arab Emirates	5.0	LM	10.7	0.8	(9.8)
Uzbekistan	0.2		17	0.9	(0.8)
Viet Nam	20.4		14	0.9	(0.5)
Vemen	33.7		0.9	0.6	(0.3)
Other	20	u	0.7	0.0	(0.0)
Guier	3.0				
Europe	730.9		4.7	2.9	(1.8)
Albania	3.1	LM	1.9	0.9	(1.0)
Austria	63	H	5.3	3.3	(2.0)
Belarus	9.7	UM	3.8	3.3	(0.5)
Belgium	10.5	н	8.0	1.3	(6.7)
Bosnia and Herzegovina	3.8	LM	2.7	1.6	(1.1)
Bulgaria	7.6	UM	4.1	2.1	(1.9)
Croatia	4.4	UM	3.7	2.5	(1.2)
Czech Republic	10.3	H	5.7	2.7	(3.1)
Denmark	5.4	H	8.3	4.9	(3.4)
Estonia	1.3	HI	7.9	9.0	1.1

Finland	51	ы
France	61.7	н
Germany	82.3	H
Greece	11.1	H
Hungary	10.0	H
Ireland	44	H
Italy	59 3	HI
Latvia	23	UM
Lithuania	3.4	UM
Macedonia TFYR	2.0	LM
Moldova	37	IM
Netherlands	16.5	H
Norway	4.7	HI
Poland	38.1	UM
Portugal	10.6	H
Romania	21.5	UM
Russian Federation	141.9	UM
Serbia	9.8	
Slovakia	5.4	HI
Slovenia	2.0	HI
Spain	44.1	E-11
Sweden	9.2	HI
Switzerland	7.5	н
Ukraine	46.3	LM
United Kingdom	61.1	H
Other	2.1	
Latin America and	21.000	
the Canbbean	569.5	-
Argentina	39.5	UM
Bolivia	9.5	LM
Brazil	190.1	UM
Colombia	16.6	UM
Colombia Conto Pino	44.4	LM
Costa Rica	4.5	UM
Cuba	11.2	UM
Dominican Republic	9.8	LM
Ecuador El Calvador	13.3	LM
El Salvador Guatamala	6.1	LM
Guatemala	13.4	LM
Haiti	9.7	U
Honduras	7.2	LM
Jamaica	2.7	UM
Mexico	107.5	ŲМ
Nicaragua	5.6	LM

6.2	12.5	6.3
5.0	3.0	(2.0)
5.1	1.9	(3.2)
5.4	1.6	(3.8)
3.0	2.2	(0.8)
6.3	3.5	(2.8)
5.0	1.1	(3.8)
5.6	7.1	1.4
4.7	4.4	(0.3)
5.7	1.4	(4.2)
1.4	0.7	(0.7)
6.2	1.0	(5.2)
5.6	5.5	(0.1)
43	21	(2.3)
4.5	1.3	(3.2)
27	2.0	(0.8)
4.4	5.7	1.3
2.4	12	(1.2)
4.1	2.7	(1.4)
5.3	2.6	(2.7)
5.4	1.6	(3.8)
5.9	97	3.9
5.0	1.2	(3.8)
2.9	1.8	(1.1)
4.9	1.3	(3.6)
0.572		
2.6	5.5	2.9
2.6	7.5	4.9
2.6	18.8	16.3
2.9	9.0	6.1
3.2	3.8	0.6
1.9	4.0	2.1
2.7	1.9	(0.8)
1.9	0.7	(1.1)
1.5	0.5	(1.0)
1.9	2.3	0.4
2.0	0.7	(1.4)
1.8	1.1	(0.6)
0.7	0.3	(0.4)
1.9	1.8	(0.1)
1.9	0.4	(1.5)
3.0	1.5	(1.5)
1.6	2.8	1.3

Panama	3.3	UM	2.9	3.1	0.3
Paraguay	6.1	LM	3.2	11.2	8.0
Peru	28.5	LM	1.5	3.9	2.3
Trinidad and Tobago	1.3	н	3.1	1.6	(1.5
Uruguay	3.3	UM	5.1	9.9	4.8
Venezuela, Bolivarian Republic of	27.7	UM	2.9	2.8	(0.1
Other	8.1				
United States and			7.0	4.0	0.0
Canada	341.6	+1	1.9	4.7	(3.0
Canada	32.9	HI	7.0	14.9	7.9
United States of					
America	308.7	н	8.0	3.9	(4.1
Oceania	34.5	10	5.4	11.1	5.8
Australia	20.9	H	6.8	14.7	7.9
New Zealand	4.2	H	4.9	10.8	5.9
Papua New Guinea	6.4	u	2.1	3.8	1.6
Other	3.0		222	1000	6126

Notes

List is limited to countries with populations greater than 1 million in 2007. More detailed results, or results for other countries are available on request from data@footprintnetwork.org.

Unless otherwise noted, all data from Global Footprint Network, 2010. The Ecological Footprint Atlas 2010, www.footprintnetwork.org/atlas

Regional totals include all countries in the region, as listed by UNStats. World total is calculated from regional totals and slightly varies from FAO world total..

Income groups reflect World Bank classification.

Population data are from the UN FAO, with the exception of those of the United Arab Emirates, where numbers were obtained directly from the UAE government. Note that this change also affects the Asia and World total.

0.00 = less than 0.005

Totals may not add up due to rounding

For results in acres, multiply hectare numbers by 2.471

Go Back





New Business Density (sorted in decreasing order)			Macedonia, FYR	Europe & Central Asia	2012	3.6	
Economy		5	New business	Costa Rica	Latin America &	2012	3.55
Leonomy	Region	Year	density		Caribbean		
Hong Kong SAR, China	East Asia & Pacific	2012	28.12	Dominica	Latin America & Caribbean	2009	3.3
Cyprus	Europe & Central Asia	2012	22.51	Co. Lucio	Latin America &	2011	2
Luxembourg	OECD high income	2012	20.98	St. Lucia	Caribbean	2011	3
New Zealand	OECD high income	2012	15.07	Uniquay	Latin America &	2012	2.98
Papagoa	Latin America &	2012	14.1	orogady	Caribbean	2012	2.70
ranama	Caribbean	2012	14.1	Czech Republic	OECD high income	2012	2.96
Malta	Middle East & North	2012	13.61	Israel	OECD high income	2012	2.96
D	Africa	0010	10.0	France	OECD high income	2012	2.88
Botswana	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	12.3	Croatia	Europe & Central Asia	2012	2.82
Australia	OECD high income	2012	12.16	Timor-Leste	East Asia & Pacific	2012	2.76
Latvia	Europe & Central Asia	2012	11.63	Spain	OECD high income	2012	2.71
United Kingdom	OECD high income	2012	11.04	Switzerland	OECD high income	2012	2.53
Montenegro	Europe & Central Asia	2011	10.66	Belgium	OECD high income	2012	2.48
Bulgaria	Europe & Central Asia	2012	9.03	Vanuatu	East Asia & Pacific	2009	2.34
Iceland	OECD high income	2012	8.17	Finland	OECD high income	2012	2.32
Singapore	East Asia & Pacific	2012	8.04	Malaysia	East Asia & Pacific	2012	2.28
Estonia	OECD high income	2007	7.92	Brazil	Latin America &	2012	2.17
Norway	OECD high income	2012	7.83	K D	Caribbean	2012	0.00
Mauritius	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	7.4	Korea, Rep.	OECD high income	2012	2.03
South Africa	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	6.54	Colombia	Caribbean	2012	2
Sweden	OECD high income	2012	6.41	Italy	OECD high income	2012	1 91
Chile	OECD high income	2012	5.69	Tonga	Fast Asia & Pacific	2012	1 91
Slovak Republic	OECD high income	2012	5.11	ronga	Middle East & North	2012	1.71
Georgia	Europe & Central Asia	2012	4.86	Oman	Africa	2009	1.74
Hungary	Europe & Central Asia	2012	4.75	Ontra	Middle East & North	2012	1 74
Lithuania	Europe & Central Asia	2012	4.71	Qatar	Africa	2012	1./4
Ireland	OECD high income	2012	4.5	Kazakhstan	Europe & Central Asia	2012	1.71
Netherlands	OECD high income	2012	4.44	Serbia	Europe & Central Asia	2012	1.68
Maldives	South Asia	2009	4.39	Moldova	Europe & Central Asia	2009	1.63
Denmark	OECD high income	2012	4.36	Suriname	Latin America &	2012	1.63
Slovenia	OECD high income	2012	4.36		Caribbean		
D - l'	Latin America &	2012	4.21	Armenia	Europe & Central Asia	2012	1.55
Belize	Caribbean	2012	4.31	Tunisia	Middle East & North	2011	1.52
Russian Federation	Europe & Central Asia	2012	4.3	Lasatha	Sub Sabaran Africa	2012	1.40
Romania	Europe & Central Asia	2012	4.12	Lesotho	Middle Fast & North	2012	1.47
Gabon	Sub-Saharan Africa	2009	4.11	United Arab Emirates	Africa	2012	1.38
Peru	Latin America &	2012	3.83	St. Vincent and the Grenadines	Latin America &	2012	1 37
São Tomá and Dríacian	Cub Cohanna Africa	2012	3.75	ou vincent and the cherodanes	Caribbean		1,07
sao Tome and Principe	Sub-Sanaran Africa	2012	3./5	Zambia	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	1.36
Portugal	OECD high income	2010	3.62	Germany	OECD high income	2012	1.29

Morocco	Middle East & North	2009	1.26	Tajikistan	Europe & Central Asia	2012	0.26
	Africa	2007	1.20	Guinea	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	0.23
Kosovo	Europe & Central Asia	2012	1.22	Bhutan	South Asia	2012	0.2
Uganda	Sub-Sanaran Africa	2012	1.17	Afghanistan	South Asia	2012	0.15
Belarus	Latin America &	2012	1.14		South Asia	2012	0.15
Jamaica	Caribbean	2012	1.11	Burkina Faso	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	0.15
Canada	OECD high income	2012	1.07	Iraq	Middle East & North Africa	2012	0.13
Rwanda	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	1.07	India	South Asia	2012	0.12
Dominican Republic	Latin America &	2012	1.05	Japan	OECD high income	2012	0.12
-	Caribbean	2012		Togo	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	0.12
Samoa	East Asia & Pacific	2012	1.04	Kiribati	East Asia & Pacific	2011	0.11
Jordan	Middle East & North	2012	0.98	Lao PDR	East Asia & Pacific	2011	0.1
Kyravz Republic	Europe & Central Asia	2012	0.92	Bangladesh	South Asia	2012	0.09
Ukraine	Europe & Central Asia	2012	0.92	Malawi	Sub-Saharan Africa	2009	0.08
Nigeria	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	0.91	Haiti	Latin America &	2012	0.06
Albania	Europe & Central Asia	2012	0.88	- Tarta	Caribbean	2012	0.00
	Latin America &	0040	0.00	Madagascar	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	0.05
Mexico	Caribbean	2012	0.88	Pakistan	South Asia	2012	0.04
Thailand	East Asia & Pacific	2012	0.86	Syrian Arab Republic	Middle East & North	2011	0.04
Namibia	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	0.85	Ethiopia	Sub-Sabaran Africa	2009	0.03
Kenya	Sub-Saharan Africa	2008	0.84	Congo Dem Rep	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	0.02
Turkey	Europe & Central Asia	2012	0.79	Congo, Deni, Rep.	Sub-Sanaran Airica	2012	0.02
South Sudan	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	0.73				
Azerbaijan	Europe & Central Asia	2012	0.7				
Bosnia and Herzegovina	Europe & Central Asia	2012	0.7	Go Back			
Nepal	South Asia	2012	0.66				
Uzbekistan	Europe & Central Asia	2012	0.64				
Bolivia	Latin America & Caribbean	2012	0.56				
Algeria	Middle East & North Africa	2012	0.53				
Poland	OECD high income	2009	0.53				
Guatemala	Latin America & Caribbean	2012	0.52				
Sri Lanka	South Asia	2012	0.51				
Austria	OECD high income	2012	0.5				
El Salvador	Latin America & Caribbean	2012	0.48				
Argentina	Latin America & Caribbean	2012	0.47				
Sierra Leone	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	0.32				
Indonesia	East Asia & Pacific	2012	0.29				
Philippines	East Asia & Pacific	2012	0.27				
Senegal	Sub-Saharan Africa	2012	0.27				

Patent Applications by Res	dents (sorted	Hungary	6
In descending or	Jer)	Egypt, Arab Rep.	6
Country name	2012	Greece	6
China	535,313	Portugal	6
Japan	287,013	South Africa	6
United States	268,782	Ireland	4
Korea, Rep.	148,136	Vietnam	3
Germany	46,620	Chile	3
Russian Federation	28,701	Uzbekistan	2
United Kingdom	15,370	Bulgaria	2
France	14,540	Colombia	2
India	9,553	Morocco	1
Italy	8,439	Latvia	1
Korea, Dem. Rep.	8,354	Serbia	1
Brazil	4,804	Hong Kong SAR, China	1
Canada	4,709	Slovak Republic	1
Turkey	4,434	Philippines	1
Poland	4,410	Azerbaijan	1
Spain	3,266	Georgia	1
Australia	2,627	Armenia	1
Ukraine	2,491	Kenya	1
Netherlands	2,375	Algeria	1
Sweden	2,288	Kyrgyz Republic	1
Austria	2,258	Lithuania	1
Finland	1,698	Luxembourg	1
Belarus	1,681	Pakistan	
Switzerland	1,480	Moldova	
New Zealand	1,425	Bangladesh	
Denmark	1,406	Peru	
Israel	1,319	Jordan	
Mexico	1,294	Rwanda	
Malaysia	1,114	Cuba	
Singapore	1,081	Iceland	
Romania	1,022	Montenearo	
Thailand	1,020	Yemen, Rep.	
Norway	1,009	Cote d'Ivoire	
Czech Republic	867	Uruquay	
Belgium	755	Estonia	
Argentina	735	Dominican Republic	

Malta	11
Costa Rica	10
Honduras	8
Guatemala	7
Zambia	7
Macao SAR, China	5
Cyprus	4
Madagascar	4
Monaco	4
Nicaragua	4
Bahrain	3
Qatar	3
Tajikistan	3
Bosnia and Herzegovina	2
Cambodia	1

Go Back

Researchers in R&D per million
people (sorted in descending
order)

Country name	2011
Finland	7,423
Iceland	7,012
Denmark	6,806
Israel	6,602
Singapore	6,494
Korea, Rep.	5,928
Luxembourg	5,814
Norway	5,508
Japan	5,158
Sweden	5,142
Portugal	4,724
Canada	4,563
Austria	4,401
Slovenia	4,255
Germany	4,085
United Kingdom	4,026
United States	3,979
France	3,918
Belgium	3,878
New Zealand	3,693
Netherlands	3,507
Estonia	3,485
Ireland	3,355
Russian Federation	3,120
Czech Republic	2,891
Slovak Republic	2,817
Spain	2,800
Lithuania	2,756
Hungary	2,303
Greece	2,219
Latvia	1,904
Malta	1,780
Italy	1,748
Poland	1,679
Malaysia	1,643

Bulgaria	1,623	High-tech Exports as a Manufactured Exports (so descending order)	% о rtec
Costa Rica	1 289	Country name	2
Ukraina	1 253	Philippines	
Argentina	1,236	Malta	
Serbia	1,221	Singapore	
Turkey	987	Malaysia	
China	963	Costa Rica	
Morocco	864	Kiribati	
Cvprus	820	Kazakhstan	
Moldova	781	China	
Montenearo	763	Korea, Rep.	
Romania	737	Switzerland	
Kazakhstan	652	France	
Uzbekistan	534	Mozambique	
Uruquay	525	Ireland	
Equpt. Arab Rep.	524	United Kingdom	
Macao SAR. China	476	Thailand	
Iraq	426	Uganda	
Mexico	386	Netherlands	
Venezuela, RB	228	Norway	
Colombia	184	Hungary	
Oman	160	United States	
Pakistan	149	Japan	
Kuwait	132	Czech Republic	
Angola	57	Germany	
Cabo Verde	51	Hong Kong SAR, China	
Madagascar	51	Israel	
Paraguay	48	Mexico	
Gambia, The	34	Denmark	
Guatemala	25	Iceland	
Lesotho	6	Sao Tome and Principe	
		Australia	
		Austria	
Go Back		Brunei Darussalam	
		Cyprus	

13 12

Sweden Barbados

Belgium 11 El Salvador Estonia 11 Guatemala New Caledonia 11 Guatemala Aruba 10 Moldova Brazil 10 Moldova Croatia 10 Moldova Croatia 10 Marciagua Croatia 10 Cameroon Latvia 10 Macedonia, FYR New Zaeland 10 Macedonia, FYR Solvia 0 Marcedonia, FYR Bolvia 0 Macedonia, FYR Solvia 0 Macedonia, FYR Solvia 0 Burundi Greace 0 Orminica Greace 0 Greace 0 0 Bulgaria Bacaria and Herzegovina Bulgaria 8 Bornia and Herzegovina Ecuador Luxembourg 8 Bornia and Herzegovina Ecuador India 7 French Polynesia Georgia Greana 7 Reorda	Canada	12	Colombia	
Etonia 11 Guatenala Image: Strange Republic Kyrgx Republic Moldova Aruba 10 Kyrgx Republic Moldova Image: Strange Republic Moldova Brazil 10 Namibia Image: Strange Republic Moldova Image: Strange Republic Image: Strange Republic Moldova Image: Strange Republic Image: Strange	Belgium	11	El Salvador	
New Caledonia 11 Krigra Republic Aruba 10 Moldova Brazil 10 Nemibia Croatia 10 Nemibia Croatia 10 Neiragua Latvia 10 Cameroon Latvia 10 Macedonia, FYR New Zealand 10 Macedonia, FYR New Zealand 10 Macedonia, FYR Solvia 9 Portugal Cominica 9 Barundi Cominica 9 Burundi Consica 9 Dominican Republic Orman 0 Orman Siovak Republic 9 Papua New Guinea Uruguay 9 Papua New Guinea Luxembourg 8 Bosnia and Herzegovina Russian Foderation 8 Eudoor Indonesia 7 French Polynesia Indonesia 7 Revanda Paraguay 7 Paraguay Paraguay 7 Rev	Estonia	11	Guatemala	
Auba 10 Moldova Brazi 10 Moldova Brazi 10 Normibia Crotia 10 Nicaragua Latvia 10 Macconia, FVR Latvia 10 Macconia, FVR New Zealand 10 Macconia, FVR New Zealand 10 Macconia, FVR Bolivia 9 Portugal Bolivia 9 Balarus Dominica 9 Burundi Finland 9 Orman Stovak Rupblic 9 Orman Uruguay 9 Papua New Guinea Uruguay 9 Papua New Guinea Bulgaria 8 Bornia and Herzegovina Bulgaria 8 Bornia and Herzegovina Bulgaria 7 Georgia Georgia Indonesia 7 Georgia Georgia Indonesia 7 Nigeria Georgia Indonesia 7 Stowana Georgia	New Caledonia	11	Kyrayz Republic	
Brazil 10 Namibia Creatia 10 Namibia 10 Latvia 10 Cameroon 10 New Zealand 10 Portugal 10 New Zealand 10 Portugal 10 Tanzania 10 Portugal 10 Belarus Belarus 10 Belarus 10 Tanzania 10 Portugal 10 10 10 Stock Republic 9 Burundi 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 <	Aruba	10	Moldova	
Croatia 10 Nicaragua Latvia 10 Cameroon 10 New Zealand 10 Macedonia, FVR 10 New Zealand 10 Portugal 10 Stowak Republic 0 Portugal 10 Dominica 9 Burundi 10 Finland 9 Burundi 10 Stowak Republic 0 Papua New Guinea 10 Uruguay 9 Papua New Guinea 10 Uruguay 9 Peru 10 10 Luxembourg 8 Boaria and Herzegovina 10 Luxembourg 8 Boaria and Herzegovina 10 Luxembourg 8 Ecuador 10 India 7 Ecuador 10 India 7 Ecuador 10 India 7 Reanda 10 Paraguay 7 Reanda 10 Poland 7 Reanda 10	Brazil	10	Namibia	
Latvia 10 Cameroon Lithuania 10 Cameroon Incoregina Incoregina <td>Croatia</td> <td>10</td> <td>Nicaraqua</td> <td></td>	Croatia	10	Nicaraqua	
Lithuania 10 Macedonia, FVR New Zealand 10 Portugal 10 Tanzania 10 Portugal 10 Bolivia 9 Belarus 10 Dominica 9 Burundi 10 Creece 9 Dominica Republic 0 Greece 9 Oman 10 Slovak Republic 9 Oman 10 Uruguay 9 Argentia Bosnia and Herzegovina 10 Bulgaria 8 Bosnia and Herzegovina 10 10 Russian Federation 8 Russian Federation 8 10 10 Russian Federation 7 Georgia 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Latvia	10	Cameroon	
New Zealand 10 Portugal Tanzania 10 Armenia 6 Bolivia 9 Belarus 6 Dominica 9 Burundi 6 Finland 9 Dominican Republic 6 Greece 9 Oman 6 Stovak Republic 9 Papua New Guinea 6 Uruguay 9 Papua New Guinea 6 Uruguay 9 Papua New Guinea 6 Uruguay 9 Peru 6 6 Uruguay 9 Peru 6 6 6 Uruguay 9 Peru 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	Lithuania	10	Macedonia, EYR	
Tanzania 10 Armenia Armenia Bolivia 9 Belarus Belarus Finland 9 Burundi Burundi Greece 9 Oman Borian Vinguay 9 Papua Naw Guinee Peru Argentina 8 Boria and Herzegovina Belarus Bulgaria 8 Boria and Herzegovina Belarus Russian Federation 8 Ecuador Ecuador Russian Federation 8 Frigi Ecuador India 7 Georgia Ecuador India 7 Georgia Ecuador India 7 Remcha Ecuador Ecuador India 7 Rearus Ecuador Ecuador Ecuador India 7 Rearus Ecuador	New Zealand	10	Portugal	
Bolivia 9 Belarus Dominica 9 Burundi 1 Finland 9 Dominican Republic 0 Greece 9 Oman 1 Slovak Republic 9 Papua New Guinea 1 Uruguay 9 Peru 1 1 Argentina 8 Bosnia and Herzegovina 1 Bulgaria 8 Bosnia and Herzegovina 1 Burgaria 8 Bosnia and Herzegovina 1 Burgaria 8 Ecuador 1 Burgaria 8 Ecuador 1 Bermuda 7 French Polynesia 1 Bermuda 7 Georgia 1 Indonesia 7 Rwanda 1 Indonesia 7 Paistan 1 Paraguay 7 Paraguay 7 1 Poland 7 Turks and Caicos Islands 1 Spain 7 Sumaia 1	Tanzania	10	Armenia	
Dominica9BurundiFinland9Burundi9Greece9Oman9Uruguay9Papua New Guinea9Uruguay9Peru9Argentia8Bosnia and Herzegovina10Bulgaria8Eudor10Luxembourg8Ethiopia10Russian Federation8Fiji10Azerbaijan7Georgia10Ghana7Georgia10India7Nigeria10India7Nigeria10India7Sastant10Parguay7Parguay10Parguay7Turkey10Poland7Burshanata10Spain7Stastant10Norocco6Mali10Norocco6Mali10Slovenia6South Africa6South Africa6Stastant10Ukraine6Calabaa21Chile5Calabaa21Chile5Calabaa21Chile5Calabaa21Chile5Calabaa21Company6Calabaa21Company6Calabaa21Company6Calabaa21Company6Calabaa21Company6Calabaa21Company6Calabaa<	Bolivia	9	Belarus	
Finland9Dominican RepublicGreece9Orman1Slovak Republic9Papua New Guinea1Uruguay9PeruPapua New Guinea1Argentina8Bosnia and Herzegovina1Bulgaria8Ecuador1Russian Federation8Ecuador1Russian Federation8Echiopia1India7French Polynesia6India7Georgia1India7Rwanda1India7Pakistan1India7Rwanda1Paraguay7Pakistan1Poland7Turkey1Tonga7Botswana1Norocco6Jamaica1Nigeria6Sinanica1Slovenia6Sinanica1Slovenia6Sinanica1Couth Africa6Sinanica1Chile5Stanaica1Chile5Stanaica1Stanaica6Sinanica1Slovenia6Sinanica1Slovenia6Sinanica1Chile5Stanaica1Chile5Stanaica1Chile5Stanaica1Chile5Stanaica1Stanaica6Stanaica1Stanaica6Stanaica1<	Dominica	9	Burundi	
Greece9Doman (republicSlovak Republic9Oman9Uruguay9Peru9Argentina8Bosnia and Herzegovina8Bulgaria8Ecuador1Luxembourg8Ethiopia1Russian Federation8Frinch Polynesia1Azerbaijan7French Polynesia1Ghana7India11India7Nigeria1India7Nigeria1India7Nigeria1Indonesia7Nigeria1Italy7Pakistan1Poland7Stoswana1Spain7Stoswana1Niger6Jamaica1Niger6South Africa5South Africa6Senegal2Shownia6Senegal3South Africa6Senegal3Chile5Albania4	Finland	9	Dominican Republic	
Slovak Republic9Papua New GuineaUruguay9Peru1Argentina8Bosnia and Herzegovina1Bulgaria8Ecuador1Luxembourg8Ecuador1Russian Federation8Fiji1Azerbajjan7French Polynesia1Bernuda7Georgia1India7Idependit1India7Nigeria1India7Paistan1Indonesia7Nigeria1Italy7Paistan1Poland7Spain1Spain7Stoswana1Viger6Mauritius1Sovenia6Sengal1Slovenia6Sri Lanka1Ukraine6Albania1Chile5Artisua Republic1	Greece	9	Oman	
Unuguay9PeruPeruArgentina8Bosnia and HerzegovinaEcuadorBulgaria8Ecuador1Luxembourg8Ethiopia1Russian Federation8Fiji1Azerbaijan7French Polynesia1Bermuda7Georgia1India7Nigeria1Indonesia7Nigeria1Indonesia7Rwanda1Paraguay7Turkey1Poland7Spain1Spain7Sotswana1Niger6Jamaica1Niger6Mali1South Africa6Senegal1Urkaine6Sotth Africa61Chile5Arbeno and Bachude1	Slovak Republic	9	Papua New Guinea	
Argentina8Bulgaria8Bulgaria8Luxembourg8Russian Federation8Azerbaijan7Bermuda7Ghana7India7Indonesia7Indonesia7Paraguay7Poland7Spain7Norocco6Niger6Niger6Solvenia6Solvenia6Solvenia6Solvenia6Congai7Articea6Solvenia6Conditiona6Solvenia6Conditiona6Solvenia6Conditiona6Solvenia6Conditiona6Solvenia6Conditiona6Solvenia6Conditiona6Solvenia6Conditiona6Solvenia6Conditiona6Solvenia6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Conditiona6Condition	Uruguay	9	Peru	
Bulgaria 8 Ecuador Ecuador Luxembourg 8 Ethiopia Ethiopia Russian Federation 8 Fiji Finite and the second of the secon	Argentina	8	Bosnia and Herzegovina	
Luxembourg8ExactionRussian Federation8EthiopiaAzerbaijan7Bernuda7Ghana7India7India7Indonesia7Paraguay7Poland7Spain7Tonga7Morocco6Niger6Niger6South Africa6South Africa6Chile5	Bulgaria	8	Ecuador	
Russian Federation8FinitionAzerbaijan7French Polynesia6Bernuda7Georgia6Ghana7Lebanon1India7Nigeria1Indonesia7Pakistan1Haly7Pakistan1Paraguay7Rwanda1Poland7Turkey1Spain7Sotswana1Norocco6Jamaica1Niger6Mali1South Africa6Senegal2South Africa6Albania1Chile5Aptirus and Pachurds1	Luxembourg	8	Ethiopia	
Azerbaijan7Bernuda7Bernuda7Ghana7India7Indonesia7Indonesia7Italy7Paraguay7Poland7Spain7Tonga7Morocco6Niger6South Africa6South Africa6Chile5	Russian Federation	8	Fill	
Bermuda7GeorgiaGhana7GeorgiaGeorgiaIndia7LebanonNigeriaIndonesia7PakistanMileriaItaly7RwandaMileriaParaguay7TurkeyMileriaPoland7Turks and Caicos IslandsMileriaSpain7BotswanaMileriaTonga7BotswanaMileriaNorocco6JamaicaMaliNiger6MaliSenegalSouth Africa6Sri LankaMileriaUkraine6Sri LankaAlbaniaCimbabwe6AlgeriaAlgeria	Azerbaijan	7	French Polynesia	
Ghana7LebanonIndia7NigeriaNigeriaIndonesia7Pakistan1Italy7ParaguayRwanda1Poland7Turkey11Spain7SotswanaSotswana1Tonga7Botswana11Morocco6Jamaica11Slovenia6SenegalSenegal1South Africa6Sri LankaI1Ukraine6AlgeriaAlgeria1Chile5Antisu and Pachudo11	Bermuda	7	Georgia	
India7Indonesia7Indonesia7Italy7Paraguay7Poland7Spain7Tonga7Morocco6Niger6South Africa6South Africa6Ukraine6Zimbabwe6Chile5	Ghana	7	Lebanon	
Indonesia7Italy7Paraguay7Poland7Spain7Tonga7Morocco6Niger6South Africa6South Africa6Ukraine6Zimbabwe6Chile5	India	7	Nigeria	
Italy7Paraguay7Poland7Poland7Spain7Tonga7Morocco6Niger6Romania6Slovenia6South Africa6Ukraine6Zimbabwe6Chile5	Indonesia	7	Pakistan	
Paraguay7Turkey1Poland7Turks and Caicos Islands5Spain7Botswana1Tonga7Egypt, Arab Rep.1Morocco6Jamaica1Niger6Mali1Slovenia6Senegal5South Africa6Sri Lanka1Ukraine6Albania1Zimbabwe6Algeria1	Italy	7	Rwanda	
Poland7Spain7Tonga7Morocco6Niger6Romania6Slovenia6South Africa6Ukraine6Zimbabwe6Chile5	Paraguay	7	Turkey	
Spain7BotswanaTonga7Botswana1Morocco6Lgypt, Arab Rep.1Niger6Jamaica1Romania6Mauritius1Slovenia6Senegal1South Africa6Sri Lanka1Ukraine6Albania1Zimbabwe6Algeria1	Poland	7	Turks and Caicos Islands	
Tonga7Egypt, Arab Rep.Morocco6Jamaica6Niger6Mali6Romania6Mauritius6Slovenia6Senegal6South Africa6Sri Lanka6Ukraine6Albania6Zimbabwe6AlgeriaAnticus and Pachuda	Spain	7	Botswana	
Morocco6JamaicaNiger6Mali1Romania6Mauritius1Slovenia6Senegal1South Africa6Sri Lanka1Ukraine6Albania1Zimbabwe6Algeria1Chile5Senegal Pachude1	Tonga	7	Equat. Arab Rep	
Niger6Romania6Slovenia6South Africa6Ukraine6Zimbabwe6Chile5	Morocco	6	Lamaica	
Romania6Slovenia6South Africa6Ukraine6Zimbabwe6Chile5	Niger	6	Mali	
Slovenia 6 South Africa 6 Ukraine 6 Zimbabwe 6 Chile 5	Romania	6	Mauritius	
South Africa 6 Ukraine 6 Zimbabwe 6 Chile 5	Slovenia	6	Seneral	
Ukraine 6 Zimbabwe 6 Chile 5	South Africa	6	Sri Lanka	
Zimbabwe 6 Chile 5	Ukraine	6	Albania	
Chile 5	Zimbabwe	6		
	Chile	5	Antious and Barbuda	

Bahamas, The	0
Cambodia	0
Guyana	0
Macao SAR, China	0
Madagascar	0
Samoa	0
St. Vincent and the Grenadines	0
Тодо	0
Yemen, Rep.	0